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Donald Dicklich 
St. Louis County Auditor 

May 14.2004 

To: The Citizens of St. Louis County, Minnesota 
The St. Louis County Board of Commissioners 
All Other Interested Parties 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of St. Louis County is hereby submitted for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. This report was prepared by the County Auditor's 
Accounting and Finance Division. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data 
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the 
County. Please note that the County has implemented GASB Statement 34. Fund statements 
are still available, but the addition of the government-wide financial statements enables 
measuring the County as an economic entity. This report conforms with the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 1 and subsequent statements and 
interpretations. The report consists of three main sections: 

1, Introductory Section: Includes this transmittal letter from the County Auditor, the 
government's organizational chart, maps of the legislative and commissioner districts. 
and a list of principal officials. 

2. Financial Section: lncludes the new narrative section Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MDA), which provides "financial highlights" and interprets the financial reports 
by analyzing trends and explaining changes in the financial data and discloses any 
known significant events or decisions that affect the financial condition of the County. 
This letter of transmittal is deslgned to complement the MDA and should be read in 
conjunction with it. St. Louis County's MDA can be found immediately following the 
independent auditor's report. This section also includes government-wide financial 
statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and 
supplementary data. 

3. Statistical Section: Includes data that depicts the financial history of the government, 
generally presented for the past ten years, along with information on overlapping 
governments. demographics, and niiscellaneous information. 

We believe the data presented is accurate in all material respects, that its presentation fairly 
sets forth the County's financial position and results of operations as measured by the financial 
activity of its various funds. We believe further that all disclosures necessary for the reader to 
gain maximum understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included. 

Copies of this report will be sent to elected officials. County management, bond rating agencies, 
nationally recognized municipal securities information repositories, financial institutions, 
governmental agencies, and others that have expressed an interest in St. LOUIS County's 
financial affairs. 

An Equal Opporlunify Employer 



Governmental Organization and Services 

The St. Louis County Board of Commissioners consists of seven commissioners elected 
from the seven districts in the County. All commissioners serve overlapping four-year 
terms of office. Each member of the County Board serves on various committees. The 
major committees are Health and Social Services, Environment and Natural Resources, 
Public Works and Transportation, Finance and Budget, Centrai Management and lnter- 
Governmental. Public Safety, and Corrections. 

The Board appoints the County Administrator who is the chief administrative officer of 
the County and is responsible for the administration of Board policy and for the 
management of various County divisions and departments. The County Attorney, the 
County Auditor, and the Sheriff are elected officials; the Court Administrator is appointed 
by the Judiciary. 

The County provides a full range of services contemplated by statute. These services 
include public safety. public works, health, judicial. cultural, and human services; 
maintenance of property records, vital statistics, issuance of various permits and 
licenses; and the administration of property tax assessment, collection, and distribution 
for local governments withm the County. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

Located in Northern Minnesota, St. Louis County is the largest county east of the 
Mississippi, covering 7,092 square miles from Orr to Duluth and from Hibbing to Ely. St. 
Louis County is known for its spectacular natural beauty, including a national forest and 
a national park. the Boundary 'Naters Canoe Area, four state parks, and 500 lakes. This 
County is the home of 200,000 people scattered throughout the area in small mining 
towns, farm communities, and in busy cities which serve as regional hubs. The major 
industries in the County are mining, wood and paper products, shipping and 
transportation, health care, and tour ism^ 

Duluth is the County Seat of St. Louis County and is the largest city withln the northern 
two-thirds of Minnesota, with its city limits encompassing 67 square miles of land and 
nearly 50 square miles of water. The major industries in Duluth are its port trade, health 
care facilities, tourism, and aviation 

The Iron Range is the northern portion of the County and includes the cities of Virginia, 
Hibbing, Ely, Tower, Chisholm, Babbitt, Eveleth, and others. 

St. Louis County has museums, libraries, theaters, a fresh water aquarium, a waterfront 
boardwalk along Lake Superior. and lin~itless recreation, including boating, fishing, 
skiing, scholastic sports, and arts presentations. Education is a top priority with 
excellent public and private schools and opportunities for higher education at several 
public and private colleges. 

The County has an abundant. high quality workforce and has diversified its economy in 
the last ten years. It offers governmental and educational services and has gained 
status as a regional retaii center. Tourists and residents alike appreciate the low crime 
rate in the County, as well as t r l t . u n d a n c e  of the man-made and natural 
attractions. 



St. Louis County has three large health care delivery systems: CareNorth Health 
System, Benedictine Health SystemISt. Mary'sIDuluth Clinic Health System 
(BHSKMDC), and Fairview Range Regional Health Services. 

CareNorth Health System is a full-service network of independent health care providers. 
Formed in 1997. CareNorth's independent entities - Northstar Physicians, Northland 
Medical Associates. and St. Luke's Hospital and Regional Trauma Center - each 
provide a different level of health care for Duluth and Northeastern Minnesota. 

SMDC also was formed in 1997 by combining the resources of the region's largest multi- 
specialty clinic with those of the region's largest and most specialized hospital. BHS 
jo~ned SMDC in January 2004. BHS is a nonprofit that owns and operates 50 hospitals, 
nursing homes, assisted living, and independent living houses in eight states. 

Fairview Range Regional Health Services is an umbrella health organization with three 
divisions operating in the lron Range areas: the Mesabi Clinic (Hibbing. Chisholm. 
Nashwauk, and Mountain lron), University Medical Center-Mesabi, and HealthLine's 
home health care services. The University Medical Center-Mesabi Radiation Therapy 
Center allows northern Minnesotans access to state-of-the-art cancer care treatment, 
and serves patients within a 120-m~le radius of Hibbing. 

The County's population increased slightly between the 1990 census and the 2000 
census. The 2000 census population was 200,528. an increase of 1.2%. The 
population density is a low 38 people per square mile. A more detailed economic 
outlook is presented below. Except as otherwise noted, most information is based on 
the Duluth News-Tribune, the Duluth Budgeteer News, and the Range View publications. 

lron Range Economy 
The lron Range relies on tourism for a portion of its economic support. Outdoor 
enthusiasts enjoy golfing, skiing, and hiking in the Superior National Forest, 
photographing fall vistas over the Laurentian Divide, hunting for prehistoric fossils, and 
watching bald eagles and snowy owls in the wild. Winter brings skiers, snowboarders, 
and snowmobilers to the area. More adventurous visitors love ice fishing in the winter 
months and returning in the summer for canoeing and camping in the Boundary Waters 
Canoe Area. 

The taconite industry, the mainstay of the iron Range, has seen employment decline 
from 5,600 jobs in 2000 to 3,414 jobs in 2003. Employment within the industry isn't 
expected to increase in 2004. Even with the drop in jobs the area is still very dependen! 
on taconite production. it is estimated that lron Range taconite plants pump more than 
$1 billion into the state economy each year in the form of purchases, wages and 
benefits, and taxes and royalties. The total 2003 Taconite Production Tax assessed the 
six taconite plants was $72.4 million. The money was distributed to cities and 
townships, school districts, counties, property tax relief for taxpayers, and ihe lron 
Range Resources and Rehablitation Agency (IRRRA). 

Seven months after filing for bankruptcy, the former EVTAC plant in Eveleth reopened 
as United Taconite, successfully bringing back 320 workers. The plant is expected to 
employ about 385 people when running at full capac~ty. The reopening of United 
Taconite also caused the Duluth Missabe and lron Range Railway to call back 20 



workers in December, with more expected in the spring of 2004. United Taconite is 
jointly owned by Cleveland-Cliffs (70%) and China's Laiwu Steel Group (30%). 

U.S. Steel dropped plans to sell its Minntac Mine and acquired the bankrupt National 
Steel Pellet Corporation. Renamed Keewatin Taconite, the plant is slated to run at full 
capacity in 2004. 

At this time, it appears that 2004 will be a good year for the taconite industry. Heavy 
demand from China has strengthened the market for iron and many other basic 
materials. Production for 2004 is estimated to be 38 million tons or better. which would 
be an increase of 3.7 million tons over 2003, but only .5 million tons over 2002. 

Aurora: 
The $40 mi!lion. 61-mile Superior National Forest Scenic Byway that connects the 
eastern lron Range in Aurora with Silver Bay and Htghway 61 on the North Shore was 
dedtcated tn May 2003. The dedication caps more than two decades of work by local, 
regional, and state entities to transform a vision built from drrt-track logging roads and 
forested trails to a one hour w~lderness adventure route. The highway cuts through the 
2.1 million-acre Superior National Forest, as well as the Finland State Forest. 

Babbitt: 
Kasson Manufacturing, maker of pool tables, is Babbitt's largest taxpayer and the 
community's third-largest employer employing 40 people. Inventory-control problems, 
deteriorating margins and low-priced competition from China and Malaysia took a large 
toll on the company. The company is currently $5 million in debt and may not survive. 

Buhl: 
Construction of a new $5 million 44-bed nursing home in Buhl is projected to be 
completed in June 2004. The nursing home will employ about 60 and offer beds for 
nursing home and memory-loss residents, as well as private, single-occupancy rooms. 

Chisholm: 
Northwest Airlines hired 60 new reservation agents at its lron Range Reservation Center 
in Chisholm. The center handles telephone reservations for the airline's Worldperks 
members, other elite Northwest customers, and international callers. The $10.1 million 
reservation center opened in 1996 and employs about 500 people. 

Eveleth: 
Sykes Enterprises, an Eveleth based call center that prcvided technical support for 
people with Internet problems or questions, closed and eliminated 209 jobs. 

Ftngerhut Direct Marketing, Inc. re-opened its call center in September after being 
closed for more than a year and a half. By the end of the year they had 53 employees. 

Hoyt Lakes: 
Premier Plastics brought their six-year old plastics manufacturing company to the Laskin 
Energy Park in Hoyt Lakes in the spring of 2003. Initially. the company hired 16 
employees, but already has boosted that number to 22, adding a second shift to keep 
pace with additional contracts and demand. Premier Plastics manufactures heavy-duty 
plastic items used on boats and all-terrain vehicles (AN'S), including under-seat storage 



compartments for pontoon boats, and cargo baskets and boxes for the fronts or backs of 
four-wheelers. 

VirginialAurora: 
The $8.2 million Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota customer service call center in 
Virginia is now operational. The 31.000 square-foot center was built adjacent to the 
existing claims center in Virginia. In 2002. a 30,400 square-foot claims processing 
center was opened in Virginia and in January 2003, construction of a claims processing 
facility in Aurora was completed. A total of 210 employees currently work at the Aurora 
facility and the first Virginia facility. The new customer service call center could bring up 
to 185 additional jobs to the region by the end of 2005. Together. the combined centers 
will add over $10 million per year to the local economy. 

City of Duluth: 
The City of Duluth is St. Louis County's seat and is the largest city in the northern two- 
thirds of Minnesota. Located at the western tip of Lake Superior, its 2000 census 
population was 86.918. an increase of 1.7 percent over the 1990 census. Duluth is the 
third-largest city in the state, behind Minneapolis and St. Paul. With its Wisconsin 
neighbor, the city of Superior, it shares the Great Lakes' largest port and the world's 
largest fresh water harbor. 

The Port of Duluth-Superior had total cargo in 2003 of 34.8 million metric tons, as 
compared to 39.5 in 2002, a 13.5 percent decrease. This port is the number one iron 
ore loader nationally, and it is the number one grain loader on the U.S. Great Lakes. 

St. Mary'slDuluth Clintc will begin a $75 to $90 million expansion in the spring of 2004 
with completion of the project in 2005. The new 200.000 square-foot facility will house a 
cancer center, as well as several other departments including orthopedics, digestive 
diseases, and diagnostic imaging. The City of Duluth will support the project by building 
a parking ramp and a three-block-long skywalk from the ramp to the Technology Village 
building. 

The four-story St. Luke's Lakeview buildmg opened in early 2004. The $15 million. 
73.000 square foot factlity will house St Luke's cancer center and office space for 30 
doctors. The building IS connected by a skywalk to St. Luke's hospital, the Pavilion 
Surgery Center, and Northland Medical Center. 

Cirrus Design Corp. posted record airplane sales in July by selling 51 SR20's and 
SR22's. Their previous all-time sales high was 42 airplanes in a month. Tne Cirrus 
sales force was increased from four to 24 people. 

CustomerLink, a Duluth-based telemarketing business, plans to hire as many as 100 
employees due to acquiring several large contracts for 2004. The business serves the 
utility, health care, and high-tech industries. CustomerLink currently employs about 125 
and has a payroll of about S3.5 million. 

Federal monies of $9 million were approved for the third phase of construction and 
improvements at the Duluth Air National Guard base. The $26 million base overhaul 
began in 2000 and includes building a sing!e, state-of-the-art jet maintenance complex 
among other improvements. The base is home to the 148''' Fighter Wing. one of the 
Twin Port's largest employers. Its main mission includes air defense. 



Major lnitiatives for the Year 

Tne County's 2004 property tax levy was certified in 2003 at $85,340.393, which 
represents a 3.7 percent increase over the 2003 property tax levy. The 2004 levy 
includes capitai and operating expenses, as well as debt service on existing obligations. 

The St. Louis County Board passed its 2004 annual budget, which includes a 5 percent 
decrease in overall spending. from $266 million in 2003 to $253 million in 2004. 

The county has gone from 2.323 full time employees in 2003 to 2.294 employees for 
2004. The County Board has imposed a hiring freeze on all departments except those 
departments that are operated by an elected official. 

The estimated market value for property within the County for taxes payable 2003 was 
$8,315,406,800 and decreased to $8,297,232,343 for payable 2004. 

The County Board in October of 2003 authorized the appropriate officials to enter into 
agreements to purchase a new fully integrated financial system that would interface with 
a new fully integrated human resourcelpayroll information system. The new systems 
should result in $1.9 million savings to the County over the next five years. The financial 
system is scheduled to be operational in June of 2004, and the human resources/payroll 
system in January of 2005. 

St. Louis County, in partnership with the Cities of Duluth, Hermantown, and Proctor, and 
the Universitv of Minnesota. Duluth. have embarked uoon an effort to areatlv imorove ., , , 
the criminal 3ustice information systems envlronmenr 'in the Northeastern Minnesota 
Arrowhead Reqion. This effort has been named the Northeastern Minnesota 
Enforcement aid Safety Information System (NEMESIS). Matching CRIMNET grants 
have been received to develop and deploy a new law enforcement record management 
system entitled SHIELD and deploy an existing prosecution system entitled DAMION, as 
well as establish tight mtegration with local and state systems, St. Louis County, of its 
own inrtiatlve. is adding another component to SHIELD. entitled TURNKEY, to be used 
for jail managemenUoffender management purposes throughout the Arrowhead Region. 

St. Louis County acquired ownership of the Northland Office Building in Virginia on 
November 1, 2003. The acquisition was pursuant to an agreement entered into with the 
City of Virginia in 1992. The building is occupied mostly by County departments. 

Major Initiatives for the Future 

Since the events of September 11, 2001. St. Louis County's budget has seen a greater 
emphasis on Socm Services, Public Health, and Law Enforcement. The County has 
received and can expect additional funding from both the State and National levels in 
these areas. 

The County Board was forced to examine every area of County government to address 
over $1 1 million in state aid reductions and cost shifting devised by the legislature to 
balance the state's budget. Future budgets will need to be adjusted to develop plans to 
meet local service expectations as the State of Minnesota reduces its state-local fiscal 
partnership. The County Board will need to consider turning back several programs that 
it currently provides for the state, as this partnership is expected to further erode. 



In the year 2003. the Iron Range taconite industry distributed $15.0 million in taconite 
production tax for the General Fund and the Road and Bridge Fund. and for its share of 
a tax credit for homeowners in a legislatively defined area in the County. This was a $.2 
million reduction from 2002. The County is expected to receive approximately the same 
distributton in 2004, and again in 2005, due to the fact that portions of the taconite 
production tax monies received over the past few years have been set aside and are 
now available to be used to fund current year production tax shortfalls. The County may 
have to look at methods of replacing taconite monies with other revenue sources or 
through reductions in expenditures in 2006 and beyond. 

Cities, towns, and school districts in the County received more than $20.8 million in 
funding from the taconite production tax. 

Financial Information 

Financial management of St. Louis County is based on an accounting and financial 
reporting system that must provide accurate, timely, and relevant information. The 
assets of the County are protected from fraud, errors, and misuse through the institution 
of internal controls, Internal controls are designed to safeguard assets, as well as to 
insure that accounting data are accurate for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and to carry out the County's 
policies. 

Single Audit - as a recipient of federal and state financial assistance. the County has 
established internal controls to ensure compliance with the regulations applicable to 
such assistance. 

Budget Controls - St. Louis County incorporates budgetary controls which ensure that 
County Departments comply with the annual budget adopted by the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

Encumbrance accounting is used to determine availability of funds prior to incurring a 
specific obligation and to insure that proper policies and regulations have been followed. 
Encumbrances outstand~ng at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances. 
The Capital Project Funds are appropriated by project and the appropriation continues in 
effect until the purpose of the project has been either accomplished or abandoned. All 
other appropriations which are not expended or encumbered lapse at year-end. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of 
this report, St. Louis County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial 
management. 

Cash Management 

In 2003, the County's average investment yield was 1.90%. 100% of the County's funds 
were invested in U.S. government securities, government agency securities, commercial 
paper, bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, and overnight investments with the 
Minnesota Association of Governments Investing for Counties (MAGIC:), a Minnesota 
joint powers investment trust. 



The County, in 1995, recognizing that it would be prudent to set aside a cash reserve to 
meet unexpected cash flow shortages, began to designate some of its fund balances for 
cash flow. A formal policy is in place to guide the designation of these funds. The 
County's goal for the General Fund, the Road and Bridge Special Revenue Fund, and 
the Social Services Special Revenue Fund, which are major operat~ng funds that are 
supported in part by direct property tax levy, is to designate a portion of the available 
fund balances equal to 5/12 of the certified levy for each fund, plus its proportional share 
of the homestead and agricultural aid paid to the County by the State of Minnesota. At 
December 31. 2003, the goal was 89.4% accomplished for the General Fund, 97.9% for 
the Road and Bridge Fund, and was 75.79'0 accomplished for the Social Services Fund. 

Recognizing the need to pre-fund retirees' health insurance premiums which are set 
aside for the retired employees from their sick leave balances at retirement, the County 
began in 1994 to designate 119 per year of the amount estimated to be paid from the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds for those employees who are eligible to retire 
immediately. As of December 31, 2003, 100% of the estimated retiree obligations 
(vested sick leave) amount needed was funded. 

In 2000, the County began to designate for the General Fund and Special Revenue 
Funds I19 per year of the amount estimated to be paid for those employees who are not 
eligible to retire immediately, but probably will retire from the County. As of December 
31, 2003, 419 of the estimated vesting sick leave amount needed was funded. 

Enterprise Operations 

Enterprise operations include Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center, 
Community Foods, Laundry, Supervised Living Facilities, and the Solid Waste 
Management Fund. These funds are meant to be self-supporting and earn their revenue 
through user charges. 

Fiduciary Operations 

The County collects and distributes all property taxes for the taxing authorities within the 
County, including cities. townships and school districts. It is responsible for collecting 
numerous fees, fines, and payroll deductions and for distributing those funds to third 
parties. The County participates in the Public Employees' Retirement Association, a 
statewide pension plan, which is administered by the State of Minnesota. Contributions 
from both the employee and the County are forwarded to the State Office. All payments 
to retired employees are made by that office. 

Capital Improvements 

Capital improvements at the Duluth and Hibbing Courthouses that were funded by the 
2003 Capital Improvement Bonds were nearly completed at year's end. The Pike Lake 
Road & Bridge Administration Buildmg was opened in 2003. Also completed during 
2003 were projects at Road & Bridge garages and numerous projects at the three 
County courthouses. 



Risk Management 

The County's exposure is as follows: 
Tort and Liability Risk: The County purchases insurance on its major buildings 
and buys surety bonds to cover the risk of employee theft. The County bears the 
risk for other torts and liability, including no-fault auto insurance. The Property, 
Casualty, Liability lnsurance lnternal Service Fund at December 31, 2003, had a 
balance of $5,908,177 in its net assets account. The balance of net assets 
provides for any reasonably possible claims, as well as for any claims that have 
been incurred, but not reported. 

Workers' Compensation Risk: The County assumes all of the risk for single 
loss occurrences to $1,400,000. The Workers' Compensation Reinsurance 
Association insures the County for claims above that amount. The Workers' 
Compensation lnsurance lnternal Service Fund at December 31, 2003, had a 
balance of ($2,164,272) in its net assets account. The fund liabilities include 
probable claims that will be paid, but do not include any amount for claims that 
are incurred but not reported. 

Medical and Dental Risk: The County assumes the risk for its share of medical 
and dental insurance coverage for its employees, except that i t  purchases stop- 
loss coverage for claims over $750,000. and for transplant coverage. The 
MedicalIDental lnsurance lnternal Service Fund at December 31. 2003, had a 
balance of $9,537,875 in its net assets account. The fund liabilities include a 
provision for claims incurred but not reported, but do not include a provision for 
catastrophic losses. 

Unemployment Compensation Risk: The County assumes all risk for 
unemployment compensation and is billed on a reimbursement basis by the 
State of Minnesota for claims paid. The claims are paid from departmental 
budgets and are not reported in an lnternal Service Fund. No liability is recorded 
for incurred but not reported claims. 

Independent Audit 

St. Louis County is audited annually by the State of Minnesota. as required by state 
statutes. This requirement has been complied with and the Auditor's Report is included 
in this report. 

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of management and Budget 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orqanizations also 
establishes audit requirements for the County. 

The State Auditor will issue management and compliance letters covering the review 
made as a part of the audit of St. Louis County's system of internal control and 
compliance with applicable legal provisions. Also reflected in these letters are the 
results of the County's smgle audit under provisions of the U.S. Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-133. 



Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to St. Louis 
County for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2002. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. 
whose contents conform to program standards. The report must satisfy both generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. St. Louis County has 
received the Certificate for the last fifteen consecuttve years. We believe our current 
report will conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and are thus 
submitting it to the GFOA. 

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report in accordance with the 
GAS5 34 financial reporting model was made possible by the dedicated work of the 
employees of the Accounting and Financial Division. In addition. I would like to express 
my appreciation to the employees of the Social Services Department and the Public 
Works Department for their dedication and cooperation during the preparation of this 
report. I am grateful to the County Board of Commissioners and to the Department of 
Administration for their leadership and support in formulating the financial actwities of the 
County, without which the preparation of this report would not have been possible. 
Many other County departments extended assistance and cooperation to my office 
during this time and I thank them also. 

Special thanks are due to the State Auditor's staff for their technical assistance during 
the audit and during the year. We acknowledge, too. the thorough and profess~onal 
manner in which they conducted their audit. 

Sincerely, 

County Auditor 
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IKDEPENDEXT ACDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of County Commissioners 
St.  Louis County 

W e  have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. the 
husiness-type activities, each major f'ind, and the aggregate remaining fund infbrmation o f  
S t .  Louis County as of and for rhe year ended E)eeember 31, 2003. which collectively comprise 
the County's basic tinancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statenients are the responsibility of tne County's management. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

W e  conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the ilnited 
Statcs of America and the standards applicable to financral audits contained in Govt~rnrn~v~f 
.41rdiiirg Sror~durd.~. issued by the Comptroller Gcncral of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
tinancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
o u r  audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abov: present fairly, in all material respects, 
t he  respective financial position of the governmentat activities, the business-type activities, each 
major find, and the aggregate remaining fund information of St. Louis County as o f  
December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in tinancia1 position and cash tlows. where 
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the inajor gove~mncntal funds 
fo r  the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of Amenca. 

As tliscusscd in Note 1.F. to the tinancial statements, St. ILouis County changed its method of  
accounting tbr its state aid highway fund allotment. 



T h e  Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic linancial 
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. We have applicd certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily o f  
~nanagerncnt inquiries regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the 
supplementary information. I-lowe\:er, we did not audit the information and express no opinion 
on it. 

O u r  audit was made fbr the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements t ha t  
crrllectively comprise St. Louis County's hasic financial statements. The combining a n d  
individual non-major fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents a r e  
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the bastc financial 
statements of St. Louis County. Such information has been subjected lo the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is lhirly presented in all 
material respccts in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

I n  accordance with Govt*nzn7enr .4uditirg Stundurds, we have also issued a report dated May 14 ,  
2004. on our considcration of St. Louis County's internal control over financial reporting and o u r  
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Tha t  
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with G'overnn~ent Audifing 
Standurds and should be read in conjunction with this Irport in considering 
audit. 

PATRICIA ANDEIISON 
STATE AIJDITOR 

(;REG HIERI-INGEII, CPA 
DEPUTY SFME AUDITOR 

End of Fieldwork: May 14, 2004 
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St. Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2003 

Our discussion and analysis of St. Louis County's financial performance provides an overview of the County's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. Please read it in conjunction with the 
accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The County's total net assets increased by $13.0 million or 3.7%. Governmental activities accounted for an 
increase of $14.5 million, while the County's business-vpe activities decreased by $1.5 million. 

The County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $80.9 million, an increase of $3.6 
million. Part of the combined fund balances, $28.8 million, is reserved and not available for appropriation. Of 
the remaining $52.1 million (unreserved fund balance), $40.7 has been designated for specific uses and $1 1.4 
million remains undesignated. 

The General Fund reported a deficiency of revenue over expenditures of $2.2 million. This deficiency was 
caused by the County Board using u n R ? ~ e ~ e d  fund balance to balance the 2003 General Fund budget. 

St. Louis County's total debt decreased by $4.0 million (11.8%) to $30.0 million. The key factor was the 
retirement of principal. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements. 
The basic financial statements comprise three components: I )  government-wide financial statements. 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. One of the most important questions asked about the County's 
finances is whether the County as a whole is better or worse as a result of this year's activities. The Statement 
of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the County as a whole and about its 
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of 
the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the County's net assets and changes to them. Think of the County's net assets - 
the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the County's financial health, or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in tne County's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in 
the County's properly tax base and the condition of the County's roads, to assess the overall health of the 
County. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found onpages 30-32 of this report 

Fund financial sfatements. These statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - 
not the County as a whole. Some funds are requ~red to be established by State law and by bond covenants. 
However, the County Board establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular 
purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. 
The County funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 



St. Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2003 

Governn?ental funds: Most of the County's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. 
These funds are reported using the modified accrual method of accounting, which measures cash and all other 
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed 
short-term view of the County's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to finance the County's programs. We describe the relationships (or differences) 
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds in a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements. 

The County maintains four individual major governmental funds. Information is provided separately for each 
major fund on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues. 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. The major funds are the General Fund. Road and Bridge Fund, 
Social Services Fund, and the Forfeited Tax Sale Fund. Data for the nonmajor governmental funds is 
combined into "other governmental funds." lndividual data for each of these fourteen nonmajor governmental 
funds is provided in the supplementary data. 

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison for the 
major governn~ental funds is provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget. 

The basic financial statements for governmental funds can be found on pages 34-46 of this report 

Proprietary funds: When the County charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the County, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Activities. The County uses enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) to report 
the activities of two major funds: the Solid Waste Management Fund and the Chris Jensen Health and 
Rehabilitation Center Fund, and four nonmajor enterprise funds. Data for the nonmajor funds is combined into 
"other enterprise funds". Individual data for each of the nonmajor enterprise funds is provided in the 
supplementary data. These funds are the same as the business-type activities reported in the government- 
wide statements but provide more detail and additional information. The County uses internal service funds 
(the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities that provide supplies and serv:ces for the 
county's other programs and activities. such as the County's Telecommunication Fund. The basic financial 
statements can be found on pages 48-52 of this report. 

Fiduciatv funds: The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held for others. The County uses 
trust and agency funds to report its fiduciary activities. The County's fiduciary activities are reported in the 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and Statement of Changes ill Fiduciary Net Assets and are excluded from 
the Government-wide Financial Statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their 
intended purposes. The accounting used for fiduciary fufids is much likc that used in proprietary funds. The 
basic financial statements can be found on pages 54-55 of this report. 

Notes to fhe financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 1-he notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages 58-93 of this report. 

Supplementary data. The combining statements for norlmajor governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are provided on page 97-138. 



St. Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2003 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Net assets may over time be a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of St. Louis 
County, assets exceeded liabilities by $368.3 million. 

By far the largest portion of the County's net assets is the investment in capital assets (72.9 percent), which 
reflects St. Louis County's investment in capital assets less any related debt used to acquire those assets that 
is still outstanding. Because the County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, they are not 
available for future spending. Although investments in capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should 
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these l~abilities. 

This is the County's second year for reporting government-wide financial statements using the full accrual basis 
of accounting. 

Table 1 
St. Louis County's Net Assets 

(in Millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Current and other assets $ 152.7 $ 152.6 $ 16.1 $ 17.0 $ 168.8 $ 169.6 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 75.9 80.2 3.2 3.0 79.1 83.2 
Other liabilities 18.5 21.6 1.5 1.7 20.0 23.3 

Total liabilities 94.4 101.8 4.7 6.7 99.1 106.5 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 254.7 243.5 13.9 14.5 268.6 258.0 
Restricted 35.1 32.8 1.4 1.5 36.5 22.9 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

The following analysis focuses on the County's net assets (Table I ) ,  

Governmental Activities: 

The County's net assets increased by $14.5 million, or 4.4% from 5328.0 million to $342.5 million. St. Louis 
County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets. The same held true for the prior 
fiscal year. 

Current and other assets increased only $.1 miilion because of a large decrease in cash and investments that 
was offset by an increase in receivables. 

Capital assets increased by $7.0 nlillion. A detailed analysis of this increase is presented in Table 4 on page 
28, under the heading Capital Assets and Debt Administration. 
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The County's long-term liabilities outstandmg decreased by S4.3 million, to $75.9 million. This was due largely 
to a decrease in bonds and notes payable of $4.1 million. A detailed analysis of the increase in outstanding 
debt is presented in Table 5 on page 29, under the heading Capital Assets and Debt Administration. 

Other liabilities decreased $3.1 million due to decreases in both accounts payable of $1.8 million and deferred 
revenue of $1.3 million. 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, increased by $11.2 million. This was the result of capital asset 
additions and deletions net of depreciation increasing by $6.9 million: governniental activities debt decreasing 
by $4.1 million; and capital leases being reduced by 5.2 million for the year. 

Restricted net assets increased by $2.3 million due to increases in encumbrances, retiree obligations, and debt 
service reserves. 

Unrestricted net assets are the sum of the governmental funds reserved fund balances that are available for 
spending at the County's discretion. The County's unrestricted net assets were $1.0 million more at the end of 
2003 than at the end of 2002. This was due primarily to a combination of not having to designate fund balance 
to support the 2004 budget, and to increases in designations for cash fiow and vesting sick leave. 

Business-type Activities: 

The County's net assets for business-type activities decreased $1.5 million, or 5.5%, to S25.8 million. As with 
the governmental activities, St. Louis County was able to report positive balances in all three categories of net 
assets, and the same held true for the prior fiscal year. 

Current and other assets decreased from $17.0 million to $16.1 million, or $.9 miliion. Cash and investments 
increased $.9 million, primarify in the Solid Waste Fund. Receivables (net) increased by $.7 million, with the 
Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center receivables increasing by more than S.8 million. The Solid 
Waste Management Fund experienced a decrease in restricted assets of $.I million. Interfund balances, 
caused by underpayment to the internal service funds and a $1.5 million loan by the General Fund to the Chris 
Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center to cover its cash deficit at year end, increased by ($2.4) million. 

Capital assets declined by $.6 million in 2003 because capital asset additions of $.2 million were more than 
offset by depreciation expense of $.8 million. A detailed analysis of this increase is presented in Table 4 on 
page 33, under the heading Capital Assets and Debt Administration. 

Total liabilities remain constant at $4.7 million 

Total net assets decreased as the result of expenses exceeding revenues by $1.5 million 



S t  Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2003 

Table 2 
St. Louis County's Changes in Net Assets 

(in Millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Revenues 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for sewices $ 39.6 5 38.5 S 22.3 
Operating Grants and Contributions 43.1 42.2 0.4 
Capital Grants and Contributions 4.4 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for gen. purposes 77.0 76.7 
Property taxes, levied for debt service 4.7 3.9 0.1 

State shared 43.4 46.8 
Federal non-program 0.6 0.5 
Investment income 1.8 3.6 0.2 
Contributions to Permanent Fund 0.4 3.3 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
Program expenses: 

General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Health and sanitation 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 
Conservation of natural resources 
Economic development 
Interest on long-term debt 
Solid Waste Management 
Chrls Jensen Health & Rehabihtat~on 
Other Enterprise funds 

Total expenses 

lncrease in net assets before transfers 
and special items 14.5 20.8 (1.5) (3.5) 13.0 17.3 

Special items 6.1 (2.3) 3.8 
'Transfers ( 2 4 )  2.4 - -- - 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 14.5 24.5 (1.5) (3.4) - 13.0 21.1 
Net assets January 1 328.0 303.5 27.3 30.7 355.3 334.2 
Net assets December 31 $ 342.5 $ 328.0 $ 25.8 $ 27.3 $ 368.3 $ 355.3 
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The following analysis focuses on the County's changes in net assets (Table 2). 

Governmental Activities: 

Charges for service for 2003 were $39.6 million, or $1 . I  million, over 2002. 

The County received $5.3 niillion more from grants and contrtbutions during 2003. Highways and Streets 
received additional federal grants and capital contributions of $7.3 million for road construction in 2003. The 
Public Safety program of the General Fund received S.6 million more in grants, while the Social Services Fund 
was reduced $.2 million in state and $2.8 million in federal grants. 

Property tax collection increased $1.1 million, from $80.6 million in 2002, to $81.7 million in 2003. County 
taxpayers were levied $2.0 million less than what the County Board had approved. The $2.0 million error will be 
corrected with the 2004 County tax levy. State shared revenues decreased by $3.4 million because of a 
reduction in the "Homestead and Agrtculture Credrt A i d  sent to the County by the State of Minnesota for 2003. 

The interest earnings trend continued its decline in 2003. lnterest earnings for 2003 were $1.8 million less than 
the $3.6 miliion of interest earnings in 2002. lnterest earnings in 2002 were $1.9 million less than 2001. 
lnterest rates also continued to fall in 2003. The average yield on investments dropped 35.6% in 2003 to 
1.9%. The County's portfolio continued to have investments mature, which were replaced with lower yield 
investments. 

Expenses tncreased by $5.7 million in 2003 to $200.7 million for all governmental activities. The largest single 
increases were in the General Government and Highway and Streets programs. They increased by $3.0 million 
and $5.5 million respectively. Expenses decreased in the Human Services program by $2.0 mtllion in 2003. 
For the most part, increases in expenses were related to increased personnel service cost as the result of 
employee contract settlements, capital related expenses, and Internal Service Funds Net income (loss) 
allocations. All County employees received a 2.75% wage increase for the year. 

Business-type Activities: 

Charges for services for all business-type activities decreased $2.4 million in 2003. This was mainly due to an 
increase at Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center of $2.6 n\illiori and a decrease of $5.3 million at the 
Noperning Care Center. Both were the result of Nopeming Care Center closing in November of 2002. 

Property taxes were levied for the first time in 2003 to begin repayment of the debt incurred in remodeling a 
wing at Chris Jensen Health and Rehabililation Center. 

Expenses decreased $4.7 million due to the Nopeming Care Center closure. 

The two business-type activities that are classified as major funds were the only business-type activities that 
had operating losses in 2003. The Soiid Waste Management Fund had an operating loss of $.7 million, while 
Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center had an operating loss of S.9 million. 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier. St. Louis County uses fund accounting to insure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of St. Louis County governmental funds is to provide information on near- 
term inflows, oufflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing St. Louis 
County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the 
County's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of December 31, 2003, St. Louis County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $80.9 
million. compared with $77.3 million in 2002. Most of the combined fund balance, or $52.1 million, was 
unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the County's discretion. Of the unreserved fund 
balance. S40.7 million was designated. Designations reflect the County's self-imposed limitations on otherwise 
available expendable financial resources. Cash flow designation of $31.7 million is the largest designation. 
The remaining $28.8 million of fund balance is reserved. Fund balance is reserved because it is either 
unavailable for spending or legally restricted. The largest reservations of fund balances at year end are for 
environmental trust fund purposes, encumbrances, inventories, and retiree obligations. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of 2003, the unreserved fund balance of 
general fund was $20.9 million. Unrese~ed fund balance represents 30.7% of total fund revenues and 29.8% 
of total fund expenditures. The Office of the State Auditor recommends that counties maintain unreserved fund 
balance in their General Fund of approximately 35 to 50 percent of fund operating revenues, or no less than five 
months of operating expenditures (41.7%). 

The fund balance of the County's General Fund decreased $2.2 million as a result of operations before 
transfers. Transfers were from the County Garage Fund ($.3 million), Management Information Systems Fund 
($.3 million), and the Forfeited Tax Sale Fund ($1.7 million). The net result after transfers was a $.I  million 
increase in fund balance for the year. 

The Road and Bridge Fund had a $1.7 million excess of revenues over expenditures. This was primarily due to 
actual expenditures coniing in under budget. 

The Social Services Fund also came in well under budget resulting in revenue over expenditures of $1.7 
million. 

Pursuant to Minnesota Statute, the Forfelted Tax Sale Fund distributed $3.4 million in net proceeds. Fund 
balance was $5 million at the end of both 2002 and 2003. 

Proprietary Funds. St. LOUIS County proprietary funds provide the same type of ~nformation found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Budgets can be amended during the year by the County Board. Supplemental appropriations or budget 
reductions are reviewed by the County Administrator's office and submitted to the County Board for their review 
and approval. 

The final amended expenditure budget was increased $3.2 million over the original budget. The majority of the 
increases were appropriation of carryover monies and amendments to operating budget. 

The difference between the final amended revenue budget $68.4 million and the original budget was a 
decrease of only S.4 million. 



St. Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2003 

Actual expenditures were $3.8 million under the final budget. This was the result of various departments under 
spending their operating budgets and actual grant expenditures falling far short of budget allotments. 

Actual revenues were $.2 million under the final budget. Tax collections exceeded the budget by 5.6 million. 
while earnings on investments were under budget by $.6 million. All other actual revenues came in very close 
to the final budget. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At year end, the County showed total capital assets to be $298.6 million. Of that total, governmental activities 
accounted for 5284.2 million, and the balance of 514.4 million belonged to the business-type activities. These 
amounts represent a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings. machinery, roads, road 
maintenance equipment, and law enforcement equipment. Detail is presented immediately below in Table 4. 

Table 4 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation, in  Millions) 

Governmental Business-Woe 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Linens 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Totals 

. . 
Activities Activities Totals 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
$ 1.7 S 1.7 $ 0.4 5 0.4 5 2.1 $ 2.1 

Total governmental capital assets show a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $7.0 million, or 
2.5 percent, over last year. As shown in Table 4, all asset categories except infrastructure, buildings and 
improvements, and land posted decreases. This was due to depreciation expenses exceeding new purchases. 

Infrastructure. which is the County's road and bridge system, had a net increase of $7.6 million, or 3.7%. 
Construction Projects of $20.2 million were completed during the year. Depreciation of existing infrastructure 
totaled 512.6 million for the year. 

Buildings and improvenlents increased by a total $2.0 million. Governmental activities increased $1.7 million 
mainly because capital projects started in 2002 were completed in 2003. Business-type activities experienced 
a net increase of $.3 million in building and improvements because of the remodeling at the Chris Jensen 
Health and Rehabilitation Center. 

Construction in progress at the end of the year consisted of the Duluth and Hibbing Courthouse improvements. 

Additional information on St. Louis County's capital assets can be found in the notes on page 76 and 77 



St. Louis County, Minnesota 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31.2003 

Debt Administration 

At year-end, the County had $30.0 million of bonded debt outstanding that comprises the debt backed by the 
full faith and credit of the County. Some of the debt is also secured by specific revenue sources. 

Table 5 
Outstanding Debt, at Yearend 

tin Millinnat 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
General obligation bonds S 28.9 $ 32.9 $ 0.5 $ 0.6 S 29.4 $ 33.5 
Fievenue bonds 

Total 

As shown, the County's total debt decreased $4.0 million ( 1  1.8%) during the current fiscal year. This was the 
result of making principal payments on existing debt and not issuing new debt in 2003. 

Moody's Investors Service assigned an "Al" rating on the County's Series 2002A Bonds and Series 2002C 
Notes. The Series 20028 Bonds were rated "AAI" by Moody's based upon their inclusion in the County Credit 
Enhancement Program administered by the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. 

Additional information on St. Louis County's long-term debt can be found in the notes on page 79 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The average unemployment rate in St. Louis County for 2003 was 5.6%. This is comparable to the state's 
average unemployment rate of 5.0% and the national average of 6.0% for 2003. 

The State of Minnesota has projected a budget defic~t, which may not be fully addressed until the 2004 
legislative session. There is a possibility that some of the County's state aids will be further reduced. This 
potential loss of revenues is being considered during St. Louis County's 2005 budget process. 

After Wo very difficult years includtng numerous bankruptcies, the domestic steel and taconite industry began 
to recover in the 4th quarter of 2003. At this time it appears that 2004 will be a good year for the taconite 
industry. Heavy demand from China may have strengthened the market for iron and many other basic 
materials. The dependence on the approximately $10.6 million dollars the County receives in the form of 
taconite production tax appears safe for the near future. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County's budget for the 2004 fiscal year. 

The County's 2004 budget was passed on December 16. 2003. at a meeting of the St. Louis County Board of 
Commissioners. The property tax levy of $85.3 million is $3.0 million, or 3.6%, over 2003. Decreases in 
revenues in the General and Social Service Fund coupled with recovering the $2.0 million levy error that 
occurred in 2003 account for the majority of the property tax increase. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have a question about this report or need information. contact the County Auditor's Office at: 100 N. 5th 
Avenue W., Duluth. Minnesota 55802-1293. 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31,2003 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business4ype 

Activities Aclivitles Total 

$ 85,442.904 

33,177,054 

43.807 

44,366.61 1 

3.1 19,299 

75.025 

2.552.665 

5,750,926 

292.892.148 

467 421.039 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Assets held by escrow agent 

Internal balances 

Receivables (net) 

Inventories 

Prepaid items 

Restricted assets 

Capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated. net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Deferred revenue 

Liaoillties payable from restricted assets 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due witnin one year 

Due in more than one year 

Total lrabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in caprtal assets, net of related debt 

Restricted 

Shoreline sales: 

Expendable 

Nonexpendable 

Specia! revenue 

Debt service 

Capkal projects 

Retiree obliptions 

Other purposes 

Unrestricted 
Totai net assets 

The notes ro the financial statement are an lritegra palt of this statement. 



FunctionslPrograms 

Primary government 

Governmenral Activities: 

General govt?mmen: 

Public safety 

Higtiways and streets 

Healtn ana sanitation 

Human services 

Culture and recreai!on 

Conservaiion of natural resources 

Econoniic development 

Interest on iong-term debt 

Total governmental 

activities 

S7: LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR EKDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Business-type activities: 

Sold Waste Managemenl 

Chris Jensen tiesitti 

and Rehnbilitaticn Center 

Other Erilerprise Fl~rids 

Total business-type 

activities 

Tctal priqary governmen: 

Program Revenues 

Operating 

Charges for Grants and 

Expenses - Services C o n t r i b u t i o n s  



ST. L.OU!S COUIV'TY, MINNESOTA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

FunctionslPrograms 

Primary government 

Governmental Activities: 

General goverrirnent 

Public safe3 

Highways and streets 

Health and sanitation 

Human sewices 

Culture and recreation 

Conservation of natural resources 

Econoinic development 

Interest on long.Ierm deb1 

Total governmental 

activities 

Bwiness-type act-vities: 

Solid Waste Management 

Chris Jensen Health 

and Rehabilitation Cer,lef 

Other Enterprise Funds 
Total business-type 

activities 

Total primary goverlment 

Genenl revenues: 

Taxes: 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Program Changes in  Net Assets 

Revenues cont. 
Primary Government 

Capital 

Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Contributions Activities - Activities , Total 

Prope<iy taxes, levied for i;eneral purposes 

Propeny taxes, levied for debt service 

State shared 

Federal shared 

lrivest~nent earnirii;s 

Coritributions to Permanent F w d  

Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues, special items. an0 tracsfers 

Changes 111 ret assels 

her assets - .la~iua?f ' - restated 

he1 assets - December 31 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund 

General Fund - This fund has been classified as a major fund and is used to account for all 
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures. The following funds have 
been classified as major funds: 

Road and Bridge - This fund is used to account for public works activity. 

Social Services - This fund is used to account for the operations and financial activities of the 
Social Services Department. 

Forfeited Tax Sale - This fund is used to account for the proceeds from the sale or rental lands 
forfeited to the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minn. Stat. ch. 282. The distribution of the net 
proceeds, after deducting the expenses of the County for managing the tax forfeited lands is 
governed by Minn. Stat. 282.08. Title to the tax forfeited lands remains with the State until sold by 
the county. 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, hllNNESOJA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

ASSETS 
Casl  and w s h  equivalents 
Assets held by escrow agent 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Loans receivable 
Leases receivable 
interfund receivabie 
Due frorn other governments 
Inventories 

Total Assets 

LiABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Lia~ilities: 

Acuunts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Conpensated absences cayable 
interfund payable 
Due to olher governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for 

Change funds 
Noncurrent loans 
Emnornic development 
FU:ure loans 
Conference fvnd 
ir1verdo':es 
Encumbrances 
Law library 
Recorder's equipment 
Communications 
Exlension service 
Missing heirs 
Prlvate redemption 
Escrow cast1 
Soil erosion 
Foster care insurance 
Veterans' credit 
Senior ciluens tmnspartatlol 
Unorganized town rosds 
Capltat acquisition 
Environrnentai trust funds 

Other Total 
Road and Social Forfeited Governmental Governmental 

General Bridge _ Services Tax Sale . - Funds Funds - 

lrncrovement of natural resources 
Uebl service 
Exchawe o' land 22,798 
Tax certificate assurance 184.083 
Attorney f3rfe:tu:es 306.710 
Sheriff forfeitures 76,326 
Trail Assistance 69 1 
Retiree ob:igatioris 4.203.026 

The nates Lo the financial statelnent are an ihtegmt pall of the statement 
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Unreserved: 
Reported in: 

Special revenue funds 
Debt service funds 
Capital projects funds 

Destgnated for: 

Parkmg 
Hibbing Raceway 
Cash flow 
Emergency contingency 
Northland Office Buildng 
Vesting sick leave 
Unrealized ir~vestrnenl gairs 

Total Fund Balance 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

Other Total 
Road and Social Forfeited Governmental Governmental 

- General . Bridge Services Tax Sale -- Funds . Funds - 

4mounts reported tor QOvernmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Total Fund balance - governmenlal funos (from above) 5 80,912,663 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and tlierefore are not reported in tne funds. 282,469,538 

Othei long-term assets are not available to pay for current-pnnod expenditures and Inerefore are deferred in the funds. 23,145,929 

Long-term liabiitties, includmg bonds payable. are not due and payable in the current period and :herefore are not reported in the funds (63,034,110) 

llternal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of cenam activities such as Insurances to individual funds 
The assets and liabilities ol the Internal Service Funds are included in povenlmental activities in !he Statement of Net Assets. .- 1a.9a9.12~ 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The n31es to the financial statement are an irllegral pari ~ ' t h e  statement 



REVENUES 
iaxes 
Llcenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Earnings on investments 
Gifls and contributions 
Land and timber sales 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current' 

General government 
Public safety 
highways and streets 
health and sanitalion 
Human services 
Cuilure and recreation 
Conservation of natural resources 
Economic development 

Debt service: 
Principal 
interesl and other charges 

Capital outlay: 
General goverwnent 
Public Satety 
Llighways and streets 
iluman services 
Conservation of natural resources 

Iltergovemmenlal: 
General government 
Public seletf 

Tolal expenditures 
Excess (ceficiency) of revenues 

over expendi:ures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES] 
Transfers in 
Transfefs (out) 
i.oan proceeds 

Total other fmancinp sources and uses 

Net change in hind balances 

Fund balances - Janua?] 1 

Decrease in iese:ved for inventories 

Fund baiances - Cecember 31 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 i .  2003 

Other Total 
Road and Social Forfeited Governmental Governmental 

General . Bridge - Services-. - Tax Sale . Funds .- Funds 

The noles to the :inancia1 iiti3:emenI arc an iniepial pan of lP8s sraternenl 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 i ,  2003 

Net change in furd balances--total governmenta! funds lfrom prevbous page) S 3.8M.158 

Increase in reserved for inventories-tolai governmental funas (from previous page) (282.401) 

Amourlls reponed for governmental activities in the Statement of activities are ddferent because: 

Revenues in the statement of activities tnat do not provrde current financial resources are not repnned as revenues in the funds. 2,772931 

Some expenses reported in the slatemenl of activities do not requlre the use of curren! financial issources and iherefore are rot 
reported as expenditures !n governmental funds. 67.657 

Governmental funds repon capita! wtlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of aclivities. the cast of those assets is 
ailocated over their esumaled useful lhves as depreciation expense. This is the amounr by which capital outlays exceeded 
depreciation !n the current period. 3.487.398 

Changes in capcal asset not resulting from capital outlay, such as cantributions and other expense are not reflected in the funds. 3,877,236 

Internal seivice iurds are used by management to charge the costs 01 cemin activit!es. such as insurance and printing lo individual 
funds. The net revence (expense) of the ilitemal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 

(3,800,240) 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
Statement of Net Assets. 

4,456,738. 

Change n net asses of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial satemen1 are an irtegral pan of this slatemeot 



ST: LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
lntergovernmenlal 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Earnings on investments 
Gifts and contrbutions 
hliscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Commissioners 
Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total comn~issioners 
Counly administrator 

Personnel services 
Other operating 
Capi'al outlay 

Total county administrator 
iltergovernmental affairs 

Personrel services 
Other operating 

Tala1 intergovemmentai affairs 
Planning and research 

Personnel services 
Other operaltng 
Capital outlay 

Total planning and research 
Labcr relations 

Other operatins 
Planning and zoning 

f'ersonnel services 
Other operating 
Cmital outlay 

Total planning and zoning 
Pubiic de!enders 

Other operatlig 
Cox! admir.istrator 

Pe:xmnel sewces 
O t h ~ r  operating 
Capital c u t w  

Tolal c3un administrator 
Examiner of titles 

i3ersonnel Servtces 
Other operating 

Tolal examiner of :itles 
County attorney 

Personnel sewices 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

'Totai courty at!orrr?y 
Subto!al 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

=OR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Budgeled Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Budgetary Basis - Over (Under) - -- 

The notes lo the financial statement are an integral part of this satenienr. 
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ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under)- 

- Budgeted Amounts 
Actual Amounts 

- Original -- - Final Budgetary Basis 
EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) 

Law library 
Other operating 

Cot& auditor 
Personnel services 
O!her operating 
Capital outlay 

Total county au3itor 
Data processing 

Other operating 
County assessor 

Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total county assessor 
Purchasing 

Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total purchasing 
Mirrofilmino . . 

Personnel servlces 
Other cperating 

Total rn~crof;lming 
Recorder 

Persmnel servlces 1,273.109 
Other operating 273,974 
Capital outlay .- 42,300- 

Total recorder 1,589,383 
Surveyor 

Personnel servlces 758.869 
Other operating 107.386 
Capital outlay - 8 2 9 L  

Total surveyor 874 546 
Ciml service 

Personnel services 993.026 
Other operating 334,003 
Capital outlay .- i5.000- 

'iotai civil service .. 1.342.02L 
'Jeternn's sevise 

Personnel services 562,462 
CRher o~erating 71,373 
Capital outlay .. 

Total ,veteran's sorvicc 633.83; 
Port authaily 

Other operating 42,502- 
Electtons 

C)lhei operatirg 10.753 
Capital outlay .- 1,003 

Total elections 11.75% 
Subtotal 13,143,738 

The nctes to the financial statement are aP integral part of It15 statement. 

-- (5.9701 
(339.493. 

continued 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Budgoted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Budgetary Basis . Over (Under) 
EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) 

General government 
Cowthouses 

Personnel Sewices 
Other werating 
Capital outlay 
Deb! Service 

Prinupai 
Total wurlhwses 

Employee training 
Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total employee training 
Parking ramp 

Personnel Sewices 
Other operating 

Total parking ramp 
Town aid 

Other opera!ing 
Total General Government 

Public safety 
Jail buildag 

Personnel services 
Other operatins 

Total jail building 
Sheriff 

Personnel sewices 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

Total sheriff 
Boat and water safety 

Other operatng 
Caaital outlay 

Total boat and wate: s2fe:y 
Medical examiner 

Other owrating 
fiescue squad 

Olhf r operating 
Capital outlay 

Toal rescue squad 
Emergency manapemenl 

Personnel services 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

'Tola1 emergency management 
Ram0 maintenance 

Personnel sewices 
O!her o~etating 
Capital outiay 

Totai radio maintenance 
Emergency ccmmunication 

Personnel sewices 
O:her operatma 

Total emeigency commurricallon 
Sub!otal 

2,495.083 2.600,8'?6 2.599.959 (917) 
278,542- 226,41_7_ .- 224 106.. .. (2.326). 

.. 2,773,625~ 2 827.288 __ 2,824.0& ( 3 ' 2 3  

.. 14,'26J37_ - 15 819,553 1 5 . 4 9 2 . 7 z  .- (326.8211, 
continued 

The notes to the finalcial s:aterrbent are an .nlegral part o i  this slatenlent 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Budgeted Amounts 
Actual Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Undar) Original Final .- Budgetary Basis 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) 
Public safety 

Jail prisoners 
Personnel services 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

Total jail prisoners 
Mine inspector 

Personnel services 
Othe! operating 

Total mine inspector 
Risk management 

Other operating 
Ambulance servsce 

Other operating 
Law enforcement service 

Personnei services 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

Total law enf3rcemenr service 
Enhanced 9-1-1 

Other cperatiw 
Capital outlay 

Total enhanced 9-1-1 
City!Counly antenna site 

Other operating 
Volunteer fire department 

Other operating 
At:wneys forfeitures 

Other operating 
Sheriffs foifeitures 

Other oDeratnu 
Cajital outlay - 

Total Sheriffs forfettures 
Sherifl fines 

Other operating 
Arrowhead Regional Corrections 

lrttergovernmerltal 
Toval Public Safety 

Health 
Adininistration 

Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total administration 
Nursing 

Personnel services 
Other ooeratinQ 
Capital out.ay 

Total nursing 
Environmental health 

Personnel services 
*her o3eratinp 
Capital 0ut .a~ 

Total environmental healtn 
Subtotal 

The r,otes to the financial s:at?rnen! are an integfal pa.? of ttlis statement 

4 1 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

.- Budgeted Amounts - Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) - - Original 
EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED] 

Health 
o u l ~ t h  Commmty Health Center 

Other operating 20.000_ 
American Indian FellowshiD 
Associaiion 

Other 0pera:ing 
Cotlon LandhlliDump Clean-up 

Other 0pera:ing 
Occupational safety 

Personnei services 
Other oDeratinp 
Capital outlay - 

Total occupat!onal safety 479,630- 
Total Health 8.084.734 

Human services 
Emergency shelter program 

Other operatins 
Communitv su3oort continaencv , . - .  

Other operatln~ 50.0:o- 
Family homelessness prevention 
and assistance pr3gram 

Personnel services 
Other aperating 225,020 

Sota: family homelessness preventicn 
and assistance program 

Totai Welfare 

Culture and recreafion 
Memonai Day observance 

Other operating 
Historical Society 

Other operating 
Arrowhead Library System 

Other operating 
Calnvunity fairs 

Other operating 
Depot 

Other operat,ng 
Tourism provotio? 

Other opeamg 
Traii assistance 

Other operamg 
St. Louis River Bridge 

Other operatmg 
Veteran's Memorial Hall 

Other operating 
Hibbing Raceway 

Other operatmg 
'Totai Culture and Re:reatiori 

continued 

T'le noies to the fnanaal statement are an integral part of tills staterren1 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) 
Conservation of natural resources 

County agent 
Personnel services 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

Total county asent 
Youtn task force 

Personnel sewlees 
Other operatmg 
Ca3ital outlay 

Total youth task force 
County fair - north 

Other operating 
County fair - south 

Oiher operating 
Soil conservation - north 

Other operating 
Soil COnSeNaton - south 

Other operating 
Toal Conservation of 
Natural f?esources 

Economic developrnem 
Nonhspan 

Other operating 
Revolvrng Loans 

Other operating 
Tolai Economlc Development 

Total Expenditures 
Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Net change in fond balalces 

Fund Baiance -January 1 

Fund Balance - Decernoe: 31 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

- Budgeted Amounts - Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final - Budgetary Bask- .  - Over (Under) -. 

The notes to the financlai staiernenl are an inrogral earl of tliis statemEnt 



REVENUES 
Taxes 
bcenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MlNNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGETANDACTUAL 
ROAD AND BRIDGE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

EXPENDITURES 
Hignways ana streets: 

Administration 
Persor.nei services 
Other operatinq 
Capital outlay 

Tolal adminlstntioci 
Road maintenance 

Personnel services 
Other operating 

Total road ma:ntennnce 
Road construction 

Other operdting 
Ecuioment maintenance and shops 

Personnel services 
Other operating 
Caplfai ouriay 

ToTal equipment mahtenance 
and S?OPS 

Total ExDenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expend-tures 

Fund Balance - Jatiua~y 1 

Decrease it1 reseved for inventories 

Fund Balarce - Ooceniber 31 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original - Final 

T w  notes to the financai statements are an integral p a w f  this statement 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 
Budgetary Ba= Over (Under) 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGETANDACTUAL 
SOCIAL SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges lor services 
M~scelianeous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Human services 

Administration 
Personnel services 
Other operatirg 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal 
interest and fiscal charges 

Total administration 
lrlcome maintenance 

Personnei services 
Other operating 
Capital outlay 

Total income maintenance 
Social services 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final - Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 

Personnel services 15,296,533 15,390,738 15.269.077 (121.661 1 
Other operating 36,593,763 34,367,226 33,575,797 (791,429). 

iorai soctal servlces .- 51.890.316 49.757.964 48,844,874 - (913.0901 
Total Expenditures 72,980,760. 69,992.435 67.990,211 -- - (2.002.224) 

Excess of Reveni~es Over 
(Under) Expenditures 1340,674) 11.981 1,672,139 1,660,158 

Fund Balance - Jznuary 1 .- 12.797.276 12,797.276 12,797,276- -- 
Fund Balance - December 31 - 5 12,456,602 $ 12.809.257 S 14,469,415 S -- -- - -  1,660,158 

The notes to the finsnciai statements are an iritegml pa r  of This statement 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FORFEITED TAX SALE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
lrilergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Land and tirr~ber sales 
Lllsceilaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Conservation of na!ural resources 
Personnel services 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 

. . . . 
Other operating 951.989 930,512 834,175 (96,3373 
Captal outlay 313.000 325.9Gfl- 251,199 -- (74.7011 

Total conservation of narural resou:ces 4,674;626 4,663,675 4,258.762 - (434.ill3J 

" 

General government 
Total Expend,tures 

Excess of Revences Ove~ 
(Under) Expenditures 1.556 844 (3C7.205) 3.334346 3.642.151 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) 
1 ransfers ost (3.3C8.400) (3,398.400) 

Net change in func balances 1,556 844 !3,7'5,605) (63.454) 3,642,151 

Furid Balance - January 1 484.068 484.0% 484.068 

Furl5 Balance - December 31 $ 2.i40.912 5 (3,221.537) $ - P 
420.614 $ 3,642,151 

The notes to the fnanccal statements are an ntegral part o! ttiis statement 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business, with the intent that cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges. The following funds have been classified as major funds: 

Solid Waste Management - This fund is used to account for the management and 
operations of solid waste activities in St. Louis County outside of the Western Lake Superior 
Sanitary District area. 

Chris Jensen Health & Rehabilitation - This fund is used to account for providing nursing 
home, health, and rehabilitation facilities for the public. 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Invesments 
Delirquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivables (net) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Prepald items 
Restricted assets 

Debt seroce 
Cash and cash eauiva!en-s 
Delinquent laxes receivable 
Deferred charges - issuance costs 
Total currer~t assets 

Fjoncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets 

Financial assurance 
Cash and cash eouivalents 
Investments 
Accrjed interest receivable 

Capital assets 
Land 
Buildings and structures 
Improvements other than buildings 
lvlachinery an.3 equipment 
Linens 
Vehicles 

Less accumulateb depreciation 
Total capllal assets, net 
To!al norcurrent assets 

Total assets 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Chris Jensen Governmental 
Health and Mher Activities- 

Solid Waste Rehabilitation Enterprise Internal 
Management Center Funds Totat Service Funds 

The notes to th% financial statement an? an lritegral part ~f this stalemen:. 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities (payable 
frcrn current assets) 

Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Due to other funds 
Compensated absences payable 
lnterlund payable 
Claims payable 
Due to oIher governments 
Deferred revenue 
Capital leases payable 

Total currenl liabilities 
(payable from currefit assets) 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Chris Jensen Governmental 
Health and Other Activities - 

Sotid Waste Rehabilitation Enterprise Internal 
Management Center Funds Total Service Funds 

Current liajil~ties (payable 
from restricted assets) 

Accrued interest payable 1.310 1,310 
Deferred revenue 1.498 1,498 
Bonds payable 95,000 . - 95,300 

Total current liabiiit~es 
(payable from restricted assets) - 97.808 57,808 

Noncuirent liabilities: 
Compensated absences payaSle 
Ciaims 0avab.e 
Cap~tal leases payable 
Custonier deps~ ts  8,250 
Closure and post-closure ltabi ities 1,169,421 
Revenue bonds payaSIr! 420.000 - - 420,000 

Total noncxrent liabiities 1.405.50~ 1,353 196 346.418 3,105.12: 7,834,094 
Tolal Liabilit es 1.812.102 3.622.814 509,752 _- 14,467,107 - 3,144,668 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets. net of rdated debt 9.0C6.640 4.111.592 508.513 73,926,745 1,732,391 
Res:ric;ed for deb service 27.317 27,317 
Res:ric!ed for Cnancial assuiance 1,353,110 1,353,119 

Adj;stme?t to ref:ecl the consolidation oi internal service fun3 activities related to enterpr:se funds (1,558,5831 

Net assets of buslriess type actlvlt~es S 25,826,036 

The notes to rhe financial s:alsment are an mtegrri: p x l  oi this stalemmt 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Business-type Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

Chris Jensen Governmental 

Health and Other Activities- 

Solid Waste Rehabilitation Enterprise Internal 

Management. - Center -- Funds - Total Service Fund% 

Omrating Revenues 
Charges for ser~ices S 4,821793 S 13.480319 S 3.533.810 S 21,835,922 5 32,474,575 
Licenses and perrnlts 2 425 2.425 
Other 275 7 2 j  186414 7.575 469.714 1,308,478 

Total Operating Revewes 5.099 9 1 k  13,666 733 3,541,365 22,308,051 33,753,053 

Operating Expenses 

Persmal services 

Contractual sewlces 

Materials 

Depreciation 613.16L. 121 306-. - 18.828 _ 753,3<2-, 4W.328. 
Tmal Oseratirg Expenses 5,806 649 14.522 637 3.223.13L 23,552,420 38,251,1336 

Operating I n c w e  (Loss) (706.702) . (855904) - 318.251_ _- (1.244.3591 - (4.497.9831 

Vnoperatlrg Hevenbes (Expenses) 

Taxes 5.250 113205 11 8.458 
Grants 117.607 417.627 
Earnirgs on investments 237.218 237.218 325.31 8 
Interest expense (24 154) (24.154) 
Arri0Tt:zation of bond issuance costs (2.703) (2.7'23) 
Loss or gain on asset disposal - -- - (12.674) 

'Total Nonoperating 

Revences (Expenses) 660 0 7 '  .- 86351. -- - -- 748.426 - 293.144 

Operating income (Loss) Before 

Transfers (48,631) (769 553) 315,251 (497.933) (4.: 74.839) 

Transfer out - - -- - - - (558,OOC). 

Charge in net assets (46.631) (769 553) 318.251 (497.933) (4.732.835) 

Tctal net eszets -January I T?.W2.4111 . :3.545 O& 1,475.fiSri 27.852.552 :!2.183.413 . 

Total riel assets - Decarnbar 91 S 22,7!35772= S 2.775512. S 1,793.33: 3 27.364.6tC- _S '7450,57L - - - -- - 

Change in net asse's 5 (497.933) 

Atl,ustrnent to reflect the conso1;dation 31 internal service hnd  activities related to enterprise Pmds (932.593 

Chaiqe in net asses of business iype activities 

Tne noles lo !lie financ:al statements are an ititegrai part of :lils stalerent 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESC TA 
STATEMENT O F  CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE "EAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 

Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Cla rns paid 
Other receip;s (payments) 

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating actwvties 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

P,oceeds from taxes 
Proceeds from gran!s 
Transfer tothe General Fucd 
f'raceeds from interfwd loan 

Net capila provided by 
noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
PurcP.ase of cap!fal assets 
Principal paia on ca3iWl debt 

Interest paid on capital debt 
IPaymeots on capital teases 

Other receiats (payments) 
Net capi:sl pro\,ided (wed) t y  capital 

and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of !nvestmeiiis 
Sale of inrestments 
irrleresl ard dividends 

Net Caso f'rovided by lnvestin(l Aciivites 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
and Cash Equivalenls 

Balances - January 1 

Balances - December 31 

Detail on Statement of Net Assets 
Cash 2nd cask eqi~ivalenls 

Current 
Restrcxd 

Debt servlce 
NO?CUTI~III 

Resiricled 
Financial Asstrance 

Tota 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds -- - 

Chris Jensen Governmental 

Health and Other Activities - 
Solid Waste Rehabilllation Enterpriso Internal 
Management -- Center Funds - ,- Total Senice Funds 



ST iOUlS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Business-type Activities 

- Enterprise Funds 
Chris Jensen Governmental 

Health and Other Activities - 
Solid Waste Rehabilitation Enterprise internal 

Management - Center Funds - Total - . -  Service Funds 
Reconciliation of werating income (loss) to  net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ (7a6 706! P (855.904) .$ 318.251- 2 (1244.359~ .$ (4,467,987 

Adjustments to reconcile openting income to 

ne! cash provided (used) by operating aciivities: 

Depreciation expense 613 158 121.306 13.828 '53.302 464,328 

(Increase) Decrease Receivables, not a6,133 (754.668) 121.931 (546,554) (1 11.777) 

(Increase) Decrease Due fcom otner governments 7.278 7.278 36.223 

(Increase) Decrease inventories (17.873) (17,873) 48.871 

(increase) Decrease Prepaid Items 4,775 19.407 24,182 44.123 

increase Wecrease) Accounts payable (52.3731 (385C4) 133,991) (174,868) 80.559 

increase (Decrease) Salaries payable '04 (18.635) 110,945) (29,476) 4.794 

Increase (Decrease) Compensared absences payabie 34.266 134.024 (179.611) (11.321) (1 15,307) 

Increase tDecrease) Claims oayable 276.711 

Increase (Decrease) Due to otler governments 1,308 (6,318) (5.010) (5.186) 

Increase (Decrease) Delened revenue (1.956) (1 056) 128.774 

Increase (Decrease) closuie B post closure liabilities 227,318 227.318 

Increase (Uecrease) Customer deposits (.SO) I1501 

Increase (Decreasej Due to ot5er funds 1.670 - . - '%.. --- 
Total Adjusrments 909.824. _ (599.0721 .- (83.310) 227.442 852.1 5 

Net cash provided by operating activities - S 203,118. 3 (1,454,9761 -$ 234,ES- $ ( 1 0 1 6 . 9 3  S (3,615.87OJ - 

NONCASH ACTIVITIES 

Change in fair marker value of inveslments $ 20.635 S - 5 - S - $ 5.970 

The notes to i re  linancial statement are an integral part of this statement 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and which 
therefore cannot be used to support the government's own programs. 

Private-purpose trust funds - The Patients' Escrow fund is used to account for the 
deposit and subsequent return of nursing home residents' trust funds deposited with the 
County Auditor. The County acts only as the custodian of these funds and ownership rests 
with the nursing home patients. 

Investment trust funds - are used to report governmental external investment pools in 
separately issued reports and the external portion of these same pools when reported by the 
sponsoring government. 

Agency funds - are used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely 
custodial capacity. 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 

Accrued interest receivable 

Due from other funds 

Due from other governments 

Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liab~lities 

Accounts payable 

Salaries payable 

Interfund payable 

Due to other governments 
Total Liabilities 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

Private-Purpose Investment Agency 
Trust Fund Trusts Funds 

NET ASSETS 

Held iri trust for pool panicipants 
and other purposes S 69,256- S 19,307,703 S - - 

The notes to lhe financial statements are an integral part of th~s statement 



ADDITIONS 
Interest 

Miscellaneous 

Total Additions 

ST. LOUIS COUNPI. MINNESOTA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Private-Purpose Investment 
Trust Fund - - Trusts - 

DEDUCTIONS 
Refunds of contributions 

Distributions to participants 

Total Deductions 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets - January 1 

Net assets - December 31 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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ST LOUiS COUNTY, IvIINA'ESOTA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMSER 31.2003 

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial reporting policies of St. Louis County conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The following is a 
summary of significant policies. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

St. Louis County was established March 1, 1856. as an organized county having powers, duties and privileges granted counties 
by Minrl. Stat. Ch. 373. The County is governed by a seven-member Board of Commissioners elected from districts within the 
County. A County Administrator is appointed by the County Board. The board is organized with a chair and vice-chair elected at 
the annual meeting in January of each year. The County Auditor, elected on a county-wide basis, serves as the Clerk of the Board 
of commissioners but has no voting privileges. 

As a result of applying the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14 criteria for determining the reporting 
entcty, the following organization has been included in the County's financial statements: 

St. Louis County Housing and Redevelopment Authority (Blended Component Unit) 

The St. Louis County Housing and Redevelopment Authority is headed by a Board comprised of all members of the St. Louis 
County Board of Commissioners. it was established for the purpose of conducting housing and economic development services for 
St. Louis County. The County Administrator is the Execi~tive Director of the Authority. The Authority followsrhe same accounting 
policies as the County. A tax is levied by the Authority, subject to a maximum amount esrablished by the County Board, on certain 
areas within the County to help support the activities of the Authority. 

Separate financial information can be obtained from the St. Louis Counry Auditor's Office. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements ,i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assets) report 
information on all of the rlonfiduciary activities of the County and its component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has beer1 removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrf:e to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include: 1 )  charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided 
by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributionsthat are restricted to rrieeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular tuncion or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietar! funds. and fiduciary funds, even though the ianer 
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, Major individualgoverrimentsl funds and major individualenterprise 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focl~s arid the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statemerits Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not 
have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded wheri a liability is incurred. 
regardless of the tmirkg of related cash flows. Property taxt?s are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of 
the current fiscal persod. Subject to the availability criterion, state-aid highway allotments for maintenance and construction are 
recognized as revenue in the year of allotment. Availabililyfor state-aid allotments is within 90 days of the current fiscal period. 
Expendiuresgenerally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures. 
and other long-term obligations, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes. charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are ail considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the County. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the County, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Road and Bridge Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of revenue sources restricted to expenditures related to 
public works activities. 

The Social Services Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations and financial activities of Social Services Department 

The Forfeited Tax Sale Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale or rental of lands forfeited to the State of 
Minnesota. 

The County reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Solid Waste Management Fund accourits for the activitiesof solid waste operationswthiri the County, but outside the Western 
Lake Superior Sanitary District service area. 

The Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitationcenter Fund accountsfor the activitiesof the Center, a nursing home, and a health and 
rehabilitation fac~lity for the public. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds account for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority activities, the Community Development 
Block Grant activities. the Northeast Minnesota Housing Consortium, the Septic Loan program, and the Forest Resources activities. 

Debt Service Funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long term debt. 

The Capital Pro~ects Fund accounts for building and remodeling projects for governmental acliviries 

The Shoreline Sales Permanent Fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only interest may be 
used to support the Cotmv's program 

Enterprise Furids account for Nopeming Care Center activities (the Center was closed during 2002). Community Food Service 
activities. Lawlory sewices, and Supervised Living Facilities services to other government agencies and various County 
departments. 

Internal Service Funds account for Printing services, County Garage (fleet management) se~vices. Property, Casualty. Liability 
lnsurance coverage, Workers' Compensation lnsurance coverage. MedicalIDental lnsurance coverage. Management Information 
Systems services, Telecommunications services, and Retired Ernployees' Health lnsurance coverage provided to other 
departments or agencies of the County or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The Patients' Escrow Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for resources legally held for r~ursing home residents. 
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The Investment Trust Funds account for individual knvestment accounts provided to another legally separate entity, the State of 
Minnesota, for Taconite Relief under Minn. Stat. 9298.015 and Taconite Production Tax under Minn. Stat. $298.24. 

Agency Funds account for resources held by the County in a purely custodial capacity. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989. generally are fotlowed in both the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict 
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private- 
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financialstaternents. Exceptionsto 
this general rule are payments-in lieu of taxes and other charges between the County's proprietary operations and various other 
functionsof the County. Eliminationof these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 
2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds d~stinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing servicesand producing and deliveringgoods in connection with a proprietaryfunds principalongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds, and the government's lnternal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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D. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Differences between Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets 

The "total fund balances" of the County's governmental funds differs from "net assets" of governmental activities reported in the 
statement of net assets. This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net assets versus 
the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds balance sheet. 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Assets held by escrow agent 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Loans receivable 
Leases receivable 
Interfund receivable 
Due from other governments 
Receivables (net) 
Internal balances 
Inventories 
Capital assets (net) 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Bond interest payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

FUNDBALANCEINETASSETS 
Invested in capital assets. 
net of related debt 
Restricted 
Resewed 
Speciai revenue iunds 
Debt servfce funds 
Capital projecls funds 

Unrestricted 
Designated 
Undesignated 

Total unrestricted 
Total Fund BaianceiNet Assets 
Total Liabilities and 

Fund BalancelNet Assets 

Total Long-term Internal Reclassification Statement of 
Governmental Assets Service and Net Assets 

funds Liabilities (1) Funds (2) Elimination (3) Total 
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(1) When capital assets (land, buildings. equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed. 
the cast of those assets are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets includes 
those capital assets among the assets of the County as a whole. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will not be available to pay for current-period 
expenditures. Those assets (for example, receivab1es)are offset by deferred revenue in the governrnentalfunds, and thus are not 
included in fund balance. 

Adjustment of deferred revenue 

Long-term liabilitiesapplicable to the County's government activities are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly 
are not reported in fund liabilities. All liabilities- both those due within one year and those due in more than one year -- are 
reported in the statement of net assets. Balances at December 31,2003 were: 

Bond interest payable $ 06,581 

Due Within Due In More 

Bonds and notes payable 
Land purchase 
Compensated absences 
Capital leases payable 

One Year Than One Year 

S 4,272.567 $25,182,057- 

(2) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities, such as insurance and printing, to 
individualfunds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of 
net assets. The amourit chargeable to the businesstype activities is shown as an internal balance The Internal balance is due 
from business type activities. 

Internal balance due from business-type aclivties $ 1.538.583 

(3) Reclassifications are used primarily to coridense various receivables and payables info single totals, receivables, net and 
accounts payable and to move reservations of fund balance that are not available for appropriation to unrestrccted net assets. 
Eliminations are to offset interfund receivables and paynbles. 
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Explanation of Differences between Governmental Funds Operating Statement and the Statement of Activities 

The "net change in fund balances" for governmental funds differs from the "change in net assets" for governmental activities 
reported in the statement of activities. The differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of 
aclivities versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds. 

Revenues anc Other Sources 
Taxes 
Licenses aad permits 
:ntergovernmenta! 
Charges for services 
Fines and lorfeits 
Earnings on investments 
Giits and contributions 
Land and timber sales 
Miscellaneous 
Other sources: 

Loan proceeds 
Total 

Expend~turesIExpenses 
Curren! 

General governmenf 
Publlc safety 
Highways and streets 
Health and sanllatlon 
Human selvices 
Culture and recreation 

Conservation of natural 
resources 

Econom~c development 
Debt service 

Principal 
Iriteresr and other charges 

Capltal outlay 
Intergovernmental 

General gsvernment 
Public safety 

Total 
Cther finaxing useskhanges 
In net assets 
Transfers m 
Translers out 

Long-term 
Total Long-term Capital Internal Debt Statement 

Governmental Revenue. Related Service Transactions of Activities 
Funds Expenses (1) Items (2) Funds (3) (4) Totals 

Increase In invento~es -- 282,401 (282,401 ) . - 
Total - (275.539) (282,401 ) 558,000 

Net change for the year $ 3,601,757 $ 2,840,588 $ 7,384.63.1- $ (3,800.240) $ 4,456,7= 5 14 463.4'77 -- 
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(1) Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the County's fiscal year ends, they are not 
considered as "available revenues" in the governmental funds. Similarly, certain aids and grant revenues not currently available at 
year-end are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 

Property taxes 
Long-term receivables: 

Intergovernmental 
Land &timber sales 
General fund 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not 
reported as expenditures in governniental funds. 

Bond interest payable 

(2) When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the resources expended for 
those assets are reported as expendituresin governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. As a result fund balance decreases by the 
amount of financial resources expended, whereas net assets decreases by the amount of depreciation expense charged for the 
year. Changes to capital assets not resulttng from capital outlay such as, contributionsfrom the State and other governments for 
road construction projects, work in progress and retirements are reported as contributions or additional expense. 

Capital outlay 
Depreciat~on expense 

Difference 

Contributions $ 4,387,127 
Additional expense (509,891) 

$ 3,877,236- 

(3) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and printing, to 
individual funds. The adjustments for internal service funds "closes" those funds by debiting or crediting additional amounts to 
participating governmental and business type activities to completely cover the internal service funds. income or loss for the year. 

(4) Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In 
the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not 
affect the statement of activities. Proceeds were received from: 

Septic loan proceeds $ 38.535- 

Repayment of bond principal is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds and, thus, has the effect of reducing fund 
balance because current f nancial resources have been used. For the Counbf as whole, however, the principal payments reducc 
the liabilitiesin the statement of net assets and do not result in an expense in the statenlent of activities. The County's bonded debt 
was reduced when principal payments were made to bond holders. Changes in long-term liabilities(compensated absences and 
capital leases) also result in an expense in the statement of activities. 

Principal payments made 
Compensated absences 
Land purchase 
Capital leases 
Other 
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E. Budgetary Data 

General Budget Policies 

The County is required by Minn. Stat. Ch. 383C, to adopt an annual budget for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Sewice 
Funds. These budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting plus encumbrances. 

The County is also required to adopt a budget for the Capital Projects Funds. An appropriation for expenditwesfrom the capital 
project funds continues in force until the purpose for which it was made has been accomplished or abandoned. The purpose of a 
capital expenditure appropriation is abandoned if three years pass without a disbursement from or encumbrance of the 
appropriation or at the discretion of the County Administrator. These budget periods are not consistentwith the method of financial 
reporting: therefore, comparisons between the results of operations and budgets in these funds are not relevant and are not 
presented. 

The County Board has established the legal level of control for County departments to be at the agency level. County departments 
are comprised of one or more sub-departments (agencies). Each department can spend its agency level budgets on any line item 
within that agency so long as the total agency budget is not overspent. However, no public aid assistance andior personal services 
budget authority may be used for any other purpose without Board approval. The budgetary comparisons included in the 
Governmental Funds subsection of this report demonstrate compliance with the legal level of budgetary control. 

The County Board also authorizes Department Heads to add and delete positionswithintheir personnel complement so long as the 
total full-time equivalent personnel complement does not exceed the total number of authorized positions approved by the County 
Board. 

Transfers of appropriations between departments require the approval of the County Board. Each appropriation, except an 
appropriation within the Capital Project Funds, lapses at the close of the fiscal year to the extent that it has not been expended or 
encumbered. Amounts in funds unexpended at the end of the fiscal year may be carried over from one fiscal year to the next in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Budgets can be amended during the year by the County Board. Supplemental appropriationsor budget reductions are reviewed by 
the County Administratoh office and submitted to the County Board for their review and approval. If approved, they are 
implemented by the Auditor's Offtce as budget revisions. Supplemental appropriations could be required because of several 
factors, includingthe awarding of state and federal grants during the year and the providing for funding for unanticipated program 
requirements. Budget rev~sions were necessary during the year. The effect of these amendments was an increase in budgeted 
County funds of: $7,320.239. 

Procedure for Preparing the Annual Budget 

1. Early each year, the County Administrator meets with budget staff to discuss preparations for next year's budget. A basic 
budget strategy is developed at that time, based on guidelines and policies established by the County Board. 

2.  Budget request forms are sent out to each department Included is a memo from the County Administrator highlighting basic 
guidelines for preparing budget request. 

3. All departments submit preliminary estimates of their requested appropriations and anticipated revenues by the end of May. 
These figures are used to determine the amount of tax levy that would be required to meet departmental requests, and the amount 
of budget adjustments that the County Admrnistrator will need to make during the preliminary budget hearings in order to meet 
goals established by tlie County Board. 

4.  Preliminary budget hearings are held by the County Administrator with each department. These hearings begin about midJune 
and last until about midJuly. 

5 .  The County Administrator's recommended budget is given to the County Board prior to September 15. The County Board will 
certify by resolutionto the County Auditor a maximum proposed property tax levy by September 15th. which will be used to comply 
with the Truth in Taxation provisions of state law 

6. The County Board holds formal public hearings on the proposed budget and adopts by resolution the firial budget and tax levy 
on or before December 28. 
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Budget Basis of Accounting 

Budgets for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year in which the 
commitment to purchase is incurred. Budget to actual comparisons in this report are on this budgetary basis. 

Explanation of  Differences Between Budgetary Basis and GAAP Expenditures and Fund Balances 

Road and Social Forfeited Forest 
General Bridge Services Tax Salo Resources . 

- Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 
EXPENDITURES 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total 
expendituresmfrom the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual $ 71.070,801 $ 47.316.085 $ 67,990.211 5 6,133,762 $ 1,129,165 

D~fferences -budget lo GAAP 

Encumbrances for supplies and eaulpmen: 
ordered but not received is reported in the year 
the order is placed for budgetary purpcses, but 
in tne yearlhe suppliesare receivedfor finamal 
reporting purposes. (685.7751 (307,095) (2,574) (51.452) (48,286) 

Total expencituresas reported on the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental b n d s  70.385.026 47,0,39,030 67,987,337 8,082,310 - 1,080,979 

FUND BALANCES 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "fund 
balances" from the Stalement of Revenues. 
Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget lo Actual 28,822.923 17,925,762 14,469,415 r20.614 7,889273 

Differences - budget lo GAAP: 

Encumbrances for supplies anc equipment 
order but not receivedisreported in the yearthe 
order is placed for budgetary purposes, bul in 
Ine year the suoplies are received for f~nancial 
reporting pxposes. 685.775 307,055 2,374 51.452 48.286 -- - 
Total fund balances as repcrted cn the 
Statement of Revenues, Ex~end!Iiires, and 
Changes In Fund Balances - Governmenlal 
Funds $ 29,508,698 $ 16,232,847 $ 14,472,289 5 472.066 $ 7,937,558 - 
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F. Fund Restatement 

As of January 1, 2003, the County determined that receivables and deferred revenue in the Road and Bridge Special Revenue 
Fund were understated for state-aid allotments. Both accounts were increased by $5,095,181. This did not require a restatement 
of fund balance, in the Governmental Fund financial statements, but the net assets on the Government-wide financial statement 
was restated by the same amount. 

Total Net Assets 
January 1.2003 

As Previouslv 
Total Net Assets 
Januarv 1,2003 

Reported Restatement As ~kstated 
Governmental activities S 322,924,519 $ 5,095,181 $ 328,019.700 

G. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Available cash balancesfrom all funds are pooled and invested in accordance with Minnesota State Statutes. Cash balances and 
pooled investments are at fair value based on quoted market prices. The pool is not subject to regulatory oversight. Fair value 
amounts are determined at year end. The County has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees to support the value 
of the pool. Pursuant to hlinn. Stat. 5385.07, investment earnings on cash balances and pooled investments are credited to the 
General Fund. Pooled investment earnings for 2003 were $1,403,747. Each fund's share of the pool is shown on the financial 
statements as "Cash and Cash Equivalents." For proprietary fund-type statement of cash flows, all change funds and all highly 
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, are considered to be cash 
equivalents. 

Property Taxes 

in September of each year the County Board certifies a proposed property tax levy to the County Auditor. Notices of proposed 
taxes are mailed to taxpayers informing them of the proposed tax on their property and of the time and location of a meeting at 
which the final property tax levy will be established by the Board of County Con~missioners. Subsequentto that meeting but within 
five businessdays of December 20, the Board certifies to the County Auditor the final property tax levy, which generally cannot 
exceed the proposed levy. 

The tax levy is spread on all taxable property based on the value of the property on the assessmentdate. At the time the taxes are 
spread they become a lien on the property as of the assessment date, although they do not become due and payable until the 
subsequent January 1. For the most part, taxpayers are allowed to pay the taxes in two equal installmentson or before May 15 
and October 15 without penalty. Revenuesare accrued and recognized in the year collectible, net of delinquencies. Taxes which 
remain unpaid at December 31 are delinquent. Collections within 60 days after year-end are recognized as revenue and the 
balance offset by deferred revenue. 

Inventories 

Road and Biidge Special Revenue Fund inventoriesconsist of expcndablc supplics held for consutnption and are valued at cost 
using the moving average method. Inventoried items are recorded as expenditures at the time that they are purchased. The 
reported inventories are offset by a reserve of fund balance to indicate that they do not constitute available spendable resources. 

The enterprise funds' inventoriesconsist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are recorded as an expense when used. 
Internal servicefunds' inventoriesconsist of items for resale and consumption and are recorded as an expense when sold or used. 
Inventories are priced at the lower of cost or market on a first-in. first-out basis. 
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Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitationcenter Furid bonds. as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. Also, certain resources are restricted for financial assurance within the County Solid Waste Management Fund. When 
an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, restricted resources are applied first. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges sidewalks. and similar 
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individualcost of more than $5,000 (amount not 
rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimared historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repaws that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are 
not capitalized. 

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are: 

Buildings and Improvements: 3070 years 
Improvements other than buildings: 1020 years 
Machinery and equipment: 5-10 years 
Vehicles: 5-7 years 
Infrastructure: 25 years 

Compensated Absences 

Under the County's personnel policies and union contracts. County employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying 
amounts based on length of service and bargaining agreement. Vacation leave accrual varies from 2.00 to 9.50 hours per biweekly 
pay period. Sick leave accrual varies from 2.00 to 5.75 hours per biweekly pay period. 

Unused accumulated vacation is paid to employees at termination. All vacation pay is accrued when earned in the government- 
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary furid financial statements. The current portion of vacation pay is accrued in the governmental funds 

Vested sick leave is paid to employees at retirement or is used for the payment of employee's health insurance coverage during 
their rerirement. The vested sick leave and t~nvested sick leave likely to become vested (vesting sick leave) are estimated using the 
termination payment method prescribed by GAS9 Statement No. 16. Both vested and vesting amounts are recognized in the 
government-wide proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements as liabilities, but not in the governmental funds. 

Unvested sick leave for all Cour~ty funds in the amount of $10,895,886 (total accumulated sick leave less esrimated amounts of 
vested and vesting sick leave) at December 31, 2003 is available to employees in the event of illness-relatedabsences and is not 
reported in the financial statements. 

Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board's Statement No. 18, AccountinQ Q MunicipalSolid Waste Landfill 
Closure and Postclosure Care Costs, the County has accrued liabilitiesfor closure and postclosure costs associated with future 
closing of its Regional Landfiil. 

State and federal laws and regulationsrequire the County to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and 
to perform certain maintenance and monitoring funct~ons at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosufe 
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these 
closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of the financial 
statement date. The $1,169.422 for the open area reported on the Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund statement of net 
assets as landfill c!osure and postclosure liability at December 31, 2003, represents the following: 
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Postclosure liability 
This IS the liability for post closure costs for the Regional Landfill. 
It is based on the use of 69.33%of the existing open area. 

Closure liability 
This is the liability for closure cost for the Regional Landfill. 
It is based on the use of 69.33%of the existing open area. $608.160 

The County will recognize the remaining $517,336 in costs of closure and postclosure care of the open area as the remaining 
estimated capacity of the open area of the Regional Landfill is filled. The amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all 
closure and postclosure care in 2004. The County expects the open area to be closed in 2007 or later. Actual casts may be 
higher due to inflation, Changes in technology, or changes in regulations. 

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a restricted account to finance 
closure and postclosure care of the last cell that will be accepting waste. The County is in compliance with these requirements, and 
at December 31, 2003, restricted assets of $2,522,540 are included in the amounts shown on the Solid Waste Management 
Enterprise Fund balance sheet as Financial Assurance Restricted Assets - Cash and cash equivalents, Investments, and Accrued 
interest. 

Financial assurance fund contributions necessary to accumulate these funds will be generated from service fees and tipping fees 
on solid waste, as well as from funds generated from the Greater Minnesota Landfill Cleanup fee. This fee is $2.00 per cubic yard 
on solid waste deposited at the landfill. 

Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements. and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilitiesin the applicable governniental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund 
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond 
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements. governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs. 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for 
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative 
management plans that are subject to change. 

H. Federal Audit Requirements 

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 requires the County to have a single, independent audit of its financial operations, 
includingcompliance with certain provisionsof federal law and regulations. This audit requirement was complied with for fiscal year 
ended December 31. 2003: the auditor's reports or1 compliance and internal accounting control will be issued separately. 

I. Use o f  Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptionsthat affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesand disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the repoiled amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual aniounts could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 2. Detailed Notes on  all Funds and Account Groups 

A. Assets 

Deposits 

Minn. Stat. §118A.02 and 118A.04 authorize the County to deposit its cash and to invest in certificates of deposit in financial 
institutionsdesignated by the County Board. At December 31, 2003, County deposits totaled $21,783,391, of which $410.819 
were cash deposits and $21,372572 was invested in certificates of deposit. 

Following is a summary of the deposits covered by insurance or collateral at December 31,2003: 

(Amounts in Dollars) 
Bank Carrying 

Balances Amounts 
Covered Deposits 

Insured or collateralized with securities held by the County or its agent in 
the County's name 19,549,387 19,553,774 

Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial ir~stitution's trust 
department or agent in the County's name 2,229.617 2,229,617 

Uncollateralized 1,131,236 

Total Deposits 

Investments 

Minn. Stat. Ch. 118A authorizes the following Safekeeping Options and Requirements - 
Investments may be held i n  safekeeping with: 

1 any federal reserve bank: 

2 any bank authorized under the laws of the United States or any state to exercise corporate trust powers. including but not limited 
to, the bank from which the investment is purchased: 

3. a primary reporting dealer in United States government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York: or 

4. a securities broker-dealer having its principal executiveoffice in Minnesota. licensed under Chapter 80A, or an affiliate of it, and 
regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission: provided that the governnient entity's ownership of all securdies is 
evidenced by written acknowledgements identifying the securities by the names of the issuers, maturity dates, interest rates. 
CUSlP number, or other distinguishing marks. 

Type of securities available to the County for investment: 

1. governmental bonds, notes. bills, mortgages. iexciuding high-risk mortgage-backed securities), and other securities. which are 
direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities. or organizations 
created by an act of Congress: 

2. any security which is (a) a general obligationof any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated "A" or better by 
a national bond rating service. (b) a revenue obligation of any state or local goverriment with taxing powers which is rated "AA" or 
better by a national bond rating service, or (c) a general obligation of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency which is a moral 
obligation of the State of Minnesota and is rated " A  or better by a national bond rating agency; 

3. commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries that is rated in the highest quality 
category by at least hvo nationally recognized rating agencies and matures in 270 days or less: 
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4. time deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or bankers acceptances of United States 
banks: 

5. repurchase agreements consisting of collateral allowable in $1 18A.04 and reverse repurchase agreements with (a) a financial 
institutionqualied as a "depositoly"0f publicfunds of the government e n t i .  (b) any other financial instttutionwhich is a member of 
the Federal Reserve System and whose combined capital and surplus equal or exceeds $10,000.000, (c) a primary repoiting 
dealer in United States government securities to the Federal Reserve bank of New York; or (d) a securities brokerdealer licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 80A, or an affiliate of it, and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and maintaining a 
combined capital and surplus of $40,000,000 or more, exclusive of subordinated dew; 

6. agreements or contracts for (a) shares of a Minnesota joint powers investment trust whose investments are restricted to 
securitiesdescribed in subdivision2 and $1 18A.04, (b) unitsof a short-term investmentfund establishedand administered pursuant 
to regulation 9 of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, in which investments are restricted to securitiesdescribed in this 
section and $11804A; (c) shares of an investment company which is registered under the Federal lnvestment Company Act of 
1940 and which holds itself out as a money market fund meeting the conditions of rule 2a-7 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and is rated in one of the two highest rating categories for money market funds by at least one nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization; or (d) shares of an Investment company which is registered under the Federal Investment Company 
Act of 1940, and whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, as long as the investmentcompany's fund 
receives the highest credit rating and is rated in one of the two highest risk rating categories by at least one nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization and is invested in financial instruments with a tinal maturity of no longer than 13 months: 

7. agreements or contracts for guaranteed investment contracts if they are issued or guaranteed by United States commercial 
banks, domestic branches of foreign banks, United States insurance companies, or their Canadian subsidiaries with the credit 
qualityof the issuer's or guarantofs short and long term unsecured debt rated in one of the two highest categories by a nationally 
recognized rating agency, and with the provisionthat should the issuer'sor guarantor's credit qualitybe downgraded below "A", the 
government entity must have withdrawal rights; 

8. general obligation temporary bonds of the same governmental e n t i  issued under 5429.091, subdivision 7 $469.178. 
subdivision 5, or $475.61, subdivision 6. 

Funds held in a debt service fund may also be used to purchase any obligation, whether general or special, of an issue which is 
payable from the fund, at such price, which may include a premium, as shall be agreed to by the holder, or may be used to redeem 
any obligation of such an issue prior to maturity In accordance with its terms. The securities representing any such investment may 
be sold by the governmental entity at anytime, but the money so received remains part of the fund until used for the purpose for 
which the fund was created 

Three levels of custodial credit risk for securities are defined by generally accepted accounting principles: 

1. securities that are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name; 

2. securities that are uninsured and unregistered and are held by the counter party's, trust department or agent, in the County's 
name; and 

3. securltiesthat are uninsured and unregistered and are held by the counter party, or its trust department or agent, but not in the 
County's name 

The County has a formal investment policy which provides yurdelines which meet statutory requirements and which in some 
instances my be more restrictive. 



ST. LOUIS COU,VTV, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2003 

Securities 

The following is a summary of the County's securities. categorized into the aforementioned levels of risk at December 31, 2003 

lnvestments 
US.  Government Securities 
Bankers Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Brokered CD's 

Add: 
Minnesota Association of Governments 
Investing far Counties (MAGIC) Fund 
(valued at $1 per share) " 

Deposits 
Cashonhand 

Total 

Governmental Activities: 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments 
Assets held by escrow agent 

Business-type Activities: 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments 

Restricted assets: 
Debt Service 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Financial Assurance 
Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments 

Fiduciary Activities 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments 

Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments 
Assets held by escrow agent 
Total 

(Amounts i n  Dollars) 
Category (I) Category (2) Category (3) - Fair Value 

(Amounts in Dollars) 

Held for External Held for Internal 
Investment Pool Investment Pool 

Participants Participants 
Investment All Other 
Trust Funds - 

19.684 

Separate audited financial inlormation for MAGIC may be obtained from: 

County Funds Totai 
96,500,103 96,519.787 

Minnesota Assoc~ation of Governments lnvestirig for Counties Fund 
d o  Association of Minnesota Counties 

125 Charles Avenue, St. Paul MN 55103 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The following is a reconciliation of the carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents account and the equity in the pool by fund: 

Governmental Activit~es: 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Road and Bridge 
Social Services 
Forfeited Tax Sale 
Housing and Redevelopment Authority 
Community Development Block Grant 
Northeast Minnesota Housing Consortium 
Septic Loan 
Forest Resources 

Debt Service Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 
Permanent Fund 
Internal Service Funds 

Total Equity 
Less: Advances 
Total Governmental Activities 

Business Activities: 
Enterprise Funds: 

Solid Waste Management 
Chris Jensen Health & Rehabilitation 
Community Food 
Laundry 
Supervised Livmg Facilities 

Total Equity 
Less: Advances 
Total Business Activities 

Fiduciary Activities: 
Private-Purpose Trusts 
lnvestrnent Trusts 
Agency Funds 

Caribou Lake Wastewater Agency Fund 
Total Equity 
Less: Advances 
Total Fiduciary Activities 

(Amounts in Dollars) -- 
Equity in Pool Advances - 

Total 
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Loans Receivable 

The long-term loan receivable from the St. Louis County Heritage and Arts Center is $431.334 and is equally offset by a fund 
balance resewed for noncurrent loans account to indicate that it should not be considered "available spendable resources", since it 
does not represent current assets. The interest free loan for the construction of a performing center 1s accounted for in the General 
Fund. The repayment schedule calls for $15,000 annual payments. The Heriiage and Arts Center Board was dissolved in 2003. 
The St. Louis County Board authorized the County Attorney to take steps to secure payment of the loan, but some write-off is 
anticipated. No allowance has been established as of December 31.2003. 

The long-term loan receivable from the Town of Camp 5 is $1,590 and is equally offset by deferred revenue. The interest rate is 
6.5 percent over five years. The purpose of the loan was to give this new townshipstart-up money until it is able to establishits first 
tax levy The repayment schedule calls for nine semi-annual payments of $565 beginning July 1, 2001. It is accounted for in the 
General Fund. 

The long-term loan receivable from Meadowlands Affordable Housing Limited Par7nership is $125,000 and is equally offset by a 
reserve for noncurrent loans. The purpose of the loan was the constructionof a 12-unit affordable housing project. Each year until 
2009, Interest of 2.33% accrues and is added to the principal. In December 2009 and annuallythereafter, interest on the balance 
of the loan (principal an accrued interest to date) will be due. The balance of the loan is due December 3, 2023. The receivabie is 
valued at its discounted amount and is accounted for in the Housing and Redevelopment Authority Special Revenue Fund. 

Included in the Septic Loan Special Revenue Fund are loans under the Minnesota Pollution Control Loan Program 

Minnesota 

Pollution 
Control Loan 

Program - 
Loans outstandirlg at December 31.2003. 

including interest 

The long-term loan receivable from the South St. Louis County Fair Association is $336,641 and is equally offset by a fund balance 
reserved for economic development. The receivable arises from the County financing the construction of new grandstands and 
racetrack lighting and all costs related to these activities. The interest free loan was approved by the County Board on December 
17, 2002. The repayment scheduie calls for annual payments in the amount of $20.000 beginning in 2004 and every year 
thereafter until the $336.641 is paid to the Courlty in full. The Lakehead Racing Associationwill make payments in the amount of 
$7.500 on May 15 and October 15 end the County will withhold $5,000 from the South St. Louis County Fair Association annual 
allocation. 
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Lease Receivable 

St. Louis County leases to the State of Minnesota approxirnately 33.162 useable square feet of space in the Pike Lake Joint 
Maintenance Facility. The total cost of the facility was $7,459,091: depreciation to date is $293,753 leaving a carrying value of 
$7.165,338. The state pays rent of $14,077 per month through August, 2012. The monthly rent is accounted for in the Debt 
Service fund and is used to retire the outstanding bonds. The state also pays 29.5% of the operating costs of the facility. 

The minimum future rentals are: 

Year Ending 
December 31 

2004 S 168,919 

2009-20 12 619,372 

Total 1,463,967 

Due From Other Governments 

The following amounts were due from other governments at December 31, 2003: 

Federal State LocaNOther Total 

Governmental Activities: 
General Fund $ 501,273 $ 637,095 $ 162.862 $ 1,301.230 
Special Reveriue Funds 

Road and Bridge 209.414 11,206,668 186,432 11.602.514 
Social Services 1,407,822 7,459,086 - 8,866,908 
Comniunity Development Block 320.698 320,698 
Northeast Minnesota Houstng Consortium 154.836 154,836 
Forest Resources 

Total Special Revenue Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Enterprise Funds 

Fiduciary Activities: 

Agency Funds 
Total 
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Restricted Assets 

Business-type activities 
Debt servlce 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Deferred charges - issuance costs 

Financial assurance 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total 

Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31.2003 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Governmental activit~es: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,657,357 $ - S - $ 1,657,357 

Construction in progress 4,735,969 - (I,OC6,322j 3.729.647 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated -. 6,393,325 (I.OC6.322) 5,387,004 .- 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and lmprovernents 73,335.796 3,16C,274 (57.800: 76.438,27C 

Machinery and equipment 15,200,356 369.534 (174.731: 15.395.18C 

Vehicles 40.676.905 1.903.814 (908.453) 4 1,672,256 

lnfrastrocture -- 314.508.880 20,185,817 - 334,694697 

Total capital assets bemg depreciated 1143,721,937 25.61 9.439 ('1,140,954) 468,20G,422 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and improvements (26,439,020) i1.515.0021 57,80C :27,896,224) 

Machinery and equipment ( '  1,974,739) (961.301;1 157,932 (12,778,106) 

Vehicles (25,398,C74) (2,433.141) 780.7% :2'7,05C,461 j 

Infrastru~2ure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets. being depreciated. rlet 270,829,753 8.1 29.640 (144.468) 278,614,925 .. - 

Governmental activities, capital assets, net S 277,223.079 $ 8,129,640 S ('1.150.79C) $ 28420: ,929 -- 
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Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land S 363,922 S - $ - $ 363,922 
Construction in progress 494.130 107,042 (601,172) 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 858.052 - 107,042 (601.172) 363,922 

Capital assets, being depreclated: 
Buildings and improvements 12,693.369 601,172 - 13,294,541 
Improvements other than buildings 7,384,387 - 7,384,387 
Machinery and equipment 1,889,780 6 000 1,895,780 
Linens 286.835 (13,415) 273.420 
Vehicles 591,958 11 0.802 702.760 
Total capital assets being depreciated 22,846,329 71 7 974 (13.415) 23,550.888 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings and improvements (3,279,716) (339.565) - (3,629,281) 
Improvements other than buildings (3,948,468) (21 8,730) - (4,167,198) 
Machinery and equipment (1.246.034) (86,330) - (1,332,364) 
Vehicles 1245,545) (108.677) 054.222) - ~-~ 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreclated, net 14.126.566 (35,328) (1 3,415) 14,077,823 -. 

Business-type activities, capital assets, net $ 14.984,618 $ 71.714 $ (614,587) $ 14,447,745 - 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions!programs as foilows: 

Governmental activities 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways 

Health and sanitation 
Human services 

Culture and recreation 

Conserva:ion of natural resources 
Economic development 

Interrial Serdice Funds 

Total depreciation expenses - governmental acrivities 

Business-type activities 
Solid Waste Management 

Ctiris Jensen Health and Rehahilitation Center 
Other Enterprise Funds 
Total depreciation expenses - business-type activities 
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6. Liabilities 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue consistsof taxesthat are not collected soon enough after year-end to pay liabilitiesof the current year, state and 
federal grants and aids received but not yet earned, credlt accounts recetvable balances, and long-term receivables. 

Fund Financial Statements - 
Accounts Aid and Long-Term 

Receivable Grants - Taxes Receivables Total 

Governmental Activities: 
General Fund S 12,000 $ 468,350 $ 1,312,752 $ 469.229 $ 2,262,331 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Road and Bridge 11,707.596 649,913 - 12,357,509 
Social Services 368,831 889,844 1,258.675 
Forfeited Tax Sale 12,076,001 12,076.001 
Housing and 
Redevelopmen! Authority 8,631 8.631 
Forest Resources 63,049 63.049 

Debt Service Funds 169.450 169.450 
Cawtai Projects Fund 28 546 28.546 
Internal Service Funds 868,500 4,140 872.640 

Total Governmental Acliv ties 880.500 12,611,966 3,059.136 12.545.230 29,096,832 

Business-type Activities: 
Enterprise Funds 138 722 19,786 1.498 160,006 

Total $ 1,019.222 $ 12,631.752 $ 3.060.634 S 12,545.230 S 29,256,836 - 

Statement of Net Assets 

Accounts Aid and 
Receivable Grants Total 

Governmental Activities: 

General Fund $ 12.000 $ 468.350 S 480,350 
Special Revenue Funds 

Road & Bridge 4,166,033 4,166,033 
Social Services 368.831 368.831 
Forfeited Tax Sale 

Forest Resources 63.049 63,049 
Internal Service Funds 868,500 4.140 872.640 
Total Governmental Aclivities 880,500 5,070,403 5,950,903 

Business-type Activitic?s: 
Enterprise Funds 138,722 19.786 158.508 - 

Total $ 1,019,222 $ 5,090.189 S 6,109411 - 
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Long-Term Debt 

Disclosure of information about long-term liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows: 
Amounts 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beginning 
Balance 

Bonds, notes, and tax lease obligations payable 
General obligation debt 

Arrowhead J~vonlle Center Remodel 1995 $ 1,155.000 
Capital Equipment Notes 1999 1,700,000 
Caoltal improvement Bonds 2001 13,565,000 
Jail Refundmg Bond 20028 7,558,325 
Capital Eo.uipment Notes 2002C 5.01 9,537 

General obiigation revenue notes 546,204 
Tax lease obligations (I-IRA) 

Law Enforcement Facility 1997 3,915,000 
Total bonds, notes and 

tax lease obligations payable 

Otner Liabilities 
Land purchase 
Comwnsaled absences 
Clatms payable 
Capitai leases payable 

Total other liabilities 
Governmental activities 

long-term liabilities 

Ending 
Additions Reductions Balance 

Due Within 
One-Year 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Bonds Payable 
Seneral obligation oeht 

2002 Jensen - payable from restricted 
assets $ 600,000 $ - $ (85,000) S 515,000 S 95,000 - 

Other ~iabtlities 
Ccnlpensaled absences 
Customer dewsits 
Clos~re and post-closure 
liabi ities 942,103 227.318 1,169.421 

Total other liabilities 2,574.854 417 829 (201,982) 2,790,701 - 105 580 - 
Business-type activities long- 
term liabilities - 3,174,854 $ 417,529 $ ( 286,982) $ 3.305.701 $ 200 580- .. - 

internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilitiesfor them are included as part 
of the above totals for governmental activities. At year end S12.963,043 of internal service funds compensated absences, ciairns 
payable, and capital leases payable are included in the above amounts. Also. for the governmental activities, claims. capital 
leases. and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the major funds. 
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(Amounts in Dollars) 
General obiigarion bonds payabie at December 31, 2002, consist of the followrng issues: 

$1,580,000 1995 General Obligation Bond due in annual installmentsof $50,000 to S175.000 on December I. 
1997, through 2010; interest at 4.0% to 5.20%. This bond was sold to finance the County's portion of a 
remodeling at Arrowhead Juvenile Center, which is operated by Arrowhead Regional Corrections, a joint powers 
board of which the County is a member. 

$7,415,000 General Obligation Jail Refunding Bonds due in annual installmentsof $1,085,000 to $1,360,000 on 
December 1, 2003, through 2008; interest at 3.00 to 3.25 percent, includingunamortized premium of $119.101 
This bond was issued to refund the Jail Revenue Bonds Series 1993A. 

General obiigation capital equipment notes payable at December 31, 2002, consist of the foilowing issues: 

$4,000,000 General Obligation Capital Equipment Notes due in annual installmentsof $740,000 to $870,000 on 
December 1, 2000. through 2004; interest at 4.15 to 4.35 percent. This bond was issued to finance capital 
equipment purchases. 

$14,270,000 General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds due in annual installments of $705,000 to 
$1,280.000 on December 1, 2002, through 2016: interest at 3.5 to 5.0 percent. This bond was issued to finance 
capital improvements. 

$5,000,000 General Obligation Capital Equipment Note due in annual installmentsof $950,000 to $1,055,000 on 
December 1. 2003, through 2007: interest at 2.00 to 2.65 percent. including unamortized premium of $15,563 
This bond was issued to finance capital equipment purchases. 

Genera: obligation revenue notes payable at December 31, 2002, consist of the foli~wing issues: 

$50,000 1998 General Obligation Revenue Note Payable to the Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
(Department) to prov~de the initial funds for the septic system improvement loan program under the Agricultural 
Best Management Loan Program. The terms require repayment to the Depanment after ten years an amount 
equal to the principal repaid to date by the individual borrowers, plus interest on idle funds must be repaid semi- 
annually. After year ten, principal amounts plus interest on idle funds mu$? be repa~d semi-annually. 

$200,000 1998 General Obligation Revenue Note payable to the Minnesota Department of Agricullure 
(Department) to provide the initial funds for the septic system improvement loan program under the Agricultural 
Best Management Loan Program. The terms require repayment to the Department after ten years an amount 
equal to the principal repaid to date by the individualborrowers. After year ten, principal amounts must be repaid 
semi-annually. 

$340,000 2000 General Obligation Revenue Note Payable to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency to provide 
low interest loansto citizensand entitiesof the County for Best Management Practices, including improvements to 
individual sewage systems. The terms require semi-annual repayments beginning June 15. 2002. 

$200,000 2001 General Obligation Revenue Note Payable to the Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
(Department:] to provide additional funds for the septic system improvement loan program. The terms require 
repayment to the Department. an amount equal to the principal repaid to date by the borrowers. After year ten, 
principal amounts must be paid semi-annually. 

Tax lease obiigatjons payable at December 31, 2062, consist of tne ftdlowng issue. 

$5,275,000 Law Enforcement Facilities Revenl~e Bonds (St. Louis Courlty Unlimited Tax Lease Obligation) of the 
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of St. Louis County. Mirlrlesota due in annual installments of S250.000 to 
$490.000 December 1, 1998. through2012; interest at 4.875 to 5.1 percent. The bonds are special obligatiorisof 
the HRA. Under a lease agrc?ement with the HRA, the County is obligated to make payments of basic rent 
sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the bonds when due. 
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Fund Long-Term Debt 

Governmental Aciivities General Obligation Long-Term Debt to Maturity is as follows: 

Year Ending 
12131103 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009-201 3 
201 4-201 8 

General Obligation 

Principal 
$ 4,272.567 

3,518.383 
3,648,688 
3,788.667 
2,866,674 
7,467,895 
3,851,750 

Interest 
$ 1,162.141 

1 .Ol5.O84 
899.174 
776,951 
647,024 

1,948,802 
372,000 

201 9-2020 40,000 
Total: $ 29,454,624 $ 6,821,186 

Business Type Activities Debt Service to maturity are as follows: 

Nursing Home 2003 
Year Ending . 

12131103 Principal Interest 
2004 $ 95,000 $ 15,725 
2005 100,000 12,875 
2006 105,000 9 875 
2007 105.000 6.725 
2008 110,000 3 575 
Total: S 515,000 $ 48.775- 

Business-tyoe aclfi/~t~es bocas payable at December 31, 2003 consist of the fdlowmg issue: 

$600,000 2002 General Obligation Nursing Home revenue bonds due in annual installmenIs of $85.000 to 
$110,000 on December I ,  2003, through 2008; interest at 3 to 3.25 percent. This bond was issued to finance 
remodeling at the Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center $ 515,000 

Land purchase payable at December 31, 2003, consis!s of the foi1ow;ny. 

$429,900 payable to Lake County for the purchase of a 45 percent uridividedinterest i r ~  the Knife River Marina for 
the intention of a land exchange with the State of Minnesota payable in annual installmentsof $107,475 in 2001 
through 2004. the obligation bears no interest, $ 107,475 

The annual requirements to service the land purchase payable as of December 31, 2003, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
(Amounts in Dollars) 

137,475 
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The County's proportionate shares of general obltgation debt and general obligation revenue debt at December 31. 2003, of all 
governmental units which provide services within the County's borders, and which must be borne by properties in the County. is 
summarized below: 

(Amounts in Dollars) 
Percentage 

Direct Debt 
St. Louis County 

Overlapping Debt 
School Districts 
Western Lake Superior Sanitary District 

Underlying Debt 
Cities 
School Districts 
Towns 
Duluth Entertainment and Convention Center 
Duluth Economic Development Authority 
Virginia Housing and Redevelopment Authority 
Arrowhead Regional Development Commission 

Total 

Applicable County Share 
Outstanding to the County OF Debt 

29.969.624 

Lease Obligations 

Operating Leases 

The Countjl is committed under various operating leases for office space, parking facilities, data processing software, office 
equipment, and vehicles. Most of these leases are expected to continue indefinitely or be replaced by similar leases. 

The following is a summary of the operating lease expense for 2003: 

Type of Property 
Rental of oftice space and parking facilities 
Data processing software 
Vehicles 
Communications equipment 
Total rental expense 

Amount 
S 805,916 

457.182 
8,010 

69,991 
S 1,341,099 

Future mininium payments under operating leases, which are not reflected in these financial statements. consist of the following at 
December 31.2003: 

Year Ended - 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 

Total future minimum 

Amount 
$ 1.074.375 

lease payments 
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Capital Leases 

Capital leases of the County at December 31,2003 consist of office equipment and office space as shown beiow. 

T v ~ e  of Property 
Office equipment 
Maintenance facility 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Carrying Value 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 69,798 
1,337,796 

(39,956) 
$ 1,367,638 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments at December 31,2003: 

Year Ending 
31-Dec 
2004 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 98,514 

Total future minimum lease payments 786,465 

Less: Amount representing interest (182.006) -. 

Present value of future minimum lease 

Construction Commitments 

At December 31,2003. the County had construction commitments as follows: 

(Amounts in Dollars) -- 
Required 

Hibbing courthouse improvements 
Duluth counhouse HVAC and electrical 

Total 

Authorized Expended Further 

Projects to Date Commitments Financing 
772,501 760.920 11,581 

3.041.918 2.968 727 73,191 - 
3,814.419 3,729,647 84,772 - - 
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Contingent Liabilities 

$2,710,000 1995 State of Minnesota Duluth Airport Lease Revenue Bonds (St. Louis County Secured) Series 1995 E dated May 1. 
1995, and due in annual installmentsof $285,000 to $405.000 on August I ,  1997, through August 1 .  2004; interest at 4.9% to 
5.6%. Under the terms of a lease agreement between the Duluth Economic Development Authority, lessor, and Northwest 
Airlines. lnc., a Minnesota Corporation, lessee. the lessee agrees to pay to the lessor when due all scheduled principal and interest 
on the bonds, except capitalized interest. The bonds are further secured by a mortgage lienon and security interest in ihe project 
and by a security interest in additional collateral pledged by the airlines; all of this additional security is subject to a variety of prior 
claims. The Trustee is also holding a reserve of $43,807 remitted by St. Louis County. The reserve is to be used only in case of 
default in the payment of lease payments by the Airlines. The cash interest earned on the deposit is remitted to the County each 

year and the deposit is to be returned to the County when the bonds are defeased. The principal remaining on the issue at 
December 31, 2003. is $405,000 and all payments have been made timely. The Trustee is holding in the Bond Redemption 
Account approximately $1.3 million in unspent construction funds which will be used to retire the debt. The bonds are not callable. 

S1,899.920 County General Obltgation Reserve Fund Demand Note to Trustee. In order to establishthe statutoiy reserve required 
for the 1995 State of Minnesota Duluth Airport Lease Revenue Bonds Series 1995 C, dated May 1, 1995, the County executed a 
General Obligation Reserve Fund Demand Note payable to the Trustee of the Series C Bonds for $1,899,920. The payment is to 
be made by the County only in case of a default on a lease agreement between the Duluth Economic Development Agency and 
Northwest Airlines, Inc., a MinnesotaCorporation. The County collateralized the Nole with a pledge of its future state aids. In the 
event that the anticipated annual state aid payments to the County should decrease to a level below $1,699,920, the County is 
obligated to pledge substitutecollateral in a form that is acceptable to the State of Minnesota. The Note will expire when the bonds 
are defeased, which according to the debt service schedule, will occur in the year 2014. However, a large balloon payment is due 
in that year and if the issue is refunded, the note will be continued until the refunding issue is defeased. 

Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County maintains three internal service funds to account for and finance its 
purchased insurance and uninsured risks of loss. In none of the past three years did the County have a loss exceeding coverage 
for purchased insurance. lnsurance coverage has not significantly changed from the prior year. 

The Property, Casualty, Liability lnsurance Fund covers claims and judgments against the County, including administrative 
expenses and expenses for third-party coverage. All risk, except fire and property damage to major structures is assumed. 
Maximum third-party coverage for property damage is limited to the estimated value of the property. No claims have exceeded 
coverage. Premiums are charged to other County funds on the historical basis and are repolted as quasi-external transactions. 
The estimated liability at year end is based on a case-by-case evaluation by the County Attorney's Office and is based on the 
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liabilityfor claims be reported 
if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financ~al statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The County Attorney's Office 

estimated settlements to be $537,108 at December 31, 2003, for various cases considered reasonably possible lossesto 
the County. This alnour~t is not reflected in the financial statements. 

The balorkefs' Compcnsation Insurance Fund Covers workers' compensation claims up to 5'1,400,000 per s~ngle loss occurrence. 
At that point the County is covered tor losses by the Workers' Compensation Reinsurance Association, an organzation created by 
Minnesota statutt?s in 1979 to implement a mandatory program of reinsurancefor workers' compensation liability risks in the State 
of Minnesota for losses occurring on or after October 1, 1979. The Association provides full indemnification for the County for 
claims arising under Minn. State. Chapter 176 (2002) in excessof the $1 ;440.000 retention limit. The estimated liabilityfor workers' 
compensation reported in the Fund is based on a case-by-case examination cf clainis filed through December 31. 200'3, and is 
consistent with the requirements of Governmental Standards Board Statement No. 10 which requires that a liability for claims be 
reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred 
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at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estmated. The estimated liability 
for claims payable at year end is present valued at 1.45%. This percentage is the average investment yield for the first two 
months of the subsequent year. The activities of the Fund are supported by premiums from County funds which have personnel; 
the premtums are based on historical costs and are reported as quasi-external transactions. A portion of the premiums is for the 
administrative costs and reinsurance costs which are paid from the Fund; a portion of the premiums is for the provision for 
exoected future catastroohic losses. 

The MedicaliDental lnsurance Fund covers medical and dental expenses incurred by the County employees, dependents, and 
retirees, including the costs of claims management by a third party administrator and the cost of an insurance consultant. 
Premiums include a provision for stop-loss insurance and administrative expenses and are based on anticipated claims and 
available net assets. The County carries individual-specificstop loss insurance for claims that exceed $750,000 per year per 
employee contract. All County funds with personnel are charged for the County's share of premiums for employees and these 
charges are reported as quasi-external transactions. 

Employees contribute a share of the premiums from payroll deductions; premiums for retirees are paid for in part by other County 
funds and in part by the retirees themselves. The liabilityat year end is an actuarial calculation by the third party administrator: it 
includes a reasonable provision for incurred but not reported claims and is consistent with the provision of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if informatcon prior to the 
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated 

Changes in the funds' claims liability amounts during 2002 were: 
(Amounts in Dollars) 

Property, Workers' Medical1 
Casualty, & Compensation Dental 

Liability Insurance Insurance 

Insurance Fd Fund Fund 
401,558 4,993.346 2,012.668 
486,732 2,866 003 18,956.470 

(275,917) (1,796.262) - (18,674,571) 

Beginning of fiscal year liability for claims 
Current year claims and changes in estmates 

Claim payments 

Balance of claims payable at fiscal year end 

Changes in the funds' claims liability amounts during 2003 were: 
(Amounts in Dollars) 

Property, Workers' Medical1 
Casualty, & Compensation Dental 

Liability Insurance Insurance 

Beginnirlg of fiscal year liability for claims 

Current year claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Balance of claims payable at fiscal year end 

Insurance - Fd Fund Fund 

612.373 6,063,087 2,294;167 
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Retirement Plan 

Plan Description 

All full-time and certain part-time employees of St. Louis County are covered by defined benefit pension plans administered by the 
Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). The PERA administers the Public Employees Retirement Fund, 
the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund, and the Public Employees Correct~onal Fund, which are cost-sharing, multiple- 
employer retirement plans. These plans are established and administered in accordance wcth Minn. State. chs. 353 and 356. 

Public Employees Retirement Fund members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members 
are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan. All 
police officers, fire fighters, and peace officers who qualify for membership by statute are covered by the Public Employees Police 
and Fire Fund. Members who are employed in a county correctional institution as a correctional guard or officer, a joint 
jailerldispatcher, or as a supervisor of correctional guards or officers or of joint jailersldispatchers and are directly responsible for 
the direct security, custody, and control of the county correctional institutionand its inmates, are covered by the Public Employees 
Correctional Fund. 

The PERA provides retirement beneMs as weli as d~sab~lity benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon death of eligible 
members. Benefits are established by state statute and vest after three years of credited servtce. The defined retirement benefits 
are based on a member's highest average salary for any flve successive years of allowable service. age, and years of credit at 
termination of service. 

Two methods are used to compute benefits for Coordinated and Sasic Plan members. The retiring member receivesthe higherof 
a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method I) or a level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1 ,  the annuity accrual rate for 
a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining 
year. For a Coordtnated Plan member the annuity accrual rate is 1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first ten years and 
1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salaly for Basic Plan 
members and 1 7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund 
Members, the annuity accrual rate is 3 percent for each year of service. For Public Employees Correctional Fund members, the 
annuity accrual rate is 1.9 percent for each year of service. 

For ail PERA members hired prior to July 1, 1989. whose annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annuity is available when age 
plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is 55 for Public Employees Police and Fire Fund and Public Employees 
Correctional Fund members and 65 for Basic and Coordinated Plan members hired prior to July, 1 1989. Normal retirement age is 
the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated Plan members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A 
reduced retirement annuity is also available to eligible rnembers seeking early retirement. 

There are different types of annuitiesavailable to members upon retirement. A single life annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases 
upon the death of the retiree; no survivor annuity is payable. Also available are various types of joint and survivor annuity options 
that will be payable over joint lives. Members may also leave their cantributions in the fund upon termmation of public service in 
order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Refunds of contributionsare availableat any time to members who leave 
public service, but before retirement benef~ts begin. 

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active plan participants. 
Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not yet receiving them are bound by the provisionsin effect at 
the time they last terminated public service 

The PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includesfinancial statements and required supplementary information for 
the Public Employees Retirement Fund, the Public Err~ployees Police and Fire Fund, and the Public Employees Correctional Fund 
That report rnay be obtained on the web at mnpera.com, by writing to PERA, 60 Empire Drive, Suite 200, Saint Paul. Minnesota 
55103-2088, or by calling (651) 296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026. 
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Funding Policy 

Pension benefits are funded from member and enlployee contributionsand income from the investment of fund assets. Minn. Stat. 
ch. 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These statutes are established and amended by the state 
legislature. The County makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount required by state statutes. Public 
Employees Retirement Fund Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members are required to contribute 9.10 and 5.10 
percent, respectively, of their annual covered salary. Public Employees Police and Fire Fund members are required to contribute 
6.2 percent of their annual covered salary. Public Employees Correctional Fund members are required to contribute 5.83 percent 
of their annual covered salary. 

The County is required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 

Publtc Employees Retirement Fund 
Basic Plan Members 
Coordinated Plan Members 

Public Employees Police and Fire Fund 9.30% 

Public Employees Correctional Fund 8.75% 

The County's contributionsfor the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002. and 2001, for the Public Employees Retirement Fund, 
the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund, and the Public Employees Correctional Fund were: 

Public Employees Public Employees Public Employees 
Retirement Fund Police & Fire Fund Correctional Fund 

2003 $4,706,789 $645,071 $393.767 
2002 4,759,163 612,733 373,084 
2001 4,414,620 620,855 345,447 

These contribution amounts are equal to the contractually required contributions for each year as set by state statute. 

lnterfund Receivables. Payables, and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2003, is as follows: 

Due From/To Other Funds: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund 
Patamls' Escrow Prlvate Purpose Trust Fund Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation 

Enterprise Fund 
lnterfund Receivables/Payables: 

Amount 

Receivable Fund .- Payable Fund Aniount 
Major funds 

General Forfeited Tax Sales Fund $ 841.884 
Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation 

Center Enterprise Fund 1.480.067 
Nonmajor governmental fund 

Northeast Minnesota Housing 
Consortiurn Special Revenue Fund 9,972 

Fiduc~ary fund 
Caribou Lake Waste Water 

Agency Fund 13,000 
Total $ 2.344.923 - 
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Interfund Transfers: 

Major fund 
General 

Nonmajor governmental fund 
Forest Resources 

Total Transfers Out 

Nonmaior 
Major ~overnmental Internal Service Funds 

~ a n a g e m e y  
Forfeited Forest County Information Total 
Tax Sale Resources Garage Systems Transfers In 

$ 1,712,958 $ 5.000 $ 308,000 $ 250,000 $ 2,275,958 

The transfers from the Forfeited Tax Sale Fund were to apportion that fund's net proceeds for the year as prescribed by law. 

The transfers from the Forest Resources Fund was the return of a prior year transfer not used. 

The transfers from the County Garage Fund was to move cash per County Board resolution. 

The transfers from the Management information Systems Fund was to provide a State grant match 

Note 3. Joint Ventures 

Arrowhead Regional Corrections 

Arrowhead Regional Corrections is governed by an eight-member board composed of a member appointed from each of the 
participating counties' boards of commissioners, except for St. Louis County. which has three members from its board. In addition. 
the right to have an additional member is annually rotated among Carlton. Cook. Koochiching, and Lake Counties. The County 
records all the financtal transactions for Arrowhead Regional Corrections through its Arrowhead Regional Corrections Agency 
Fund. Its deposits and investments are included in the County's foregoing note on deposits and investments. 

Arrowhead Regional Corrections is financed through state grants and contributionsfrom the participating counties. During 2002, 
(the most recent available), county contributions were in the following proportion: 

Carlton County 8.42% 
Cook County 1.44% 
Koochiching County 2.07% 
Lake Co~mty 2.25% 
St. Louis County 85.32% 

Total 10000% - 

St. Louis County provided $9.332.649 in funding during 2003. Separate financial information can be obtained from: 

Arrowhead Regional Corrections 
Room 319 St. Louis County Courthouse 
Duluth, Minnesota 55802 

A summary of the financial information of Arrnwhead Reg~onal Corrections for the year ended December 31. 2002. (the most 
recent available), excluding general fixed assets of $9,276,177. and general long-term debt of $3,762,451 was: 

Total Assets $ 3,504,772 
Total Liabilities 1,167,634 
Total Fund Equity 2.337.138 
Total Revenues 18,556,737 
Total Expenditures 18,204,165 
Increase (decrease) 

in Fund Balance S 336232 
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Community Health Services Board 

Carlton, Cook. Lake, and St. Louis Counties entered into a joint powers agreement. operating the Carlton, Cook. Lake, and St. 
Louis County Community Health S e ~ i c e s  Board. This agreement is entered into under the authority of the Community Health 
Services Act and is pursuantto the provisionsof Minn. Stat. 5471.59. The Community Health Services Board is composed of nine 
members. Carlton, Cook, and Lake County Boards of Commissioners. each appoints two members; the St. Louis County Board of 
Commissioners appoints three members. Finanang is obtained through federal and state grants. St. Louis County provided no 
fundirlg to this organization during 2003. 

A summary of the financial information of the Community Health Services Board for December 31. 2002. (the most recent 
available) excluding general fixed assets of $13,776, and general long-term debt of $1.206, is: 

Total Assets $ 554,657 
Total Liabilitres 497,280 
Total Fund Equity 57,377 
Total Revenues 3,006,145 
Total Expenditures 2,993,783 
Increase (decrease) 

in Fund Balance $ 12,362 

Separate financial information can be obtained from: 

Carlton, Cook, Lake, and St. Louis Counties 
Comrnunity Health Board 
325 South Lake Avenue 
Duluth, Minnesota 55802 

Regional Railroad Authority 

The St. Louis and Lake Counties Regional Railroad Authority was established under the Regional Railroad Authorities Act, Minn. 
Stat. s398A.03. It is governed by a Board composed of three members from the St. Louts County Board of Conlmissioners and 
two Inembers from Lake County Board of Conim~ssioners. St. Louis County is the fiscal agent for the Railroad Authority and all of 
its financial transactions are recorded in the County Regional Railroad A~~thority Agency Furid. Financing is obtained through a tax 
levy, and federal, state and local grants or participation. St. Louis County provided no funding to this organization during 2003. 

A summary of the financial information of the Regional Railroad Authority for the year ended December 31, 2002, (the most recent 
available) excluding general fixed assets of $1,670,733, and general long-term debt of $4.980 is. 

Total Assets $ 1,208,847 
Total Liabilities 113.214 
Total Fund Equity 1,095,633 
Total Revenues 1,257.215 
Total Expenditures 1,182,735 
Increase (decrease) 

in Fund Baiance $ 74,480 

Separate financial informarion can be obtained from 

St. Louis & Lake Courtties Regional Railroad Authority 
Northland Office Center 
307 South First Street, Room 113 
Virginia, Minnesota 55792 
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Northeast Minnesota Office of Job Training 

The Counties of Aitkin, Carlton. Cook. Itasca, Koochiching. Lake, and St. Louis entered into joint powers agreement pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. 5471.59 for the purpose of developing and implementing a private and pubiicjob training program. The United States 
Congress through the Job Training Partnership Act of 1982 authorized states to establish "service delivery area" to provide 
programs to achieve fullemployment through the use of grants. The counties identified above are defined as such "service delivery 
areas" and the Northeast Minnesota Office of Job Traming is designated as the grant recipient and administrator for such service 
delivery area. The County is not a funding mechanism for this organization. 

The governing body is composed of seven members, one from the board of commissioners of each of the participating counties 

A summary of the financial information of Northeast Minnesota Office of Job Training'sfunds for the fiscal year June 30. 2003. 
excluding general fixed assets of 5553,623 and general long-term debt of $705,881 was: 

Total Assets $ 1,941,993 
Total Liabilities 334,283 
Total Fund Equity 1,607,710 
Total Revenues 7,545.147 
Total Expenditures 7,415,525 
lncrease (decrease) 

in Fund Balance $ 129,622 

Separate financial information can be obtained from: 

Northeast Minnesota Office of Job Training 
820 North Ninth Street, Suite 200 
Virginia, Minnesota 55792 

Northern Counties Land Use Board 

Northern Counties Land Use Board was established through a joint powers agreement pursuant to Minn. Stat. 5471.59 for the 
purpose of helping to formulate land use plans for the protection. sustairlable use, and development of lands and natural resources. 

The joint powers are the Countiesof Cook. Itasca, Koochiching, Lake. Lake of the Woods. and St. Louis. Three elected county 
commissionersfrom St. Louis County and two from each of the other counties comprise the membership of the Board. St. Louis 
County handles all of the financial transactionsfor this organization through its Northern Counties Land Use Board Agency Fund. 
St. Louis County provided $3.750 in funding during 2003. A summary of the tinancial information of Northern Counties Land Use 
Board for the fiscal year ended December 31. 2002. (the most recent available) is: 

Total Assets $ 21.821 
Total Liabilities 1,632 
Total Fund E q ~ t y  20,189 
Total Revenues 47 500 
Total Expenditu~es 28911 
lncrease (decrease) 

in Fund Balance 5 18 589 

Separate financial information can be obtained from: 

Northern-Counties Land Use Board 
Rooni 607 Government Services Centel 
320 'West Second Street 
Duluth. Minnesota 55802 
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Minnesota Counties Information Systems (MCIS) 

The Countiesof Aitkin, Carlton. Cass, Chippewa, Cook, Itasca, Koochiching, LacQui Parle. Lake, Sherburne, and St. Louis entered 
into a joint powers agreement pursuantto Minnesota Stat. $471.59, for the purpose of operating and maintaining data processing 
facilities and management mformation systemsfor use by its members. 

MCIS isgoverned by an eleven member board. composed of a member appointed by each of the participating counties'boards of 
commissioners. Financing is obtained through user charges to the members. Cass County is the fiscal agent for MCIS. 

A summary of the financ~al information of Minnesota Counties information System's funds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2002, (the most recent available) was: 

Total Assets $ 555,861 
Total Liabilities 244,987 
Total Fund Equity 310,874 
Total Revenues 1,728,440 
Total Expenditures 1,771.971 
Increase (decrease) 

in Fund Balance $ (43.531) 

Separate financial information can be obtained front: 

Minnesota Counties Information Systems 
413 Southeast 7th Avenue 
Grand Rapids, MN 55744 

Duiuth Area Family Service Collaborative 

The Duluth Area Family Service Collaborative was established pursuant to fvlinn. Stat. 51240.23. The Collaborative iricludes St. 
Louis County, Independent School District No. 709, Arrowhead Regional Corrections, and the City of Duluth. The purpose of the 
Collaborative is to improve the lives of families and children through efforts focused on prevention and early intervention. The 
Collaborative seeks to empower parents and families to solve their own problems through support, information, shll building, and 
advocacy. 

Control of the Collaborative is vested in a Board of Directors. The County has one member on the Board. Financing is provided by 
state and federal grants. appropriations from the Collaborative members. and tniscellaneousrevenues. St. Louis County provided 
no funding to the Collaborative during 2003. St. LOUIS County is the fiscal agent for the Collaborative which is accounted for in ihe 
Duluth Area Family Service Collaborative Agency Fund. A summary of financ~al information of the Collaborative for the year ended 
December 31. 2003, is: 

Total Assets $ 83,382 
Total Lmbilities 
Total Fund Equity 83,382 
Total Revenues 107.548 
Total Expendttures 110,169 
Increase (decrease) 

in Fund Balance S (2.621) 

Separate financial information can be obtained from the St. Louis Courity Auditor's Office. 
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Minnesota Community Capital Fund 

The County is a Class A member of the Minnesota Community Capital Fund (MCCF). The MCCF was established to address 
unmet development financing needs of communities and economic development organizations throughout Greater Minnesota by 
pooling local revolving loan fund resources and providtng professional management services to support local efforts. The MCCF is 
designed to provide its members with greater flexibility and the capacity to originate multiple loans that are much larger than would 
be oossible with limited local resources. 

Note 4. Summary of Significant Contingencies and Other Items 

Claims and Litigation 

The County, in connection with the normal conduct of its affairs, is involved in various claims, judgments, and litigation. The County 
Attorney estimates that the potential claims against the County not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not 
materially affect the financial statements of the County. 

Participation in the Medicaid reimbursement program requires field audits of the Chris Jensen Health and Rehabilitation Center 
Enterprise Fund nursing home records, and review of its compliance with applicable rules and regulations, by the Minnesota 
Department of Human Services at least once every four years. Based on the resultsof these audits, current year revenues paid by 
the State may be adjusted accordingly. 

Other Postemployment B e n e f b  

In October, 2003, the County Board approved an early retirement incentive plan for current employees and elected officials who 
meet the following criteria: 

The employee is at least age 55, has a minimum of five years of service with the County, and a 
combined age and years of covered PERA service equal to 85 or more. 

The employee retires effective November 1 ,  2003, through March 31. 2004. 

The plan offers the eligible retiree continuing County paid single low option health insurance coverage for four years or until the 
employee reaches ago 65 or Medicare eligibility, whichever comes first. 

As of year end, there were seven employees taking advantage of this incentive pian. The County finances the plan on a pay-as- 
you-go basis. For the year ended December 31.2003, the County paid $650 lor these benefits. 
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Management Agreement 

The County has a management contract with Historic Union Depot, Inc. (H.U.D.) which requires H.U.D. to manage the Depot for 
the ultimate benefit of the public; to carry out a program of cultural, recreational, social or similar community services and artistic 
activities. 

The annual payment from H.U.D. to the County is based on the annual operating expensesfor the Depot building. For the year 
ended December 31, 2003. the agreement required H.U.D. to pay the County $10,000 per month beginning May 1, and an 
additiona1$40.000 by August 31,2003, for a total annual payment of $120,000. Subsequent years require $10,000 per month plus 
$60,000 by August31 of each year, for a total annual payment of $180.000. 

The County is required to provide H.U.D. with a statement of actual operating costs within 60 days of year end. If actual operating 
costs exceed the annualpaymentsfrom H.U.D. and the County Board's annual contributionand any rental income received by the 
County towards annual operating expenses, the H.U.D. is responsible to pay this additional amount to the County within 30 days of 
notice by the County. If actual operating costs are less than the annual payments from H.U.D. and the County Board's annual 
contribution and any rental income received by the County towards annual operating expenses, then the County will adjust the 
H.U.D. annual payment for the following year. 

Departmental Trust Deposits 

Departmental trust deposits include funds deposited with various County departments as required by statute or court orders. The 
following is a summay of these trust deposits which are not shown on the combined balance sheet at December 31, 2003: 

Courts 
Sheriff 

Social Welfare 
Recoveries 

Total 

Settlements Held By the Court for Minors 

The Court Administrator, at December 31, 2003 held investmentsfor individualswho have not reached the age of majority These 
investments have a combined face value of $5,380,383 and are not included in the County's financial statements. 

Conduit Debt 

On May 1, 1992, the St. Louis County Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HGP.),  a blended component unit of St. Louis 
County, issued $540,000 in Fire Hall Lease Certificates of Partrcipation to finance the constructionof a fire hall in the Town of Rice 
Lake, Minnesota. The St. Louis County HRA holds title to the land; the Township makes rental payments equal to debt service on 
the Certificates to Western National Bank of Duluth, as escrow agent, pursuant to a lease purchase agreement for the project. 
between the St. Louis County HKA as Lessor and the Township as Lessee. The Ce~tificates mature on May 1, 1993, through May 
1. 2007, and bear interest of 4.50% to 7.00%. The County has no obligation for debt service on the Certificates, which do not 
constitute a pledge of the full faith and cred~l or taxing power of the County. At December 31. 2003, the principal balance 
outstanding for the debt is S200,OOO. 

Tax Forfeited Land Management 

The County manages approximately 900,000 acres of state-owned tax-forfeited land. This land generates revenues primarily from 
recreational land leases and land and timber safes. Land management costs, ir~cluding forestcf costs such as site preparation, 
seedlings, tree planting and logging roads. are accounted for as (:urrent operating expenddures Revenues in excess of 
expenditures are distributed to the County and cities, towns, and school districts within the County accordirlg to state s3atute. 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Housing and Redevelopment Authority - This fund is used to provide funds for housing and 
economic development. 

Community Development Block Grant - This fund is used to account for the Federal Grant of the 
same name. 

Northeast Minnesota Housing Consortium -This fund includes Cook, Itasca, Koochiching, Lake, 
and St. Louis Counties and the City of Duluth. It is not an entity separate from St. Louis County. It 
is used to account for the federat HOME grant with the purpose of developing affordable housing 
initiatives. 

Septic Loan -This fund is used to account for the Minnesota Pollution Control Loan Program 

Forest Resources - This fund IS used to account for the collection and disbursement of proceeds 
from the sale of tax-forfeited properties. 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Continued 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of long-term 
debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Jail Bond - This fund is used to account for the 2002 bonds sold by the County for the purpose of 
refinancing the costs of construction of a County Jail. 

AJC Construction Bond - This fund is used to account for 1995 bonds sold for the purpose of 
financing the expansion at the Arrowhead Juvenile Center. 

Law Enforcement Bond - This fund is used to account for 1997 bonds sold by the Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority for the purpose of financing the costs of construct~on of law enforcement 
centers. 

Hibbing Public Works Bond - This fund is used to account for the 1997 bonds sold by the 
Hibbing EDA for the purpose of financing the costs of construction of a jointly owned maintenance 
facility. 

1999 Capital Equipment Note - This fund is used to account for the 1999 bonds sold for the 
purpose of financing capital equipment purchases. 

Capital Improvement Bond - This fund is used to account for the 2001 bonds sold for the purpose 
of financing various capital improvement projects. 

2002 Capital Equipment Note - This fund is used to account for the 2002 bonds sold for the 
purpose of financing capital equipment purchases. 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Continued 

Capital Projects Fund 

Capital Projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of capital facilities other than those financed by enterprise funds. 

Buildings - This fund is used to account for building and remodeling projects. 

Permanent Fund 

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only 
earnings and not principal may be used for purposes that support the counties programs. 

Shoreline Sales - This fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of land, including 
interest, under Minn. Laws 1999 Ch. 180. The principal from the sale of land may not be expended 
while any interest earnings may be spent by the County Board only for the purpose related to the 
improvement of natural resources. 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Loans receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total Assets 

ST. LOUfS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Noncurrent loans 
Future loans 
Encumbrances 
Debt service 
Er.vironmental trust funds 
Improvement of natural resources 

Unreserved: 
Undesignated 

Total Fund Balance 
Total Liablllties and F w d  Balance 

Special Revenue Funds 
- 

Northeast 
Housing and Community Minnesota 

Redevelopment Development Housing 
Authority Block Grant Consortium 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Loans receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total Assets 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

LtABlLlTlES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Noncurrent loans 
Future loans 
Encumbrances 
Debt service 
IInvironmental trust funds 
Improvement of natural resources 

Unreserved: 
L'ndesiynated 

Total Fund Halance 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Septic Forest 
Loan Resources Total 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Loans receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Noncurrent loans 
Future loam 
Encumbrances 
Debt service 
Environmental trust funds 
Improvement of natural resources 

Unreserved: 
Undesignnted 

Total Fund Balance 
Total Liabilities and Fund Baiarice 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

Debt Service Funds 

AJC Law 
Jail Construction Enforcement 

Bond Bond Bond 

Hibbing 
Public Works 

Bond 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Loans receivable 
Due from other governmenls 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities. 

Accounts payabie 
Contracts payable 
Salanes payable 
Conipensated absences payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Bajances: 
Resewed for: 

Noncurrent loans 
Future loans 
Encumbrances 
Debt sewice 
Environmental trust funds 
Improvemerit o l  naiural resources 

Onieserved: 
Undesignated 

Totel Fund Balance 
Total Laabilities and Fund Balance 

ST. LOWS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2003 

Debt Service Funds (continued) 

1999 2002 
Capital Capital Capital 

Equipment Improvement Equipment 
Note Bond Note Total 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Loans receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contracts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Interfund payabie 
cue to other governments 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved ior: 

Noncurrent loans 
Future loans 
Encumbrances 
Debt sewice 
Environnlental trust funds 
Improvement of natural resources 

Unreserved: 
Undesignated 

Total Fund Balance 
TO@! Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Capital 
Projects Fund 

Buildings 

Permanent 
Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Shoreline Governmental 
Sales Funds 



ST LOUIS COUNPI. MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2303 

Special Revenue Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmenlal 
Eamlngs on investments 
Land and limber sales 
Miscellaneous 

Tolal Revenues 

Northeast 
Housing and Community Minnesota 
Redevelopment Development Housing 

Authority Block Grant - Consortium 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Conservatior, of ratilral resowces 
Economic oevelopmeni 252.448 

Debt servhce 
Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Capital outlay: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

Total expenditllres 252,449 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expencitures - 70,254 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transters out 
Loan proceeds 

Total other financing sources and uses 

Net charge n fund balances 70 254 

Fund Balance - .lanuay ' 664.854 

Fu-d Balance - December 33 $ 735.103 



ST. LOUIS COUNP/, !AlNNESOJA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
intergovernmental 
Earnirgs on investmenrs 
Land and timber sales 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Conservation of natural resources 
Economic development 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Capital outlay: 
General government 
Public safety 
Hlghways and streets 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expendttures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transters ou: 
Loan proceeds 

Total other finarcing sources arrd uses 

Net change in 'und balances 

Fund Balance - Janiiary 1 

Fund Balance - Decemer 31 

Septic Forest 
Loan Resources Total 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MNVNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Debt Service Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Earnings on investments 
Land and timber sales 
Xiliscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Consewatton of natural resources 
Econo~nic development 

Debt service: 
Princioal 
Interest and other charges 

Capital outlay: 
General gavernnient 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiercy) of revenues 

over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers >n 
Trsqsfers out 
Loan proceeds 

Toral other financing sources and uses 

Ne! change in fund balances 

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance. December 31 

AJC Law Hibbing 
Jail Construction Enforcement Public Works 

Bond Bond Bond Bond 



ST LOUIS COUNm, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Debt Service Funds (continued) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmenta; 
EarninSs on investments 
Land and timber sales 
Miscel:aneeus 

Total Revenues 

- 
1999 2002 

Capital Capital Capital 
Equipment Improvement Equiptment 

Noto Bond Note Total 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Conservation of natural resources 
Economic development 

Debt service: 
Principal 
lriferest and other charges 

Capital outlay: 
General government 
Publ:c safety 
Highways and streets 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of reverues 

over expenditufes 43.795 227.81 5- 45,085 452,596 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Loan proceeds - 

Toral other financing soxces and uses- - 

Nel change in funt! balarices 43,795 227,815 45,085 452.5963 

Fund Balince - Januarj 1 141.l91 124.~22. ___  886,715 

Fund Balance - Oecern~er 31 $ 184 986 $ 352,507 $ -- - 45,0%-, $ -- 1,339.31 1 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF  REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Capital 
Projects Fund 

Permanent 
Fund 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Earnings on investments 
Land and timber sales 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Conservation of natural resources 
Economic development 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Capi:al outlay: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and s:reets 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of reveniles 

over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Tiansfers in 
Transfers out 
Loan proceeds 

Total other financing sources and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Func Balance - January 1 

Func Balance - December 31 

Buildings 
Shoreline 

Sales 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MiNNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGETANDACTUAL 
HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

Original and Variance with 
Final Budgeted Actual Amounfs Final Budget 

Amounts Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic development 

Personnel sewices 90,580 98,297 7,717 

Other operat~ng 481,450- 154,152 - (307,2961 
Total Expenditures 552,030- 252.449 (299,581) 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures (199.030) 70,254 269.284 

Fund Balance - January 1 664,854 - - 664,854 

Fund Balance - December 31 S 465,824 0 - 735.108 S 269.284 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA - 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
intergovernmental 
Earnings on investments 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic development 

Other operating 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance -January 1 

Fund Balance -December 31 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY MIA'NESOJA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
NORTHEAST MINNESOTA HOUSING CONSORTIUM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

Original Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic development 

Other operating 770,000 2,318,922_, 935,609 (1,383,313) 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Batance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ - $ - $ - $ -- - 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SEPTIC LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 
REVENUES 
Earnings cn investments - $ - $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Health and sanitation 

Other operating 121.432 

Excess of Revenues 
Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Loan proceeds 

Net change in fund balances (121.432) 

Fund Balance -January 1 558,569 558,569 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 558.569 $ 437,137 

Actual Amounts 
Budgetary Basis - 

$ 7.960 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 

$ 7,960 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MiNNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOREST RESOURCES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) - 

EXPENDITURES 
Conservation of natural resources 

Other operating 905.500 1.1 75.500 1,129,165 (46,3351 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures (475.500) (745,500) (550,549) 194,951 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 1,685,443 1.685.442 (1 
Transfers out (1 9.000) (10,000) (5,000) 5.000.. 

Net change in fund balances (485.500) 929.943 1.129.893 199.950 

Fund Balance - January 1 6,759,380 6,759,380 6,759,380 

Fund Balance - December 31 S 6,273,880 $ 7.689.323 $ 7 889,273 $ 199.950 - 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, IVIINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
JAIL BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Earnings on investments 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 

Original and Variance with 
Final Budgeted Actual Amounts f inal Budget 

Amounts Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDlTURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES 

BUDGETANDACTUAL 
AJC CONSTRUCTION BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Original and 
Final Budgeted 

Amounts 
REVENUES 
Taxes S 145,292 
Intergovernmental 29.108 

Total Revenues 174,400 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 110,000 
interest and fiscal charges 56.095 

Total Expenditures 166.095 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 8,305 

Fund Balance - January 1 50,326 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 58.631 

Actual Amounts 
Budgetary Basis - 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - - -  - 
LAW ENFORCEMENT BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Original and 
Final Budgeted 

Amounts -- 
REVENUES 
Taxes S 442,468 
Intergovernmental 89.572 

Total Revenues 532.040 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 310,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 196,705 

Total Expenditures 506,705 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 25,335 

Fund Balance - January 1 118.061 -- 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ - 143,396 -- - 

Actual Amounts 
Budgetary Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
HlBBlNG PUBLIC WORKS BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OECEhlBER 31.2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 

Total Kevenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Ex~endilures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 

Original and Variance with 
Final Budgeted Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Amounts Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
1999 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT NOTE DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Debt service 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Ex~endilures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Baiance - Januaty I 

Fund Balance - Deceniber 31 

Original and 
Final Budgeted 

Amounts 
Actual Amounts 
Budgetary Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance -January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 

Original and Variance with 
Final Budgeted Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Amounts Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDlTURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES 

BUDGETAND ACTUAL 
2002 CAPITAL EQUIPTMENT NOTE DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Tota! Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance - Januaiy 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 

Original and Variance with 
Final Budgeted Actual Amounts Final Budget 

Amounts Budgetary Basis Over (Under) 
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Nopeming Care Center - This fund is used to account for providing nursing home facilities for the 
public. The fund was closed in 2003. 

Community Foods - This fund is used to account for providing meals and for participants in 
various programs administered by the Social Services Department and other agencies. 

Laundry - This fund is used to account for the costs of operating a laundly facility used by County 
departments and other agencies. 

Supervised Living Facilities - This fund is used to account for services that enable elderly andlor 
handicapped individuals to maintain a degree of independence. 



ASSETS 

Curre?.! assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable (net) 

Inventories 

Prepaid Items 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 

Buildings and strunure?s 

Machinery and equipment 

Llnens 

Vehicles 

Less accumulated ceprecation 

Tolal capital assel (nel) 

Total assets 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

LIABILITIES 

Currenl Ikabilities: 

ACCOlJrltS Dayab!t? 

Salaries payable 

Compensated absences payable 

Deferred revenue 
Total current liahiiities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences payable 

Tot21 11abiI.ties 

NET ASSETS 

Invested IrI capital assets. 

net cf relaled cent 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

Community 

Food Laundry -- 

Supervised 

Living 

Facilities - Total 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY. fvllNNES0 JA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAH ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Supervised 
Nopeming Community Living 

Care Center Food Laundry Facilities Total 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services $ - $ 1,376,489 S 1,106,899 $ 1,050,422 S 3,533,810 
Other 229 3,791 3,555 7,575 

Total Operatmg Revenues 229 - 1,380,280 1,110,454 1,050,422 3.541,385 

Operating Expenses 
Personal services 12.879 775.234 656,696 520,942 1,965,751 
Contractual services 13,548 182.131 235,591 292,809 724,079 
Mater~als 373.1 16 132.266 9.094 514,476 
Depreciation 17,928 900 18.828 

Total O~erating Expenses 26,427 1.330.481 1,042,481 823,745 3.223.134 

Operating Income (Loss) (26,198) 49,799 67,973 226,677 318.251 

Changes in net assets (26,188) 49,799 67,973 226,677 318,251 

Net assets - January 1 26.158 136,509 824,715 487,664 1,475,086- 

Net assets - December 31 . $ - $ 186,308 $ 892,688 . $ 714.341 $ 1,793,337- - - -- . - - 



ST. LOUIS COUNW, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT O F  CASH FLOWS 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers 

Receipts from interfund services provided 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Other receipts (payments) 

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities 

Nopeming Supervised 

Care Community Living 

Center Food - - Laundry Facilities Total - 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of capital assets -- - 11,255 11.255 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 

and Cash Equivaie?ts 

Balances - Janua y 1 367 - .- 89,964 235,860 - 530,444- - 956.635 

Balances - December 31 , S - S 15~1,257 $ 251,876 $ 796.898 _S 1,202,831 .. . - 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to  net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ (26,198). $ 49.799 $ 67.973 $ 226,677 $ 318,251 - 
Adjustrnen!~ to reconcile operatirg income to net 

cash :rovidsd (used) by operating activities: 

Depieciation expense 17,928 900 

(Increase) Decrease Hece~vabies, nel 43,988 56.687 15.612 5,644 

(Increase) Deccease lnvent~ries (2,595) (15,178) 

(Increase) Decrease Prepa~d items 3,820 15,787 

Increase (Decrease) kicour~ts aayabt? (18157) (9,405) (5,857) (562) 

lrlcrease (Decrease) Salaries payable ( I  ,406) (10,547) 1,008 

Increase (Decrease) Compensated absnncej payabie (30,665) (82,723) (66,223) 

lflcrease (Decrease) Deferred revelue - (1.642) 1,776 - (1.19c, 
Total Ad:ustments 25,831 14.494 - (63,212) (50,423) 

Nel cash provide0 by operating actiuit~es S (367) _$ 64.293 $ 4,761 $ 156,254 -=-- -.= - .  - - - --= =--.---= 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business, with the intent that cost (expenses, including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services by specific departments within St. Louis County to other departments or 
agencies of St. Louis County or to other governments on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 

Printing - This fund is used to account for providing office supplies, materials, printing, and postage 
to County departments. 

County Garage - This fund is used to account for the costs of operating a maintenance facility for 
automotive equipment and a fleet of vehicles for use by County departments. 

Property, Casualty, Liability lnsurance - This fund is used to account for coverage of claims and 
judgments against the County. 

Workers' Compensation lnsurance - This fund is used to account for coverage of workers' 
compensation claims incurred by County employees. 

MedicallDental lnsurance - This fund is used to account for coverage of medical and dental 
expenses incurred by County employees, dependents, and retirees. 

Management Information Systems - This fund is used to account for computer services and 
programming services to County departments. 

Telecommunications - This fund is used to account for the County communications system. 

Retired Employees' Health lnsurance - This fund is used to account for retirees insurance 
expenses paid by the retirees applicable sick leave balance at retirement. 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

P r o w W  
Casualty, 
Liability 

- Insurance 

Workers' 
Compensation 

lnsurance 
County 
Garage Printing 

$ 153.366 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts rece~vable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 
Land 
Bu!ldinqs and structures 
Machinery and equipment 
Ve%icles 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Total capital asse; (net) 
Total assels 

LIABILITIES 
Current liatxlities: 

ACcounlS payable 
Salaries payable 
compensated absences payable 
Claims cayabie 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 
Capital leases cayable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrelt !iabiiit:es: 
Compensated absences payable 
Ciairis payazie 
Capital leases payable 

'ro!al long-rern 1i;ibilities 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested lri capital assets 
Unrestr~cted 
Total net assers 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvesfrrenls 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due trom other governments 
1nventor:es 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 

Land 
Buildings and s:ructures 
Machinery and equipment 
Vehicles 

Less accurnuiated deprecsat~on 
T3tal captal asset (net) 
T3ta! assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current I:abilities: 

Acmmts payable 
Salaries payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Clams payable 
Due to other governments 
Deferred revenue 
Capita leases payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent !iabilities: 

Compensated absences payable 

Cla ms payable 
Capital leases payabe 

Total Ion(i.term liabilities 

T W  liabilties 

NET ASSETS 
lnvesied in capital assets 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

ST LOUIS COUNN,  MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

Retired 
MedicaY Management Employees' 
Dental Information Telecomrnu- Health 

Insurance Systems nieations Insurance Total - 



Operating Revenues, 
Charges for services 

Other 
Total 3perafing Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Personal services 

Contractual services 
Malerials 

Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lnwlne (Loss] 

Nonowrating revenges (expenses): 
Earnings on investments 

L ~ S S  Or gain on asset disposal 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2303 

Property. 
Casualty, Workers' 

County Liability Compensation 
Printing - Garage Insurance lnsuranw 

Total Nonoserating 

Revenues Itxpenses) 

Operating fncome (Loss) 

Belore Transfers 

Transters out 

Changes in nel assets 

Ner assets - January 1 

Net assets - December 31 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, 

ANDCHANGESINFUNDNETASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAK ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Retired 
Medical! Management Employees' 
Dental Information Telecommu- Health 

Insurance - Systems nications - Insurance _ Total 

Operating Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 21.105.770 S 3,852,804 S 1.427.110 $ 1,719,985 S 32,474,575 

Otner 795,036 1,605- 1.308.478 

Total Operating Revenues 21.105.770 4,650,840 1,428,715 1.7?9,985 - 33,783,053 

Operating Exgenses: 

Personal services 2.669.548 319,877 3,576,049 

Ccntractual serv~ces 24,738,785 1,323,202 841.476 1 719,985 32,348,334 

Filatcrials 724558 182.812 1,862325 

Depreciation 212,588 90,350 464,328 

Total Operating Expenses 24,736.785 4 929.896 1434,515 1,719,985 35.251 ,036 

Operating Income (Loss) (3,631 .?15) - (279.0561 (5.800) (4,467.983L 

Nonooerating revenues (expenses): 

Earrings on irwestmenls 184.746 305.81 8 
LOSS or gam on asset disposal (16.7ij9) (12.674k 

Total Nonopeia:ing 

Revenues (Expenses) 184,746 - (16.769) ,- 293 144. 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Before Transfers (3,446,269) (295,825) (5,800) (4374.839) 

Transfers out .- (250,000) .- (558.000], 

CPanges in net assets (3.446 269) (545,823) (5.800) (4,732,839) 

Net assets - January 1 -- 12.984.144 1.864 638 .- 1.046.349- 22,153,413 

Net assets - Decem~er 3: $ 9337,875 1.318813 - $  1340,549- $ - - S 17.450.574 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Receipts from irlterftind services provided 
Paymenls lo suppliers 
Paymenls lo employee$ 
Claims paid 
Ott~er recetpts (payments) 

Net cash providec (used) by 
ooeraling activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transter to the General Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of capital assets 
Paymenls on capital lkases 
Other receip!s (payments) 

Nel capixat provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Investments 
Sale of investrents 
Ir?terest and dividends 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activittes 

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Cash 
and Cast Equrgalents 

Balarrces - January 1 

Balances - December 31 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to  net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustmenls lo reconcile operalfng irico~re to net 
cash crovlded (used) by o3eiating aclivities. 

Deprec~alior exoense 
(Increase) Decrease Rece~vables, le t  
(Increase) Decrease Due from other governmen1 
(Increase) Decrease Inbenlores 
(Increase) Dec~ease Prepaid items 
lrcrsase (Decease) Accounts payable 
hcrease (Decreast?) Salaries Davable 

Property, 
Casually, Workers' 

County Liability Compensation 
Printing Garage Insurance Insurance 

. . , , -, .. 
Increase (Decrease) Compensated absences payable (78.2T-2) 10.387 
lncrease (Decrease) Cla ms payab:e 
Increase iDecreaset Due to othw coverr~inenl 11 C?s: , \ ..., 
increase (Decrease) L?eferred revewe ( 5 u  (a67: - -- 

Total Adjusimenls 28.7% 145,302 _ t2.534) 1. > , 2 3 3  
Net cash provlded by operating act~vltles S 40 647 7 206.75L _$ 388.056 & (: ,026,8051 - 
NONCASH ACTIVITIES 

Change in fair rarket vaiue of invest~nents S - S 



ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipls from customers 
Receipts from lrlterfund services provlded 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Claims pard 
Other recelpls (payments) 

Net cash provlded (used) by 
operartng activtties 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfer to the General Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of capita assets 
Payments on capital leases 
Other receipts (payments) 

Net capita provided (used) by capi:al 
and relaled financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investments 
Sale of nvestnrents 
1nle:est and dividends 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activtties 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Casn 
and Cash Equivalents 

Balances - January 1 

Balances - December 31 

Reconciliation of operating Income (loss) to  net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Opera:ing inccme (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 13 net 
cash provided (used) by opsratng activities: 

Depreciat~on expense 
(Incrf:ase) Decrsase Receivables, riet 
(Increase) Decrease Due frarn o t h r  government 
(Iricre?ase) Decrease irventories 
(Increase) Decrease Prepaid Items 
lncif?ase (Df:crease) Aanunls pwpble 
Ir1crf:ase (Uecrf!ase) Salaries payable 

Retired 
Medicall Management Employees' 
Dental Informalion Telecommu- Health 

Insurance- Systems nications Insurance Total 

Increase (Decrease) Cornpensa:ed absences payable 52.580 (15.806) (84,254) ;115.307) 
lricrease (Decrease) Clalrns payable 330.692 275.71 1 
lricrease (Decrease) Due to other gavernmenl (4.1161 l5.!56\ 
Ir~crease (Dscrease) Deferred reven~e 132,639 (1.6991 (718) - - 123.774 

'loial Adjustnienls 383,:77 332,720 58.9Cg 184 254) 
pp .- 852.: 13 

Net cash provided by operatins actiwties S (3,247?,38j S 53,56$ S 53,132 $ 184,254) $ (3.6!5.673 - .- 
NON-CASH ACTIVITIES 

Chanse n 'air market value of investmenls $ (5,576) S - $ S - S 5,970 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciafy Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and which 
therefore cannot be used to support the government's own programs. 

Investment Trust Funds 

Taconite Relief -This fund is used to account for the tax imposed by Minn. Stat. 298.015. 

Taconite Production Tax -This fund is used to account for the tax imposed by Minn Stat. 298.24 



AGENCY FUNDS 

State of Minnesota - This fund is used to account for the receipt and disbursement of monies for 
which St. Louis County is the collection agent for the State. 

Beer-Auctioneer Licenses - This fund is used to account for the funds collected from the sale of 
intoxicating beer and auctioneer licenses by the County and payments to the County and State of 
Minnesota for these licenses. 

Cities and Towns Fines - This fund is used to account for the collection and payment of funds 
due to organized and unorganized townships and cities. 

Taxes and Penalties - This fund is used to account for the collection and payment of taxes, 
penalties, and special assessment collections to the various County funds and taxing districts. 

Payroll Deductions - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of funds from payroll 
deductions charged to all operating funds. Payment by a single check is made to the state and 
federal governments for tax deductions, and to any other organization for deductions not covered 
in another agency fund. 

Series EE Savings Bond - This fund is used to account for the purchase of U S .  Savings Bonds, 
Series EE, by County employees through payroll deduct~ons. Individual employees' payroli 
deductions accumulate in this fund until sufficient funds are available to purchase the requested 
US.  Savings Bond, Series EE. 

Canceled Check - This fund is used to account for checks issued by St. Louis County but not 
cashed by the payee. The checks are canceled and the money is held as unclaimed funds. 

High Voltage Credit - This fund is used to account for the collection of power line property tax 
credit which is then distributed to property owners, with any excess going to the School Fund 
pursuant to Minn. Stat. 273.42. 

Assault Fees - This fund is used to account for f~nes charged to persons convicted of assault. 



AGENCY FUNDS 
Continued 

Arrowhead Regional Corrections - This fund is used to account for transactions related to the 
Arrowhead Regional Corrections operation which contracts with St. Louis County for accounting 
services. 

Community Health Services - This fund is used to account for the transactions related to the 
Community Health Services Board. 

Permit to Carry Firearms - This fund is used to account for fees collected for the sale of permits 
to carry firearms. 

Duluth Area Family Services Collaborative - This fund is used to account for the financial 
transactions of the Duluth Area Family Services Collaborative for whom the County is the fiscal 
agent. 

Local Collaborative Time Study - This fund is used to account for the time study funds received 
from the State to be remitted to the local collaboratives as requested. 

Northern St. Louis County Family Service Collaborative - This fund is used to account for the 
financial transactions of the Northern St. Louis County Family Services Collaborative Fund for 
whom the County is the fiscal agent. 

Caribou Lake Waste Water - This fund is used to account for the financial transactions of the 
Caribou Lake Alternative Waste Water Committee. 

Regional Railroad Authority - This fund is used to account for the financial transactions of the 
Regional Railroad Authority for whom the County is the fiscal agent. 

Northern Counties Land Use Board - This fund is used to account for the financial transactions 
of the Northern Counties Land Use Board for whom the County is the fiscal agent. 

Agency Miscellaneous - This fund is used to account for the activities not accounted for in 
another agency fund. 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31.2003 

Investment Trust Funds 

Taconite Taconite 
Relief Production Tax Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liab~lities 

Due to other governments 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for pool participants 

and other purposes 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Investment Trust Funds 

Taconite Taconite 
Relief Production Tax Total 

ADDITIONS 
Taconile taxes 

Earnings on investments 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Distribution to participants 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets - January 1 

Nel assets - December 31 



ST. LCUiS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

STATE OF MINNESOTA FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from o t lw  governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Salaries payable 
Due !o olher governments 

Total Liabilities 

BEER-AUCTIONEER LICENSES FUND 
ASSETS 

Casn and wsh equivalents 

LIABILITIES 
Due to olher governmelts 

CVlES AND TOWNS FINES FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash ard  cash equivalents 

LIABII.ITIES 
Due to olher governments 

TAXES AND PENALTIES FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and wsh equiva'ents 
Accounts Recewable 

Total Assets 

LIABiLITIES 
Due !o W1e1 governmentz 

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS FUND 
ASSETS 

Casn and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 
ACCOUI~~S payable 
Due !o other goverrments 

Total Liabiiikes 

SERIES EE SAVINGS BOND FUND 
ASSETS 

Cam and cash ecuivalents 

LIABII.Il'1ES 
Due to cttler governments 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Balance Balance 
Janualy 1 Additions Deductions December 31 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

CANCELED CHECK FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payab!e 

HIGH VOLTAGE CREDIT FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 

ASSAULT FEES FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 
Accuunts payable 

ARROWHEAD REGIONAL 
CORRECTIONS FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Due to other governments 

Tolal Liabilities 

PERMIT TO CARRY FIREARMS FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cas? equ~valents 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governmerits 

ALL  AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31 



S T  LOUIS COUNTY, .MlIvNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAH ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Balance Balance 
January 1 Additions Deductions . December 31 

COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICES FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 258.844 S 3 329,753 S 2,088.212 S SOX385 
Due from other governrents 344.292- 725,852 665.477 404.657. 

Total Assets $ 603,136 S 4 055.605 S 2,753.689 S 905.052 

LIABILITIES 
Salaries payable . . 
Due to other governments 601.362 4,050,166 3,751,915 899,613 

Tolal Liabilities S 603,135 S 4 055.60% - S 3,753,689 S 905,052 

DULUTH AREA FAMILY SERVICE 
COLLABORATNE FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 86,003 $ 107,548 S 110,169 $ - 83,382 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments - S 86,003__ S 107,548 $ 110 169 S 83.382 - 

LOCAL COLLABORATIVE TIME STUDY FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalenls $ 460.431 S 1,636,597 s 1,741.381 S 355,747 - 
LIABILIIIES 

Accounts uavable S 174 038 S 45.385 S 174.038 S 4'1386 . . 
Due lo other goverriments 

Total Liabilibes 

NORTHERN ST. LOUIS COUNTY FAMILY 
SERVICE COLLABORATIVE FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash ecuivale?ts 

1.IABII.I rlES 
Due to other $overnments 

CARIBOU LAKE WASTE WATER FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due I ron 3lher governments 

TotA Assets 

LIABIt.ITIES 
Aczounls payable 
Irl!erimd payable 

'ToVal Liabilities 



ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LlABtLlTlES 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Balance 
January 1 Additions Deductions 

S 1.052.551 

Balance 
December 31 

REGIONAL RAILROAD AUTHORITY FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Prepaid items 
Del~nquent !axes receivable 
Acwmts receivable 
Due fron other governments 

Tola1 Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Due to other governments 

Tolal Liabilities 

NORTHERN COUNTIES 
LAND USE BOARD FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents S 21.821 S 38.750- .-S 41.841 S 18.730 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other goverriments - S 21.821 . $ 38,750 S 41,841 -S 18.730 - - 

AGENCY MISCELLANEOUS FUND 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents S t1.473 S 6,743,574 S 6,752,147 S 
Acwunts receivable 47.848 95.595 143.543 
Due from olher governments 147.794 238,59l[J_ 147.794 208,995- 

Tot31 Assets S S 7,043,484 -S 208.995 - 205.1 12.  S 7,048.364 - 
LIABILITIES 

Due to cther gwernments - S 204.1 1 5  $ 7,048,364 - - -- s 7,043,481 . -S -- 208.995 - 

TOTALS FOR ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cas'l and cash ecuivalents 
Delinquent taxes receivablr 
Accounts receivabe 
Due fron olher governmenls 
Prl?pald items 

Total Assets 

LlABiLlTlES 
Accounts payable 
Salari?:; payable 
tnieifund payable 
Due to other $overnments 

Total Liabilities 
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Shared revenue 
state 

ST LOUIS COUNTY, MlFjNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Dispi8tily a d  
Honlrstead and agriwltiiral creait aid (HACA) - real estate 
hACA - manufactured tlome 
PERA ald 
State 8ie aid 

3c cercmt a8nrzi iimme 
Regular inaintsriance 
Regular rnnstruction 
Municipal maintenance 
Municipal m n ~ t w l m  

Total Rolmbursemant far Services Revanue 

Grants 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFINTERGOVERNMENTALREVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.20G3 

Totat State Granls 

8V%7 
4,323 

Zii i.436 

4'1.97C, 

~ 1 . i 8 7  
2'.:!7E 

282C 
31 

8.478 
2 042 
2 441 

40 UOC 
il 165 

1.422223 

. 
S 3.OK'.G73 



ST. LOUS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Grants (continued) 
Federal grants 

aiotemsw 
Cancer control 
Chamiwllv delendelcv 

. . 
Foster care 
nome delhered meats 
immunizahon D'JCI~CB improvement reimb 
hlaiernal Child heilsln Ilhmugh Carnmunity heallh Board) 
Mental heath block g'anl 
Supcon foi eioaniipat~on and hing func%nally 
Tt!mwrary aid for needy lamiles 
Title XX bloc% gram 
V-E! AItemalwe resmnse 

Deoartnlent of H3usng and Urban Uevelopmsni 
Conmuwy neveiapmenl blwk g r a m  
Emcinencv shelter orant 

Total Grants 



ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

Buildings Solid Waste 
Debt Capital Managament 

Service Projects E ~ t e r p r i ~ o  
Fund FLinds-_ - -  - Fund- . Total 

Slmred revenue 

D8spatiIy 88d 
Hornesteacl and agricultural credit a d  (HACA) - i f a l  estate 
tlACA - manufectuied horns 
PEKA at6 
State fire aid 
PO'ICC 3id 
Market value credil 

Deoatfrnenl of Tnnswrtntiori 
30 percenf n m l  income 
Regular mamlenanca 
Regular cons~rucmn 
Muncipal maintenance 
Municipal constriction 
Engineenog 
State park 
Unoiganizcd town road and bndge a d  

Total Shared Revenue 

Reimbursement for Services 
Stale 

Clsoanrnenl of Human Sarvicer 
Child teen checkups 
Child S U P P O ~ ~  



ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 37,2003 

Grants (continued) 
State grants (continued) 

Dcpanmont o l  tiurnan Senices 
I80 day alternative o r e  g n l t  sewices 
Adult ialeqrated fimc 
Cancer control 
Chemical douendancy 
Child care resource and rukiral 
ChId supom incanrives 
Chld seen chn:kups 
Chldien's menial neaiin 
Cunmunly aiternalives for disabled #mdiv,$uaIs 

~aivered SBWICBS 

Commurity Sx ia l  Sewms Act Clack grant 
Consolidated Olemio! dependency fund lldmin 
i ldeih, wawered sawices 
Family pressrration 
Fiexible fundma 
Food stamps 
Fraud prevention incentives 
General assistance 
Medical asslsbnu! 
Mentally ielarced tamily subsidy 
Menlally retamed wivered rwvices 
MN family investment pmiect child cam 
Moose Laht! state ollerateo sawices 
Prepilld nbedicat assislance proqrm 
Refugee assislance 
Kelsiive ci~st@Jy 
Semi-inde~leodent living skll s 
Special mediG3l arsistance 
l ia imat i r  brain njury 
Home 3el~ueied Meais 
RSVF Grant 

oepanme;, 3 Pmie  safety 
Boundary Waters Cwg ia5k Force 
Llomeitic 1Prc~air"lce::s Eavipment 
Onveis license 
C!nq abuse isskstance 
Eniorqcncv Communicalionr 
Lake SUUCIIOI Drug l ivsk Force 
v m m  emarijency fumi 
St Loi1.5 County 9 1 3  Cominunr:ailon 
Snown,ot)i!e enloir~menl 

Burldings Solid Warts 
Dabt Capital Management 

Service Projects Enterprise 
Funds Fund - Fund - .- Total 



ST. LOUIS COLIN% MINNESOTA 
SCHEDULEOFINTERGOVERNMENTALREVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENCEO DECEMBER 31.2003 

Gmnto (continued) 
Fsderat grmt*  

Depanmeni of Agticuttwe 
F w d  siamcs 
Natloilal foiegt iand 
Natioiwl foiesl land . construction casts 
National forest iand - icads and schoois 
'Women, infants am1 chil$ren (through Community Healill Roaid! 

Dopanment of lieilllh 8 Human Serrccs 
aloieimm 
Cancer conirul 
Chemically dewndercy 
Cliild care 
RSVP G a n t  
Family wseivntioo block grant 
Foster awe 
Home delivereo meat5 

SUDVO~I lor enlanCmtloO ~ r d  iving funcl8onalty 
Temporary aid for needy famiie?s 
Title X Y  Mock grant 
V-El AlIemallvP ieSlMCse 

De~arlmenl of Holising and ilrban Devntopmeni 
Communihdeuelcpmenl block grants 
Emcigency rheitar gran: 
Home *mvsstn,ent n atf3rdabe l o o i s i ~  

Deoa~lment of Ji~siire 
Bullet pnmf vests 
Community gur violence proseciulion 
Cnminal avprenension 
Uome~iic abuse interverilion 
Domestic Preparedness Ecuwrent 
Law snforcon,ont n:cora managernen 
Srale criirbinal alien assislance 

ClaDartrnent of Natural Kesoerces 
Boat :ma water sa'e!y gisnl 
Lake Suwnor stweline prole? 

Cle~anment of Twv,vonation 
Kociealional tivils progiam 
CICmll irsfllc safely am oiurlk tl~ii,ing.Operatian N8lecap 
Sa'e anc sober 
Federal 11iihway rnnslnction 

E nuironmenial i'iolecion Agency 
Radon deiection 

Federal Emergency Man;qemeni Agency 
Enwqenc y manugeniert 
Cmo:gencv rnnnageoicrt - staie 8 local ;$:isislance 
Emc:yen:y oveisiions plans 

Total Feaaral grants 

Other wants 
Communiiy tlcall ' i Goml 

Cornminily he3':li %?rilles 
Loc.,~ 

Knfe river eiormn repair 
Menab, Ira81 

Total Other grants 

Total Grants 

Total lntergovcrnmental 
Revenue 

Buildirtgs Solid Waste 
Debt Capital Management 

Service Projects Enterprira 
Funds - Fund .. -.. Fund - - -  TOI~I 
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Table 2 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MIIdNESOTA 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES BY SOURCE (1) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal LICCIISBS inter- Charges for Fines and Giik and Intere$t on 
Year -. .. -- . . .  ... Taxes ....... .......... .. and ~ c r m l l r  !lK%%!!nral._ Services - Folfeils lnvortmantr . M I s ~ e l l a n e ~ ~ ~  Total - Contributionr 

Unaudited 



Unaudited 



Table 3 

Collection 
Year 

Collection 
Year -- 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MiNNESOTA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

PROPERN TAX LEVY (COUNTY ONLY) 

Less Tax Credits Net 
Certified and Certain Effective 

County Levy (1) -- State Aids (2) . Levy 

COLLECTIONS 

Current Tax Delinquent Total 
Collections (3) - Tax Collections Tax Collections 

$ 48,019,832 $ 1.374.253 $ 49,794,0% 
48,803,480 1.452.633 50,256.1 19 
49,036,725 1,316,271 53,352,986 
50,413,050 1,360,754 51,773,804 
51,803,156 1,202,083 53.005.245 
53,599S33 1,970.242 55,570,175 
56,736,694 1,624,739 58,370,833 
60,233,499 1,560,546 61.794.045 
59,169,522 1,484,001 63,653,623 
60638,733 1,244.295 61,883,030 

Outstanding 
Delinquent Taxes 

Collection 
Year - 

Current 
Tax Collections (31 

as a Percent of 
Net Levy - 

96.38Y/o 
96.89% 
97.06% 
96.99% 
96.08D/o 
97.2% 
9 6 . ~ 0  
9715% 
97.52% 
94.39% 

RATIOS 

Delinquent 
Tax Collections 
as a Percent of 

Net Levy 

Total Outstanding 
Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes 
as a Percent of as a Percent of 

Net Levy - Net Levy -- 

99 11?6 7 93% 
99 77?6 5.97% 
99 67?1. 7 03"h 
9961% 552"h 
98 31?h 7 83% 
10380% 6.64'k 
99 76?L 6.17°/a 
99 67% 5 94% 
99 97?6 5 75% 
96 33?h 5.49% 

(1)  In 1994 thlough 7997 the homeslead ard ayricuilural credit aid (tiAC:A! was dediicted from tile ievy before tne levy w2s certified 
(2) in 1994 through 1997 this aniount lricludes disparity reductiiri aid. :aconite rei:ef. and olher small credits. 
(3) Coilecboos include amounts that are not a pan of the cerlilied levy. 

Unaudited 
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Table 4 

ST. LOWS COUN7Y IdlNNESOTk 
TAXABLE MARKET VALUE AND TAX CAPACITY OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TAXABLE MARKET VALUE (INCLUDES CAPTURED INCREMENT) 

Collection 
Year - 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2030 
2031 
2002 
2003 

Property Outside Property Within 
the City of Duluth the City of D u l u t h  Total - 

Collection 

- Year 

Collection 
Year 

TAXABLE TAX CAPACITY (EXCLUDES CAPTURED INCREMENT) 

Property Outside Property Within 
the City of Duluth- the City of Duluth - Total - 

Total Tax Capacity 
as a Percent of 
Total Taxable 
Market Value - 

RATIOS 

- Percent of Total Tax Capaci 
Property Outside Propezv within-- 
the c i tyof  DuluE-. 

59 82% 
59 63% 
60 06% 
59 93% 
60.57% 
61.64% 
tj2.28'% 
62.05'% 
61.96% 
62.38% 

the city bf Du lu th  

Unaudited 



Table 5 

ST. LOUIS COUNTX MINNESOTA 
TAX LEVIES AND PROPERTY TAX RATES (1) 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING 

LAST TEN FISCAL. YEARS 

TAX LEVIES (2) 
(In Dollars) 

CitiesKowns 
including 

Tax Increment Special School 

- Districts - .- Districts - , Districts County 
Tax 
Year - 

Totai 
Combined 

TAX RATES PER $100 OF TAX CAPACITY 

Tax 
Year _ Cities I Special School 

Towns - . Districts - Districts County 
Totai 

Combined (1) .- 

TAX RATES PER $100 OF TAXABLE MARKET VALUE 

Tax 
Year 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
I998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Special 
Districts 

0.0205 
0.021 3 
0.0213 
0.0331 
0.0205 
00203 
0.0216 
0.02:<1 
0.0354 
0.0989 

School 
Districts _- .- County -- 

0.8747 1.16633 
0.9378 1.1017 
0.91 33 1.0433 
08673 1.0022 
0.7745 0.981 4 
0.7319 0.9664 
0.6764 0.8tjZS 
0.6316 0.9395 
0.2372 0.9662 
0.18413 0 8900 

Totai 

- Combined (1) 

(:I These are composite rates, except for the County. 
(21 Power line levies are nos included. 

Unaudited 
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Table 6 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
TAX CAPACITY BY PROPERTY TYPE 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Real Estate 

Residential 

Multiple Dwelling 

CornmeiciaVl~dustrial 

Timberlands 

AgicuWal 

Public Utilities i IAfficellaneOus 

Seasonal Residential Recreational 

Seasonal Residential 

Recreational- Cornnlefciai 

Total Real Estate 

Personal Property 

Total Real Estate 8 Personal Property 

Dollar Percent 

.- Value-- of Total 

Source S:. ~ o u i s  Coufity Assessor - 2002 Abstract PayaUe 2003 

Unaudited 

1 54 



Table 7 

ST LOUIS COONTY, MINNESOTA 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

The ten largest properly tax payers in S t  Louis County are as follows: 

Taxpayer 

Minnesota Power 
Consolidated Papers. lnc. 
Miller tiill Mail Company 
Great Lakes Gas Trans Ltd 
Northern States Power 
Northwest Airlines Inc 
Square Butte Elecxic Co-op 
US Bank Corporate Prooert8es 
ZMC Hoteis 
DuIuth Clin~c 

Total Taxes Paid by 
Ten Largest Taxpayers 

Total Taxes Paid by 
Other Taxpayers 

Total Taxes Paid by 
All 'Taxpayers 

Hibbing Taconite 
lspat Inland Mining 
National Steel 
Northshore Mining 
USX Corporation 

Total Collection 

2003 Taxes 
Paid -_ 

Collection of Taconite Production Tax in 2003 

Percentage 
of Total- 

Distribution of Taconite Production Tax in 2003 

Properly Tax Credit 
County, Ci!es'. Towns' and School Distr~cts' Share 5 11.037.490 

St. Louis county and its Political Subdivisions: 
Couoty Genera' Fund $ 4.215.406 
County Road and Briqe Fund 6.377.:31 
School Districts 5.885.417 
Cities and Towns 8,301,651 

Total 24 779.605 

Total Distribution S 35317,095 

Unaudited 
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Table 8 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Market Value of Taxable Properiy $ 8,315,406,800 

Debt Limit: 
Two Percent of Market Value of Taxable Property (1) 

Amount of Deb! Applicable to Debt Limit: 
General Obligation Debt (At Par) $ 29,975.286 
Less: 

Fund Balance in Debt Sawice Funds (1,354,207) 

Total Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 28621,079 

Legal Debt Margin .- $ 137,687,057- -- 

(1) Limit on debt oer Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.53, Subdivision I: "Except as otherwise 
provided ... no municipality . .  shall incur or be subject to a debt in excess of two percent 
of the market value of taxable property in the municipality." 

Note: The amount of debt applicable to the debt limit does not include the 1995 State of Minnesota 
Duluth Airport Lease Revenue Bonds Series 1995E as it is a County liability on a 
contingency basis only. 

Unaudited 
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Table 9 

ST i 0 ; l l S  CGUNTY. ,MINNESOTA 

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT, OVERLAPPING AND UNDERLYING DEBT 
GENERAL OBLIGATION AND GENERAL OBLIGATION REVENUE BONDS ONLY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 

Total Debt 
Outstanding 

Direct  Debt 
St. Louis County (2) S 29,969,624 

Overlapping Debt 
Schcol District #94 S 18,220,000 
School District #381 37,660,000 
School District %38 12,530.000 
School District #2142 1.800,000 
Western Lane Scperior Sanitary District 55,176749 

Total Overiapping Debt .B 125 386.749 

Underlying Debt 
Cdy of Biwabik $ 505.980 
C~ty  of Buhl 200 000 
City of Cook 325.000 
City of Duiuth 69,178,401 
City of Eiy 3,307,000 
City of Eveleth 2.46: ,706 
Cily of Floodwood 18 333 
Ci:y of Hermantown 6.S655.000 
City of Hibbing 7,810.00C 
City of Hoyt L a k ~ s  1,690.00C~ 
City of Mountain Iron 1,745,001 
Cily of Proctor 2,240,OOC 
City of Tower 64.000 
Cily ofVirginia 32,349.244 
Town of Grand Lake 1.1 18,005 
Town of Rice Lake 488.264 
Town of Wh~te 470,003 
Schocl District P69j 7,620,003 
Schoci Distr~ct P696 1,060,003 
Schooi Distr~ct #700 5,775,000 
School District #701 1,890,000 
School Distrtct #7O? 13,700,000 
Schnsi Dtstnct #706 16,805,COO 
School District $709 53,610,COO 
Sctio31 District tt712 4,550.000 
%hod District #2154 6.0 14.442 
Schod District $271 1 545.000 
Arrowhead Reg~onal Developrrkent Cornmiss on 415.366 
Duluth Econornc Oevelcpmenl Au1ho::ly 5.222.000 
Cuiuth Enterlainrnent and Convenlion Center 5,385,000 
Vlrginza Housing and Reoevelopment Authority - 6,480,000 

Total Urderlying Debt 260,107.73_5_ 

Total 5 415,464,108 . . . . . . .. . . .- . - 

Percent 
Applicable t o  

St. Louis County (I) 

100 00% 
100 00?6 
100 00% 
100 00% 
100 009'" 
100.OO?i~ 
10000?4t 
100.00?4~ 
100.00?4~ 
100.00?4, 
10O.OOX 
100.00?4, 
100.00?4> 
100.00?41 
100.00?4> 
100 OO?'" 
100.00?4~ 
100.00?4~ 
1 OO.OO?i, 
100.00?4~ 
10O.C0% 
1OO.COX 
100.C09b 
100.CO":~ 
1OO.COC'o 
100.,:0?'" 
100.~20% 
lOO.SO%, 
100 ,20% 
>OO CO", 
100 50%, 

Amount 

(1) The percentage reflects the portton of the general obtigatiorl debt which is secured by twabie lea! estate located within 
:he County 

(2) This t i p r e  does not iriclude the 1995 Sla!e 01 M~nnesolv Duluth A ~ r m i :  Lease Revenue Bonds Series 1995E of S1,820,C00 
'or whch :he County s contingently Ihabte This fsguia also incl~des $2.650 sf  interest on idle icnds per the 1958 septlc 
loan agieemcnt wth ihz  Minnesola Department cf Agricu:ture 

Unaudited 



Table 10 

FiScai 

Year 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

T3taI for 
2004-2016 

ST LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
DEBT PAYMENTS 

PAST SIX YEARS AND ALL FUTlJRE YEARS 

General Lon@ Term 

-- Bonded Debt (1) 

- Principal Interest 

$ 1.158953 

1.011 197 

896 590 

774 6E.O 

645 070 

534 850 

464 730 

390 205 

315990 

238 250 

3 83 OC'O 

i 25 000 

64 OCO 

FundLongTerm 
Bonded Debt - 

Principal Interest 
- Capital Leases (2) 
- Principal-_ Interest 

$ 95.000 $ 15,725 S 5282/ $ 

100,000 12 875 53 900 

105 000 3.875 57 200 

105,000 5,725 60 500 

110,000 3.575 64 930 

68 230 

72 650 

77 OCO 

82 5C0 

(1 i Does not include the S2.710.OCO Slate of hlinreso!a Duluih Airport Lease Revenue Bonds Series 1995E for which 
St. Louis County is oontingePlly liable. See Table 12 for more detail. 

(2) See 1;ibIe ' 1 for more detail. 

Total 

S 4,290,991 

4,573,577 

4,694,718 

4,706,961 

5.941.715 

5687.623 

Unaudited 

158 



Table 11 

ST. L.OUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

PAST SIX YEARS AND ALL FUTURE YEARS 

OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS 

Office and Data 
Year Parking Processing 

Ended Space .- Software -_ -_ Communications Vehicles Total - 

1997 S 1.382.470 S 468.831 3 - S 9.251 8 1,860.552 
1998 1.585,lSO 431.099 9.944 2.026.193 
1999 1.585.150 431.099 9.944 2,026,193 
2000 1.553.664 639.608 12,263 2,205.535 
2002 1,362,999 571,432 15,185 12.880 1,962,495 
2003 8C5.916 457,182 69.991 8,910 1,341.099 

.- Future Minimum Lease Payments - 
2004 $ 640.455 8 346.336 S 78,584 S - S 1,074,375 
2095 651,113 346.336 78.584 1,076.033 
20% 652.813 346.336 78.584 1,077,733 
2007 654555 346,336 78,584 1,079,475 
2008 656341 .- 346.336 -- 78.584- ,- -. 1,081,261- 

Total for 
2004-2008 S 3,264271 2- 1,7316 S 392.92; _ S  - $ 5388.87'7- .--- 

-- CAPITAL L-E=PAYMENTS -. 

Northland Hibbing Office 
Year Office Building -- Maintenance Facility Equipment 

Ended . Princtpal- - Interest .. -- Prtnclpal- .- interest: Principal lnterast- - 

Total kv 
2004-20' 3 

Unaudited 
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labie I2 - continued 

ST LCL'SS CO2Y;Y MIZNESCTA 
BONDEDDEBTPAYMENTSCHEDULEHI 

FhCSl 

Yes, 

(see 

1891 

1908 

,Pa9 

iooo 
ZOO1 

ZOO2 

1003 

zoo* 

2005 

1006 

1007 

2008 

2008 

20'0 

2011 

20iz 

2013 

2 E l l  

2015 

2018 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

TOYI la 

'200ldOlO 

(81 Gonerrl O b l i g a t i ~  C ~ D I W  lmpiovemsnf Bonds series 2001 for rapntzl improrsmenm pursuant to ma capim ~mpsovemsnt m n  approved 

by tkm B a r d  ur Camhsrionsrsnn 014941,origlnal iswaof s ~ ~ , 2 ~ 0 , 0 u O ,  mlerertratsr o( 3.5 io 5.0%. Y X  aiempt.ob$igations maybaprepaa 

in part or invnobaon 1241n8 or any ony thereatmr. 

Unaudited 
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Table 12 - continued 

S T  LOLIIS C3bh TY WFiA'F SOTA 
BONDED DEBT PAYMENT SCHEDULE (11 

PAST f GHT YEARS AND ALL FUTURE "EARS 

iw a) G B ~ ~ I  onlegatim solw WW. BOWS serbea 1989 lor ctorui* ~ o r u  and transhrr r w o n  conrtunian. wigina~ ,.rue of $3.510.010. inmrest etas of 6.1 tu 7.1%. m-erampt, 

paniany refunded by Fvl? C r a r s o w  ~ d r a n c e  Retunding Bonar Sorier 1103A. lewlly delearea on 1201 .s7 crosrorsr dale. 

b l  General Ohlig~fion Solid Wal l s  BonOr Series 198SE f1W clllrvn, costs 2nd tranalnr stltlon conafnlrtlon. original irsus ol$1,310.030, lnlsrerr ragas ol 5 9 to 6.8%. tarrxempl. 

parthly rdunde0 by Full Crorsovsr Ldvanc. Rehmdlw Bond3 Suries 1PB31\, legalis ODfsared 0s 12.01.87 Elosravsr date. 

c j  Gsnsrpl OYgdtioo Solid Warto Bonds Serisl lDSI lor transfer Itstlon Construction, orlDlnal brve o l  Il,ISS,ODO. mterart ratas o( 4 0 to 6.25%. tlx-wenpt, oblgallonr may 

be prep.w in part or in whole a 1247199 or any mlem~t data thereafter. catieofor radomplion an" prepaymant in m$s. 
di ~enecre Obligltial s a d  was$. ~ o n d s  s s r w  1PB3B lor iandSll construction, oiigiml isrue of S5,83S.000, mtsrsrt rater crt 01 3.0 iu 1.0%. ~ x a r e m p t ,  obligatronr ,nay be 

pr~pal.3 in pan or inwholeon 12.01 .00~ any intotsrldstethsreafler. CWad ior rsdsmDtionilrd plspaymanf m 2002 

e) Gsnarsl Obligaf~an Full CloSsovn Advance Refunding Banes Srrlsr 1883A lor p m l d  refunding of 7a);bnd Thl abova. ori!(id issue of I2.OZO.000, interest rater 014.0 tod8 l i .  

tax eXemp~,oaqstionsmny b. prepaid .nprrtor inwholaon 124140 or any date mereansr. cnlledlor r s d o m p t i ~  an* prspayment m2002. 

(13) Generat OLligifian Nuning Home Bonds Sene. 2002A for Clpil.1 iwrornnel11 Chilo JenrEn Nurnng Home original asur 01 S6W,OO0, inferarl rater of 3Ofe 1.25%. fa isrcnlp l  

ob!igathuns are not s u ~ ~ r r t  to witionat redempfion prior to mafur~fy. 

Unaudited 
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Table 13 

ST LOUIS COUNTK ,MINNESOTA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REVENUE BOND COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(IN DOLLARS) 

NOPEMING ENTERPRISE FUND BOND 

Direct Net Revenue 
Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements 
Year Revenue& Expenses (21 Debt Service -principal Interest ,- Total Coverage 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND BOND 

Direct Net Revenue 
Fiscal Gross Operating Available for - Debt Service Requirements 
Year -- Principal interest - Revenue (1) Expenses (21 &bt Service, _____ Total coverage 

CHRIS JENSEN HEALTH AND REHABILITATION CENTER ENTERPRISE FUND BOND 

Direct Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements 

Total Coverage Year Revenue (1; Expenses (2) .Debt Service Pr inc ipai  lnterest -- . 



Table I4  

ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
BONDED DEBT AS A PERCENT OF MARKET VALUE AND 

BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Bonded Debt 
Fiscal Bonded Market As a Percent of 

_z.K..- .-Deb(('f.. Value (2) _ . Market Value Population 

(1) Al: balded debt, including fund debt, is gmara! ocligalion, which wn be paid from property taxes. 
(2) Includes caSuied imcfeme71. 
(3) Excludes 1995 State of Minnesota Duluth Airport Lease Revenue Bonds Series 1995E. 

Bonded Debt as a Percent of Market Value 

Bonded 
Debt 

per Capita 

Bwded Deb! per Capita 

Unaudited 
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Table 15 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES 

FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT (I) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Total Total 
Debt Service General 

Year Pr inc ipa l  Interest - - Expenditures Expenditures (2) 

Debt Service 
Expenditures 

As a Percent of 
General 

Expenditures 

(1) Does not :ndude Sonds that are paid frani Enterprise Funds. See Tabie 13. 
(2) lncl~des lne General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. 

(3) $2,oCQ.300 of this figure was financed by a refunding issue 

(4) $685,000 o i  th.s figure was to pay olf 1989 Series B Babbitt Recycling Factlity Refunding Bond. 

(5)  $8,535,900 of :his figure was to pay oi: Jail Revenue Bonds (St LOUIS County Unliniited 
Tar Lease Obiigations). 

Debt Expenditures as a Percent of General Expenditures 

Unaudited 
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Table 16 

ST. LOUIS COLINTV, MINNESOTA 
GENERALFUNDBALANCE 

COMPARED TO TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Total Fund Balance -. 
General Balanceas a 

Fund POrcPI  01 
.- B m w a  Expunditurar 

Total Urhrerewed under&nicd 
General Balance as a 

Fund Percent 01 

General Fund Balance as a Percent of Current Expendilures 

-- 

Unaudited 
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Table 17 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
COMPENSATEDABSENCESANDFUNDBALANCERESERVEDFORHEALTHANDWELFARE 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Vacation 
Short term (3) 
i-ong term 

Total Vacation 

Genarai 
Liability of Liability of Long-Term Financial 

Governmental Proprletav Debt Statement 
Funds - -- Funds (1) - Liability (2) - Notes Total Hours 

Sick Leave 
Vested (4) $ - % 1.269.786 S11.263.120 % - 5 12,532,906 
'Vesting (5)  692.244 16,583,761 17276,095 
Non-vesting 16) - - 10.895.886 10.895.886 

TO% Sick Leave -- S - S 1,962,030 S 27,846.8s- $ 10,895.886 $ 40,704.797 1,7&1,121 

lotal Com3ensated 
Absclces Payable S 71E5.429_ S 2.766.847 S 32,785,803. S 10,895,886 _Q7.613.965 2,078,597- -- ---A. - 

(1) Excludes the Retired E.nlployees' Health lnsurmce Internal Service Fmc liabiiities 

121 The entm amour1 of tho aenerai iono tenn debt Ilabliitv fur vested sick leave IS SuDDorted b9 (und oalances 

(3) Cash value of vacation expected lo be paid within an aight-week period of the end of the fiscal year 

(4) Cash 'value 3f accrued sick leave baiances belonging to employees eligible to retire at tne end of the fiscal year and recelve an 
immediate I'EXA pension. 

(5) Cash d u e  of the portion of sick leave balances belonging to those employees expecteo to retire from St Louis Counly, but not 
t?ligible ka retirement at the end of the fiscal year. This estimate was anived at using the termination payment mathoC prescribed 
by GASB 16. 

(8) Cash value of rhe portion of sick leave t,alances belonging to employees not expected to retire l,om Sr. Louis County. These amounts 
are not a liab;lily and thus  re lisled only n the Financial Statement Notes lhls amount is arr~ved a1 by subtracl~ng items l4)and 151 
above from the total sick ieave balance for a1 employees. 

Unaudited 
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Fiscal 
Year 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

AUTHORIZED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITIONS BY FUND 

LAST TEN YEARS 

General 
Fund 

709.60 

742.03 

749.70 

771.65 

790.15 

796.75 

796.25 

799.45 

602.45 

613.75 

Road and 
Bridge 
Fund 

335.00 

335.00 

336.00 

337.00 

342.00 

342.00 

343.00 

343.00 

343.00 

343.00 

Social 
Services 

Fund 

570.00 

572.00 

552.50 

542.00 

531.70 

538.10 

523.20 

524 70 

526 70 

523.20 

Forfeited 
Tax 

Funds 
Enterprise 

Funds 

489.61 

514.1 I 

494.76 

495.80 

4'75.88 

447.30 

4 17.67 

459.63 

472.77 

306.66 

Internal 
Service 
Funds -- 

110.68 

109.18 

1 IO.16 

107.68 

112.68 

114.68 

114.68 

58.50 

59.78 

59.78 

Total 

2,265.09 

2.327.32 

2.298.14 

2.31 1.13 

2.309.41 

2.297.83 

2,253.80 

2,244.28 

2,263.70 

2,105.41 

Unaudited 
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Table 19 

ST LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

LABORCONTRACTAGREEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Bargaining Unit 

Civil Service Basic 
Emergency Communication Specialists 
Corrections Counselors 
Health Care Basic 
Health Care Super~isors 
Civil Service Supervisors 
Merit System Supervisors 
Civil Service Confidential 
Teamsters 
Merit System Basic 
Jail Corrections Oificers 
Deputy Sheriff's Association 
Sheriff Superviso!y 

Number of 
Employees 

Represented 

925 
41 

4 
292 

71 
121 
39 
19 

214 
190 
60 
88 
11 

Contract 
Expiration 
Date ( 3 )  

12131103 
1213 1/03 
12!31/03 

613012003 
613012003 
12/31/03 
1213 1 103 
12/31/03 
12/31 103 
12131103 
12131103 
12131103 
12131103 

Unaudited 
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Table 20 

ST. LOUIS COUNJY, MINNESOTA 
INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Type ot Insurance -, 

Boiler 8 Uachirriy 

Commercial Propew 

volunteer Services 

inland Mimne 

VB~CI .?~  in Bdc Iws  

Surely bonds 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

Coverage 
Insurer Dedusllble Lim,t Purpose 

ClMA Cornoanss Inc 

175,028,300 Banlet - 3u,ldieg S Business Personal h p e Q  
5C0.001) HuStneSs ancome lndudmg Extra Exycnse 
250.000 Personal Fmperty at UndescicWd Prciniser 

l0,000,OL10 1:I""d Limn 
10.000,000 Eanhquake 
1.300.000 Ui i i i i  Sewices 

50.0011 Crme . Forgery or N l e i a l m  
60.OOO Crine - tiloway R Secuniei 

Premises Coverage $5O.C00. Mosreogei S1O.OOO 
1.158.000 Ccinpiileii 
1.300.000 Genera: L~abmy 

Rm13 8 Teievi~ion Towei lCN?sewal#or Ro:td) 
3,000001 Newly Asqulred P~ioprty S Premse 
1.26S.003 Otllel Addlvonal Cwerages R Coveiagr Extensow 

01s-htag8e Gvaafson 5.030 25!i.003 8ioad~:asIng Twers 8 Antenna I Eqwpmm 
Tiave:er~ 5.030 6Y 1.003 BuildingiTowerIl runm,dlng Equqmnt (Observat8on Roildl 

01s-h4agieGus:akoa 25.030 7,500003 Coinmercial Property. Amended Contents 
AIG - Lexir(120n Flood & Eanhqiiake 

Otis-Magbe Gustahon 
Tn Sla:c 

500,0i)3 Coo~XyAudifOi 
l(10.003 Oilmi peisonsSlC0.01~0 oer indivlilual 

Number of envloyeer covere4 
A'rOwhR3d Regional Cawenions 

Unaudited 



Table 21 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN YEARS 

Median K - 12 School 
Year - . Age (2) Population (1) Enrollment (3) 

(1) US Census Bureau. 
(2) Minnesota State Planning Office, Office of State Demographer 
(3) Minnesota Department of Education. 
(4) US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis 

Amounts are the most up-to-date revisions ava~lable 

Per Capita 
Personal 

Income (4) 

% 19,670 
21,303 

22,517 

23,091 

24.580 
25.212 

26,923 

27.633 
Not Available 

;Jot Available 

Unaudited 
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Table 22 

Fiscal 

Year 

ST LOUIS C O U N W ,  MINNESOTA 
RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION STATISTICS 

LAST TEN YEARS 

Residential 

Units (1) 

Residential 

Value (1) 

(1) As of 1995, residential additions, alterations and conversions statistics are not available. 
However, previous years include those categories in both residential units and residential value 

Source: U. S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of Census. 

Unaudited 
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Table 23 

Year - 

ST. LOUIS COUNN,  MINNESOTA 
LABOR STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

C O U N N  LABOR STATISTICS 

Annual Average 

Labor Force- . .- Employment.. -- Unemployment- 

Source: Minnesota Department of Econonic Secuit). 

Unemployment 

Rate - 

State 

Average 

Unemployment 

Rate 

National 

Average 

Unemployment 

Rate -- 

Unaudited 
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Table 24 

Land 

Water 

Total Area * 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

LAND STATISTICAL DATA 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2003 

AREA 

Square 
Miles 

Public Ownership 

Federal 

Army I Corps of Engineers 

Bureau of Land Management 

Forest Sewice 

National Park Sewice 

Total Federal 

State 

Department of Natural Resources 

Department of Transportation 

Total State 

State 

Tax Forfeited - County Administered 

Total Public Ownership 

Acres 

Private Ownership I Other 1,986,208 - 

Total Land I Water Ownership 4,314,299 

Percentage 

Unaudited 



Table 25 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY. MINNESOTA 
MISCELLANEOUS COUNTY STATISTICS 

Road Type 

Interstate trunk 

b. S .  trma 

Minnesota trunk 

County state aid 

Municipal state aid 

County 

To,mship 

Unorganized townshi;; 

National forest develoment 

illcian reSeNa:iOn 

Stare toresr 

SWe park 

Municipal streets 

Tolal 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2003 

ROAD STATISTICS 

Miles Within 
Munlcipalites 

Over 5.000 
Population 

1 1.583 

33.594 

42.486 

112.717 

190.124 

46.323 

0.000 

0.000 

0.000 

3.000 

3.000 

0.000 

s 1 . 3 2  

-- 998.155 -- 

Source: MnIDOT Office of Transportation 

Miles Wlthin 
Municipalites 
Under 5.000 
Population 

1.066 

18.731 

16.643 

85.215 

8 276 

53.081 

0 000 

0 000 

17 725 

0 000 

0.000 

0 000 

204 422 

-- 405 152. 

Nonmunlcipal 
Milas 

3.323 

167.593 

221.226 

1,188.471 

0.000 

1,499.139 

794.014 

134.017 

121.269 

1.196 

98.030 

4.540 

3.000 

4,232,816 ---- 

Total 

- Miles 

15.972 

219.918 

280.357 

1,386.403 

198.400 

1.598.543 

794.014 

134.017 

138.954 

1 136 

98 030 

4 540 

765 748 - 
5.636 132 

BRIDGE STATISTICS 

Bridge Type -. 

Concrete structures 

Steel beam slructuies 

Steei truss structures 

limber structures 

Culvens with scans greater :han :en feel 

Number of 
Bridges - 

66 

195 

26 

41 

2 7 1  

Source: St Louis County Public Works Department 



Table 26 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
REGISTERED VOTERS 
LAST TEN ELECTIONS 

PRIMARY ELECTIONS 

Total 
Registered Percentage 

Date Voters Voting 

September 9, 1986 
September 13. 1988 
September 11, 1990 
September 15, 1992 
September 13, 1994 
September 10, 1996 
September 15, 1998 
September 12,2000 
September 10,2002 

* September 24,2002 

* Special County Board Election for Districts 4. 5. 6 

GENERAL ELECTIONS 

Total 
Registered 

Date Voters 

November 
November 
November 
November 
November 
November 
November 
November 
November 
November 

Source: St. Louis County Aud~tor's Office 

Percentage 
Voting 

Unaudited 
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